SB956 Favorable Brent Walls (1).pdf Uploaded by: Brent Walls



SB0956 Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act Feb 20, 2024

FAVORABLE

Chairman Feldman and Honorable members of the Committee,

I am here today to advocate for a favorable position on SB956, a crucial bill that seeks to protect public wastewater facilities from the impacts of PFAS pollution originating from industry. This legislation is a necessary step to ensure that the burden of cleaning up PFAS pollution does not fall on the shoulders of the public and our valuable wastewater utilities.

PFAS, per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances, are toxic chemicals that have been widely used in industrial processes and consumer products for decades. These persistent and harmful chemicals have now been found in the water supplies of communities across the country, posing serious health risks to those who consume contaminated water.

The costs associated with removing PFAS in a pre-treatment program should not be the responsibility of the public wastewater facilities and the general public. Instead, the industries that discharge waste containing PFAS should bear the financial burden of mitigating their own pollution. It is unfair to expect taxpayers and wastewater utilities to foot the bill for the cleanup of a problem that was created by industry.

By passing SB956, Maryland can take a proactive stance in holding industries accountable for the removal of PFAS. Requiring these industries to invest in pre-treatment technologies to remove PFAS pollution before it enters the public wastewater facilities is a critical step in protecting public health and the environment. Additionally, placing the financial responsibility on the industries that produce and discharge PFAS pollution will help to prevent public waste utilities from increasing fees on the public and businesses.

Furthermore, this legislation sets a clear standard for environmental responsibility and sustainability. By ensuring that industries are accountable for their role in removal of PFAS pollution, we are sending a message that Maryland is committed to protecting its water resources and public health.

In conclusion, I urge you to support SB956 and stand up for the protection of public wastewater facilities and the public from the impacts of PFAS pollution. By holding industries accountable for their pollution and requiring them to invest in pre-treatment technologies, we can safeguard our water resources and prevent unnecessary financial burdens on the public. Thank you for your time and consideration.

Brent Walls, Upper Potomac Riverkeeper

SB0956_Protecting_State_Waters_From_PFAS_MLC_FAV.p Uploaded by: Cecilia Plante



TESTIMONY FOR SB0956 ENVIRONMENT - WATER POLLUTION CONTROL - PROTECTING STATE WATERS FROM PFAS POLLUTION (PROTECTING STATE WATERS FROM PFAS POLLUTION ACT)

Bill Sponsor: Senator Hester **Committee:** Education, Energy, and the Environment **Organization Submitting:** Maryland Legislative Coalition **Person Submitting:** Cecilia Plante, co-chair **Position:** FAVORABLE

I am submitting this testimony in favor of SB0956 on behalf of the Maryland Legislative Coalition. The Maryland Legislative Coalition is an association of activists - individuals and grassroots groups in every district in the state. We are unpaid citizen lobbyists, and our Coalition supports well over 30,000 members.

PFAS chemicals are deadly. And yet, our state waters are infected with them. We need stronger regulations and we need regulations with teeth. This bill, if enacted, would require any significant industrial organization to ensure that the amount of PFAS chemicals discharged into any state water, including stormwater, not exceed 4 parts per trillion. Additionally, by April 1, 2025, each major industrial organization must measure and report to the Department of the Environment.

As far as disposal of PFAS chemicals, a significant industrial organization may not dispose of stored PFAS chemicals in a solid waste landfill; an incinerator; or other land application.

Violation of these requirements will be administered by the Department of the Environment. While we would like to see proscribed penalties for violations, and more significant oversight, we believe this is a good first step to reigning in the PFAS chemicals that are in our water.

We support this bill and recommend a **FAVORABLE** report in committee.

FINAL Eignor SB0956 Testimony.pdf Uploaded by: Diana Eignor

Testimony: SB 956: Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution (Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act)

Submitted to: Education, Energy, and the Environment Committee

Submitted by: Diana Eignor, MS, Environmental Consultant

Position: In Support

February 19, 2024

Dear Chair Feldman, Vice Chair Kagan, and Members of the Committee:

Thank you for this opportunity to submit testimony in support of **SB 956: Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution**. My name is Diana Eignor. I am a biologist/toxicologist and retired EPA scientist from the Office of Water.

Importance of Controlling PFAS Pollution

- **PFAS pollutants are known as "forever chemicals"** because they are long-lasting and found in humans, water, air, soil, fish and wildlife. Ongoing research indicates that exposure to PFAS pollutants poses health risks to humans and environmental risks to aquatic and terrestrial organisms. Preventing additional PFAS contamination is integral for our state to safeguard public health, preserve our environment, and ensure the economic vitality of our state.
- SB 956: Protecting State Waters from PFAS Pollution will decrease the amount of PFAS pollution entering Maryland's waters. This bill requires monitoring of PFAS from industrial users who discharge into publicly owned treatment works. The development of a discharge limit will be included in their pretreatment permit issued either by the Maryland Department of the Environment, or the publicly owned treatment works that receive the industrial discharge.
- This bill is literally stopping PFAS pollution "at the source and discharge pipe". If PFAS is not removed until it reaches drinking water systems, wastewater treatment, and surface waters, the costs of remediation are expensive and fall on to the shoulders of the treatment plants and citizens who are rate payers for the systems. The industrial users who pollute our waters with PFAS should be held responsible for paying the costs of remediation.

EPA methods are available to measure PFAS

- The EPA's Office of Water published Method 1633, "Analysis of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) in Aqueous, Solid, Biosolids, and Tissue Samples by LC-MS/MS" in January 2024.
 - This is a method to **test for 40 PFAS compounds in wastewater, surface water, groundwater, soil, biosolids, sediment, landfill leachate, and fish tissue.**
 - This method can be used in various applications, including National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits.
 - The method will support NPDES implementation by providing a consistent PFAS method that has been tested in a wide variety of wastewaters and contains all the required quality control (QC) procedures for the Clean Water Act (CWA). <u>https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-01/method-1633-final-for-web-posting.pdf</u>
- The EPA's Office of Water published Method 1621, "Determination of Adsorbable Organic Fluorine (AOF) in Aqueous Matrices by Combustion Ion Chromatography".
 - This is a method to **measure the aggregate concentration of organofluorines** (molecules with a carbon-fluorine bond) in wastewater.
 - The strength of the method is that it can broadly screen for thousands of known PFAS compounds. According to EuroFins International, an internationally known chemistry laboratory, a typical sample costs \$350-\$400.
 https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-01/method-1621-for-web-posting.pdf

The Cost of Doing Nothing!

- How much does it cost to remove PFAS from wastewater?
 - According to the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency's estimates, PFAS can be bought for \$50 - \$1,000 per pound and costs between \$2.7 million and \$18 million per pound to remove and destroy from municipal wastewater, depending on facility size. Source: <u>https://www.pca.state.mn.us/news-and-stories/groundbreaking-studyshows-unaffordable-costs-of-pfas-cleanup-fromwastewater#:~:text=Unaffordability%20of%20PFAS%20cleanup%20from%20wastewater&text=P FAS%20can%20be%20bought%20for,wastewater%2C%20depending%20on%20facility%20size
 </u>
- What do the wastewater estimates look like for the next 20 years?
 - A recent study from Minnesota showed total wastewater costs to remove PFAS to be between \$14 and \$28 billion over 20 years in that state alone. Source:https://www.nacwa.org/docs/default-source/resources---public/water-coalition-factsheet-202307-v1-2.pdf?sfvrsn=8694c161_2/
- You have to consider drinking water costs.
 - Remediation efforts and PFAS removal strategies have cost states like North Carolina nearly \$49 million dollars with a recurring cost of \$2 million just to keep the reverse osmosis drinking water plant running. Source : The True Cost of PFAS and the Benefits of Acting Now, <u>https://pubs.acs.org/doi/10.1021/acs.est.1c03565</u>
- What do the drinking water estimates look like for the next 20 years?

Drinking water utilities will need to invest more than \$50 billion to install and operate treatment technology over the next 20 years and add another \$3.5 billion per year in disposal costs for the water sector. Source: <u>https://www.nacwa.org/docs/default-source/resources---public/water-coalition-fact-sheet-202307-v1-2.pdf?sfvrsn=8694c161_2/</u>

Maryland residents deserve to see action to remove PFAS contamination in our state. Small cities like Thurmont and Elkton are experiencing PFAS in their drinking water at dangerous concentrations. The costs for PFAS filtration systems are in the multi-million dollar range.

I urge you to please pass this legislation, SB 956: Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution.

Sincerely,

Diana M. Eignor, MS

SB 956 - CBF - FAV.pdf Uploaded by: Doug Myers Position: FAV



Environmental Protection and Restoration Environmental Education

Senate Bill 956

Environment – Water Pollution Control – Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution (Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act)

Date:	February 20, 2024	Position:	Favorable
To:	Education, Energy and the Environment Committee	From:	Doug Myers
			Maryland Senior Scientist

Chesapeake Bay Foundation (CBF) **SUPPORTS SB 956** which requires pre-treatment standards for any industrial discharge that includes PFAS and is contributing more than 25,000 gallons per day to a municipal wastewater treatment plant.

This is the most comprehensive bill attempting to address PFAS that has yet been brought before this committee. Per- or Poly-fluoro-alkyl substances (PFAS) are a class of chemicals used in numerous industrial processes that are known to cause various cancers in humans and accumulate up the food chain through exposed aquatic and marine organisms. Further, these chemicals take a long time to break down making them persistent to the point they've been deemed "forever chemicals".

SB 956 requires screening and pre-treatment of industrial discharges to municipal wastewater treatment plants at the point of origin in industrial processes and sets limits on PFAS concentrations that can be diverted to municipal plants. Screening for PFAS using total organic fluorine as proposed in the bill is an efficient method of detecting PFAS without expensive chemical-specific laboratory analysis. The treatment level identified in this bill is reasonable and attainable through the use of organic carbon filtration.

CBF urges the Committee's FAVORABLE report on SB 956.

For more information, please contact Matt Stegman, Maryland Staff Attorney, at <u>mstegman@cbf.org</u>.

CLA Favorable SB 956.docx.pdf Uploaded by: Evan Isaacson



Support for Senate Bill 956

Dear Chairman Feldman and Members of the Committee:

The Chesapeake Legal Alliance supports SB 956.

As this committee is aware, our understanding of the risks posed by PFAS chemicals has expanded rapidly in recent years. Controlling PFAS chemicals has consumed many environmental and public health agencies and implicates nearly all major environmental regulatory frameworks. Just within the last month, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has proposed two separate hazardous waste rules to better safeguard Americans from PFAS chemicals. However, despite the flurry of agency activity and the mounting evidence about the sources, fate, risks, and methods of control of this class of chemicals, one thing that remains missing are laws and regulations that actually attempt to control them at the source. This bill would be an important step in that direction.

Scientists and regulators now have a pretty clear understanding of which industries and types of facilities are most likely to pose a threat of contamination for nearby communities. And thanks to recent scientific and technological advances, the private sector can now provide pollution control technologies and PFAS-alternatives to enable past and present users of these chemicals to move beyond them. Without clear legal standards or regulatory incentives, however, these new technologies will not be utilized and we will continue to kick this can down the road, needlessly exposing countless Marylanders to the well-documented health risks associated with PFAS chemicals.

Finally, it must also be noted that this bill would address PFAS chemicals in the most efficient and common sense manner possible: by going straight to the source. It is particularly important to ensure that facilities with so-called "pretreatment permits" are required to control their PFAS discharges, because these facilities, by definition, discharge pollution into our municipally-owned sewer systems. It is simply bad policy to foist the cost of pollution control from profitable industries to municipalities struggling to balance a budget and facing long-term infrastructure maintenance costs borne by their ratepayers and taxpayers. If PFAS chemicals are not controlled at the source, they will be left to municipal wastewater treatment plants to deal with. And given that no current wastewater plant is equipped to filter PFAS chemicals at this time, this means that the municipalities will themselves be discharging unsafe pollutants into our waters or, worse, into the surrounding communities during sewer system overflows.

For these and many other reasons we support Senate Bill 956 and the need to begin focusing on controlling the source of PFAS chemicals that have been and continue to sicken and kill Marylanders.

For more information, you may reach Evan Isaacson at evan@chesapeakelegal.org.

Maryland Catholic Conference_FAV_SB956.pdf Uploaded by: Jenny Kraska



February 20, 2024

SB 956

Environment – Water Pollution Control – Protecting State Waters from PFAS Pollution (Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act)

Senate Education, Energy, and the Environment Committee

Position: Favorable

The Maryland Catholic Conference (MCC) offers this testimony as in support of Senate Bill 956. The Catholic Conference is the public policy representative of the three (arch)dioceses serving Maryland, which together encompass over one million Marylanders. Statewide, their parishes, schools, hospitals, and numerous charities combine to form our state's second largest social service provider network, behind only our state government.

Senate Bill 956 would establish discharge limits for PFAS chemicals in any water and would require significant industrial user to reduce PFAS chemicals from the water it discharges to publicly owned treatment works and to store, reuse and dispose of certain PFAS chemicals in a certain manner.

PFAS are resistant to degradation and bioaccumulate in the environment and the human body. Prolonged exposure to these chemicals can cause cancer, thyroid problems, birth defects, and reproductive, developmental, and immune system disruptions. Of particular concern is a growing body of research that indicates pregnant and nursing mothers, and their children, are especially affected. Such exposure occurs through polluted drinking water, food, soil, dust and the use of consumer products manufactured using PFAS. The widespread utilization of these "forever chemicals" has resulted in significant environmental contamination.

In the encyclical letter "Laudato Si'," Pope Francis calls for an integral ecology that recognizes the interconnectedness of environmental, social, and economic concerns. When industrial activities contaminate our water sources with PFAS chemicals, they jeopardize the health and dignity of communities that rely on clean water for drinking, agriculture, and recreation. Legislation requiring significant industrial users to reduce PFAS discharges to publicly owned treatment works is a crucial step towards safeguarding this precious resource and upholding the common good.

Responsible management of PFAS chemicals is essential to prevent further harm to the environment and human health. Storage, reuse, and proper disposal of these hazardous substances are necessary to prevent their accumulation in soil, water, and food sources. By imposing requirements on significant industrial users to manage PFAS in a responsible manner, we can mitigate the risks posed by these chemicals and protect the integrity of creation for future generations.

The Conference appreciates your consideration and, for these reasons, respectfully requests a favorable report on Senate Bill 956.

eee - 133511016874744179 - Legislative PFAS Briefi Uploaded by: Katie Fry Hester



PFAS in Maryland

January 30, 2024 Maryland Department of Environment Education, Energy & the Environment Committee

Suzanne Dorsey, Deputy Secretary Lee Currey, Director Water & Science Administration Tyler Abbott, Director Land & Materials Administration



- MDE is committed to ensure every community has access to clean drinking water
- Data and science driven process to reduce exposure risk
- While PFAS are pervasive in the environment, the risk is not high everywhere, but where it is action is taken
- Federal infrastructure funds are critical for public water systems
- The absence of a regulatory standard creates challenges
- MD's Action Plan describes what has been completed, what is ongoing and what gaps remain



What are PFAS?



- 7,000 human-made compounds
- Heat resistant/flame retardant
- Oil/grease resistant
- Water resistant
- Highly resistant to degradation
- Persistent in the environment
- PFOA and PFOS are terminus and stable end products









Eating food grown or raised near facilities that make or use the chemicals



Eating food packaged in material that contains the chemicals



Using stain-resistant carpeting and waterresistant clothing







Decreased vaccine effectiveness in children

Increased risk of high blood pressure or pre-eclampsia in

pregnant women

Increased risk of kidney or testicular cancers



Prevalence Over Time

• Since 2002,

production and use of PFOS and PFOA in the United States have declined

 As the use of some PFAS has declined, some blood PFAS levels have gone down as well



National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES)



Maryland's Goals

A collaboration across state agencies designed to protect our communities

- Understanding the risk through sampling, science, and assessment
- **Communicating the risk** through public information, and outreach
- **Reducing unacceptable risks** through appropriate funding, regulation, partnerships, and agency coordination





- October 2020: PFAS Science Roundtable
- 2020-2022: Phase I-IV drinking water reports
- December 2022: PFAS Chemicals Report
- December 2023: PFAS Action Plan



Data Sampling and Testing

- MD developed collection methods and standard operating procedures
- Partnering with Department of Health Laboratories Administration
- Testing drinking, ground, surface water and fish
- First lab to accredit 1633, part of multi-lab validation to US EPA standards





Public Water Systems

- Monitoring for all 437 systems
- Four phases completed since 2020
- 63 systems exceed maximums
- 14 systems awarded funding
- EPA proposed maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) at 4 parts per trillion
- EPA to finalize regulation in 2024





Public Water Systems







- ~10% of Maryland's population
- Not regulated
- Approach is source driven
- Homeowners responsible for maintenance and testing
- Fact sheet on our website
- Developing outreach plan with local health departments





Fish Consumption Guidelines

- Three-year study on fish tissue completed in 2023
- 73 new advisories issued (457 total)
- Virtual meeting held with stakeholders available on YouTube
- No advisories for crabs or oysters
- Meal limits range from "no limit" to "do not eat"
- Resources available online for recreational and subsistence fishermen





Remedial Investigations have been initiated at:

- Joint Base Andrews (JBA)
- Naval Air Station Pax River
- Webster Field Annex
- National Research Lab, Chesapeake Bay Detachment (NRL)

Not listing these chemicals as hazardous substances makes it difficult to require action





Wastewater Treatment Plants

- Conducting monitoring through voluntary sampling by facilities (over 100 facilities to date)
- Influent, effluent, and biosolids samples analyzed
- Facilities with elevated levels required to conduct monitoring and develop a source tracking and minimization plan (14 facilities)
- Land application of biosolids policy









- MDA submitted study to the General Assembly Nov 2023 indicating the need for developing more reliable testing methods
- MDE is considering actions to address PFAS in the general permit for pesticide application, which will be up for renewal in 2025



Product Bans

- Sale, use, manufacturing, or distribution of rugs, carpets and food packaging containing PFAS prohibited as of Jan. 1, 2024
- Public notifications will include postings on our website and letters directed to manufacturers, vendors and other affected entities
- Firefighting foam takeback program





Air Emissions



- Over 2,000 commercial and industrial facilities are potential sources
- Can contaminate groundwater and surface water
- Evaluating test data to determine if further actions are required to control PFAS emissions from these sources



- MDE is committed to ensure every community has access to clean drinking water
- Data and science driven process to reduce exposure risk
- Where the exposure risk is high action is taken
- Federal infrastructure funds are critical for public water systems
- The absence of a regulatory standard creates challenges
- MD's Action Plan describes what has been completed, what is ongoing and what gaps remain

FINAL _ PFAS Bill Testimony.docx.pdf Uploaded by: Katie Fry Hester
KATIE FRY HESTER Legislative District 9 Howard and Montgomery Counties

> Education, Energy, and Environment Committee

Chair, Joint Committee on Cybersecurity, Information Technology and Biotechnology

February 19, 2024



Annapolis Office James Senate Office Building 11 Bladen Street, Room 304 Annapolis, Maryland 21401 410-841-3671 · 301-858-3671 800-492-7122 Ext. 3671 KatieFry.Hester@senate.state.md.us

THE SENATE OF MARYLAND Annapolis, Maryland 21401

Chairman Feldman, Vice-Chair Kagan, and members of the Energy, Education, and Environment Committee:

Thank you for considering SB956, Protecting State Waters from PFAS Pollution Act. Since the Maryland Department of Environment (MDE) produced the PFAS Action Plan and briefed the committee on January 30th, 2024, we have been working closely together to outline the necessary next steps in the regulatory process. As a result of those conversations, we have agreed to a consensus amendment that strikes the bill as introduced, and instead creates a timeline and process to empower MDE to develop standards and plans for continuing their work of regulating PFAS discharge from large industrial users.

Before we get to the amended bill, I'd like to remind the committee that during the PFAS briefing on January 30, 2024, we were informed that PFAS causes significant health risks including higher cholesterol, impacts on liver enzymes, decreased vaccine effectiveness in children, increased risk of high blood pressure, and decreased infant birth weight. During the hearing, MDE provided an update on its monitoring of all 437 public water systems to address PFAS contamination. They found that 63 of these systems exceed the maximum contaminant levels for PFAS proposed by the EPA, which are set at a draft level of 4 parts per trillion. Of these, 14 systems are in the process of being awarded \$40 million to address the contamination.

It is critical we address the contamination in the remaining 49 systems and prevent future contamination. We're constrained by the remaining federal funds for the clean-up. If it took \$40 million to address 14 systems, the remaining \$80 million is likely not enough for the remaining 49 systems. I have attached a list by county of the contaminated public water systems to my testimony (see Table 1 below).

During the PFAS hearing, we delved into the intricacies of MDE's PFAS Action Plan, which was required by the George "Walter" Taylor Act of 2023. Section 5.6 of the Action Plan states that MDE will "Incorporate new permit requirements for industrial dischargers with reasonable potential to violate water quality for PFAS." During the hearing, MDE confirmed their intention to update the Significant Industrial User (SIU) permits to encompass regulations over the

discharge of PFAS, underscoring a proactive and reasonable approach to safeguarding our water from these harmful contaminants.

Therefore, AS AMENDED, Senate Bill 956 is the next step in implementing this intent within the PFAS Action Plan. As amended, SB956 requires MDE to:

- Work with Publicly Owned Treatment Works and Significant Industrial Users with pretreatment permits to identify the facilities that currently and intentionally use PFAS chemicals.
- Develop monitoring and testing criteria for those facilities.
- Work with Publicly Owned Treatment Works and Significant Industrial Users to develop action levels and mitigation plans for addressing PFAS contamination.
- Develop a standard MCL for discharge of individual PFAS that are known to be harmful, as well as total PFAS.
- Produce an interim report or update the PFAS Action Plan with progress made on these requirements by December 1, 2024.

Ensuring our water's purity isn't just a policy choice—it's a non-negotiable commitment to the health and safety of our communities. The Protecting State Waters from PFAS Pollution Act, as amended, is an essential next step to advance our state's public health and clean water and is necessary to avoid millions of dollars of damage. For these reasons, I respectfully request a favorable report of SB 956.

Sincerely,

Komi Fr Hest

Senator Katie Fry Hester Howard and Montgomery Counties

	County	PWSID	System Name	
1	ANNE ARUNDEL	MD1021462	MAYO CENTER AND APARTMENTS	
2	BALTIMORE	MD0030011	SUNNYBROOK	
3	BALTIMORE	MD0030202	CHAPEL HILL NURSING CENTER	
4	BALTIMORE	MD0030204	GRANITE MOBILE HOME PARK	
5	CARROLL	MD0060003	TOWN OF HAMPSTEAD	
6	CARROLL	MD006i0006	TOWN OF MANCHESTER	
7	CARROLL	MD0060007	TOWN OF MOUNT AIRY	
8	CARROLL	MD0060012	CITY OF TANEYTOWN	
9	CARROLL	MD0060013	TOWN OF UNION BRIDGE	
10	CARROLL	MD0060015	CITY OF WESTMINSTER	
11	CARROLL	MD0060202	GAITHER MANOR APARTMENTS	
12	CARROLL	MD0060203	WOODBINE VILLAGE MOBILE HOME PARK	
13	CARROLL	MD0060208	LAKEVIEW MHP LLC	
14	CARROLL	MD0060211	PLEASANT VIEW NURSING HOME	
			ROCKBROOK VILLAGE MOBILE HOME	
15	CARROLL	MD0060214	PARK	
			SULLIVANS MOBILE HOME PARK	
16	CARROLL	MD0060215	COMMUNITY	
17	CARROLL	MD0060218	TWIN ARCH MOBILE HOME PARK	
18	CARROLL	MD0060213	RESERVOIR TRAILER PARK	
19	CECIL	MD0070011	TOWN OF ELKTON	
20	CECIL	MD0070015	ELKTON WEST	
21	CECIL	MD0070025	HARBOR VIEW	
22	CECIL	MD0070202	GOLDEN KAY APARTMENTS	
23	CECIL	MD0070204	WEST NOTTINGHAM ACADEMY	
24	CECIL	MD0070207	BAY COUNTRY ESTATES MOBILE HOME PARK	
25	CECIL	MD0070209	BENJAMINS VILLAGE/HOMESTEAD M.H.P.	
			CHESAPEAKE ESTATES MOBILE HOME	
26	CECIL	MD0070211	PARK	
27	CECIL	MD0070213	WHISPERING PINES MOBILE HOME PARK	
28	CECIL	MD0070214	CONOWINGO MOBILE HOME PARK	
29	CECIL	MD0070223	MAPLE HILL MOBILE ESTATES	
30	CECIL	MD0070233	STONEY CHASE/ ROCK CREEK M.H.P.S	

Table 1: Community Water Systems with Detected PFAS above Proposed MCL (Highlighted if Selected for Funding)

			MISTY MEADOWS 1 / HIGHLAND HILLS
31	CECIL	MD0070247	M.H.P.
32	CECIL	MD0070248	MAYBELLE MANOR MOBILE HOME PARK
33	FREDERICK	MD0100004	BRIERCREST APARTMENTS
34	FREDERICK	MD0100013	FOUNTAINDALE SOUTH
35	FREDERICK	MD0100018	TOWN OF MIDDLETOWN
36	FREDERICK	MD0100019	MOUNT SAINT MARYS UNIVERSITY
37	FREDERICK	MD0100020	TOWN OF MYERSVILLE
38	FREDERICK	MD0100023	TOWN OF THURMONT
39	FREDERICK	MD0100027	TOWN OF WOODSBORO
40	FREDERICK	MD0100032	BRADFORD ESTATES
41	FREDERICK	MD0100207	GILBERTS MOBILE HOME PARK
42	FREDERICK	MD0100210	POLINGS MOBILE HOME PARK
43	FREDERICK	MD0100212	SPRING VIEW MOBILE HOME PARK
44	HARFORD	MD0120001	CITY OF ABERDEEN
45	HARFORD	MD0120003	MARYLAND AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
46	HARFORD	MD0120007	CAMPUS HILLS WATER WORKS
47	HARFORD	MD0120009	TOWN OF DARLINGTON
48	HARFORD	MD0120011	GREENRIDGE SUBDIVISION
49	HARFORD	MD0120014	LAKESIDE VISTA
50	HARFORD	MD0120204	CLEAR VIEW MOBILE HOME PARK LLC
51	HARFORD	MD0120208	FOUNTAIN GREEN MOBILE HOME PARK
52	HARFORD	MD0120210	R & R ESTATES
53	HARFORD	MD0120213	QUEENS CASTLE MOBILE HOME PARK
54	HARFORD	MD0120214	DARLINGTON MOBILE HOME PARK
55	HADEODD	MD0120215	SWAN HARBOUR DELL MOBILE HOME
56	MONTGOMERY	MD0120213	
57	WASHINGTON	MD0210204	FL RANCHO MORILE HOME PARK
58	WASHINGTON	MD0210204	WOODLAND TRAILER PARK
59	WICOMICO	MD0220203	CITY OF SALISBURY
60	WICOMICO	MD0220004	CITY OF FRUITI AND
61	WICOMICO	MD0220204	GATEWAY VILLAGE MOBILE HOME PARK

62	WICOMICO	MD0220218	BOH-NAK MOBILE HOME PARK
			NAYLOR MILL VILLAGE MOBILE HOME
63	WICOMICO	MD0220221	PARK
			COLONIAL MILL ESTATES MOBILE HOME
64	WICOMICO	MD0220223	PARK

Maryland PFAS Action Plan December 2023 (1).pdf Uploaded by: Katie Fry Hester

Position: FAV





Maryland PFAS Action Plan

Prepared for: The Maryland General Assembly Annapolis, MD

December 2023

MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF THE ENVIRONMENT 1800 Washington Boulevard | Baltimore, MD 21230 | <u>mde.maryland.gov</u> 410-537-3314 | 800-633-6101 x3314 | TTY Users: 7-1-1

MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 201 W. Preston Street | Baltimore, MD 21201 | <u>health.maryland.gov</u> 410-767-6500 | 1-877-463-3464

Wes Moore, Governor | Aruna Miller, Lt. Governor | Serena McIlwain, MDE Secretary | Laura Herrera Scott, MDH Secretary

Table of Contents

List of Tables	1
List of Abbreviations	1
1.0 Introduction	1
2.0 Purpose	1
3.0 PFAS Actions Summary	1
4.0 Minimizing Environmental Exposure to PFAS Chemicals	11
4.1 Drinking Water	11
4.2 Fish Consumption	15
4.3 Product Bans for AFFF, food packaging, Rugs/Carpet, and Cosmetics	21
4.4 Air Emissions	22
5.0 Minimizing Future Releases of PFAS Chemicals	25
5.1 Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plants	25
5.2 Biosolids	29
5.3 Industrial and Municipal Wastewater Spray Irrigation Facilities	32
5.4 Landfills	34
5.5 Septic Systems	36
5.6 Industrial Facilities (Wastewater and Stormwater)	36
5.7 Pesticides	40
6.0 Identifying, Assessing, and Cleaning up Historical Releases of PFAS Chemicals	44
6.1 Source Identification	44
6.2 Federal Facilities & National Priority List (NPL) Sites	48
7.0 Assessing Environmental Justice and Health Equity Concerns	55
7.1 Summary of EJ-Related Actions	55
8.0 Education and Communication on PFAS Risks	56
8.1 Summary of Public Education/Communication Related Actions	56
9.0 Analytical and Field Services	57
9.1 MDH Laboratories Administration	57
9.2 MDE Field Services	59

List of Tables

Table 1: PFAS Actions

Table 2: Fish Consumption Advisory Thresholds

Table 3: Piscataway Creek Fish Consumption Advisories

Table 4: Fish Consumption Advisories (2023)

List of Abbreviations

AFFF	Aqueous Film-Forming Foam
APHL	Association of Public Health Laboratories
ATSDR	Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry
BMP	Best Management Practice
BRAC	Base Realignment and Closure
CCR	Consumer Confidence Report
CDC	Centers for Disease Control
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations
CHS	Controlled Hazardous Substances
COMAR	Code of Maryland Regulations
CWA	Clean Water Act
CWS	Community Water Systems
DoD	Department of Defense
DRMO	Defense Reutilization and Marketing Office
DSMOA	Defense-State Memorandum of Agreement
DWM	Drinking Water Monitoring Section
DWSRF	Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
EC	Emerging Contaminants
EJ	Environmental Justice
EPA	Environmental Protection Agency
FARD	Federal Assessment and Remediation Division
FCA	Fish Consumption Advisories
FIERP	Field Investigations and Environmental Response Program
FTE	Full-time Employees
GDPD	Groundwater Discharge Permits Division
GenX	Hexafluoropropylene oxide dimer acid or HFPO-DA
GIS	Geographic Information Systems
GWUDI	Groundwater Under Direct Influence
HB	House Bill
HDPE	High Density Polyethylene
HFPO-DA	Hexafluoropropylene oxide dimer acid or GenX
I&GPD	Industrial and General Permits Division
IR	Integrated Report

ISPD	Industrial Stormwater Permits Division
LMA	Land and Materials Administration
LRP	Land Restoration Program
MCL	Maximum Contaminant Level
MD	Maryland
MDA	Maryland Department of Agriculture
MDE	Maryland Department of the Environment
MDH	Maryland Department of Health
MDNR	Maryland Department of Natural Resources
MES	Maryland Environmental Service
MOU	Memorandum of Understanding
MRL	Minimum Risk Level
MTBE	Methyl tert-butyl ether
NAS	Naval Air Station
NDAA	National Defense Authorization Act
NPDES	National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
NPL	National Priority List
NSAA	Naval Support Activity Annapolis
NSF	Naval Support Facility
NTNC	Non-Transient Non-Community Systems
OCPSF	Organic chemicals, plastics & synthetic fibers
OSDS	Onsite Sewage Disposal Systems
PA	Preliminary Assessment
PAYGO	Pay-As-You-Go
PCB	Polychlorinated biphenyls
PFAS	Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances
PFBS	Perfluorobutane sulfonate
PFHxS	Perfluorohexanesulfonic acid
PFNA	Perfluorononanoic acid
PFOA	Perfluorooctanoic acid
PFOS	Perfluorooctanesulfonic acid
POE	Point of Entry to Distribution
POTW	Publicly Owned Treatment Works
POU	Point of Use
PTFE	Polytetrafluoroethylene
PWS	Public Water System
RI	Remedial Investigation
RP	Responsible Party
SAR	State Assessment and Remediation
SB	Senate Bill
SDC	Small Disadvantaged Communities
SDWA	Safe Drinking Water Act
SI	Site Investigation
SVOC	Semivolatile Organic Compounds

SW	Stormwater
SWA	Solid Waste Acceptance
SWPPP	Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan
TBEL	Technology-Based Effluent Limitations
TCE	Trichloroethylene
TMDL	Total Maximum Daily Load
TNC	Transient Non-Community System
UCMR5	Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule 5
VOC	Volatile Organic Compounds
WIC	Women, Infants, and Children
WPPRP	Wastewater Pollution Prevention and Reclamation Program
WQBEL	Water Quality-Based Effluent Limits
WSA	Water and Science Administration
WSP	Water Supply Program
WTP	Water Treatment Plant
WWTP	Wastewater Treatment Plant

1.0 Introduction

The George "Walter" Taylor Act requires the Maryland Department of the Environment and the Maryland Department of Health, on or before December 31, 2023, to jointly prepare, in coordination with other relevant State agencies, the federal government, local governments, and the public, and submit to the General Assembly, in accordance with § 2–1257 of the State Government Article, a PFAS Action Plan to identify **strategies**, **actions**, and **funding alternatives** to:

(1) minimize environmental exposure to PFAS chemicals for Maryland residents, in addition to regulating its use in fire–fighting foam, food packaging and food packaging components, rugs, and carpets;

(2) minimize future releases of PFAS chemicals into the environment;

(3) identify, assess, and clean up historical releases of PFAS chemicals in Maryland;

(4) assess any concerns related to environmental justice, health equity, and PFAS chemical contamination; and

(5) educate and communicate to Maryland residents the risks associated with PFAS chemicals.

2.0 Purpose

The PFAS Action Plan serves as a comprehensive roadmap designed to safeguard the health and environment of Maryland's residents against the detrimental effects of PFAS chemicals. These synthetic chemicals, recognized for their longevity and resistance to degradation, have infiltrated various aspects of daily life, from drinking water to household products, posing potential health risks and environmental challenges. By implementing this plan, the state aims to identify, regulate, and mitigate the presence of PFAS in the environment, ensuring reduced exposure for its residents. Furthermore, given the extensive use and distribution of PFAS in the environment and in the economy, the plan underscores the importance of collaboration among state agencies, the federal government, local governments, and the public, to work cohesively in addressing current PFAS contamination, preventing future releases, and fostering awareness and education about these chemicals throughout Maryland.

3.0 PFAS Actions Summary

The following table provides a summary of all the PFAS actions in this report including the agency conducting the action, a description of the action, time frame for implementation of the action, current status of the action, and reference to the section in the report providing detailed information.

Table 1: PFAS Actions Summary

Agency	Category	Action	Time Frame	Status	Plan Section
MDE/ MDH	Drinking Water	Conduct PFAS monitoring of all Community Water Systems (CWSs) in Maryland. There are a total of 437 CWSs.	2020-2023	Completed	4.1
MDE	Drinking Water	Recommend that CWSs with exceedances of proposed maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) notify users, conduct additional sampling, and develop a remediation plan to reduce PFAS in their drinking water. A total of 63 CWSs exceed proposed MCLs.	2021-2025	In Progress	4.1
MDE	Drinking Water	Provide technical assistance to CWSs with exceedances of proposed MCLs and connect them with Federal funding to address PFAS contamination in their drinking water.	2021-2025	In Progress	4.1
MDE/ MDH	Drinking Water	Conduct PFAS monitoring of all Non-Transient Non-Community (NTNC) water systems in Maryland. There are over 400 NTNC water systems which include schools, offices, and daycare centers.	2023-2024	In Progress	4.1
MDE	Drinking Water	Inform NTNC water systems with exceedances of proposed MCLs and recommend actions based on EPA's proposed regulations which may include additional monitoring, public notifications, and implementation of corrective actions.	2023-2024	In Progress	4.1

MDE	Drinking Water	Provide technical assistance to NTNC water systems with exceedances of proposed MCLs and connect them with Federal and State funding to address PFAS contamination in their drinking water. Only publicly owned (non-federal) and non-profit water systems qualify for funding.	2023-2026	Not Started	4.1
MDE	Drinking Water	Develop a private well fact sheet with information and resources to assist private well owners in testing and installing treatment for their systems.	2023	Completed	4.1
MDH/ MDE	Drinking Water	Develop an outreach plan with local health departments to provide private well owners with information and resources on new well construction and existing wells.	2024	Not Started	4.1
MDH/ MDE	Drinking Water	Use an existing web-based application to identify areas of known and potential PFAS contamination throughout the State to inform the public and private well owners where testing and treatment is recommended. MDH will provide a display through its Environmental Public Health Tracking portal.	2024-2025	Not Started	4.1
MDE	Drinking Water	Consider requiring PFAS testing in Certificate of Potability (COP) for new private wells and apply proposed MCLs as thresholds to ensure drinking water is safe for consumption.	2024	Not Started	4.1
DNR/ MDH	Drinking Water	Conduct biannual PFAS monitoring of Transient Non-Community (TNC) water system at DNR's Fair Hill facility due to a known source of PFAS contamination to ensure effectiveness of treatment system and to support MDE site investigations.	2023 -	In Progress	4.1

DNR/ MDH	Drinking Water	Conduct PFAS monitoring of all DNR Water Treatment Plants (WTPs) and install treatment when PFAS levels exceed proposed MCLs.	2023 - 2024	In Progress	4.1
DNR/ MDH	Drinking Water	Conduct PFAS monitoring of all wells on DNR owned properties throughout the State.	2023 - 2025	In Progress	4.1
MDE	Fish Consumption	Conduct State-wide PFAS monitoring in fish tissue to establish fish consumption advisories.	2020 - 2023	Completed	4.2
MDE	Fish Consumption	Develop new Fish Consumption Advisory thresholds for PFAS using Center for Disease Control (CDC) reference doses.	2023	Completed	4.2
MDE	Fish Consumption	Release new Fish Consumption Advisories for PFAS. A total of 73 new advisories will be assigned to different fish species and waterbodies throughout the State.	2023	Completed	4.2
MDE	Fish Consumption	Develop a web-based PFAS-specific Fish Consumption Advisory map in addition to the current map that includes advisories for PFAS, mercury, PCBs, and pesticides.	2023	Completed	4.2
MDE/ MDH	Fish Consumption	Resume State-wide Fish Consumption Monitoring Program, monitoring for PFAS, mercury, and polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) annually in fish tissue throughout the State on a five-year cycle.	Fall 2023 -	In Progress	4.2

MDE	Fish Consumption	Release new PFAS fish tissue impairment listings in Maryland's Integrated Report (IR) for 2024. Over 40 impairment listings are currently proposed.	2024	In Progress	4.2
MDE	Product Bans	Develop an Aqueous Film Forming Foam (AFFF) take-back program. MDE is currently processing a contract with Maryland Environmental Service (MES) to facilitate this program. MES will arrange for the recovery, transportation, and disposal out-of-state of AFFF from fire departments located in Maryland.	2023 - 2024	In Progress	4.3
MDE/ MDH	Product Bans	Release public notification of the requirements in the George "Walter" Taylor Act to ban the use, manufacturing, sale, or distribution of AFFF in rugs/carpet, and food packaging. Public notification will include postings on the MDE website, and letters directed to manufacturers, vendors, distributors, and other potentially affected entities informing them of the requirements of the Act. MDE will work with MDH to ensure actions in food packaging are coordinated with food manufacturing and processing requirements.	Fall 2023 - 2024	In Progress	4.3
MDE	Air Emissions	Evaluate whether air emissions contribute to PFAS contamination in public water supplies or waterbodies impaired for fish tissue when source trackdown investigations are required. If potential air sources are found, MDE would implement measures to gather records and test data, when feasible, to determine if further actions are required.	2024 -	Not Started	4.4

r	1		1		
MDE/ MDH	Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plants (WWTPs)	Conduct PFAS monitoring of Wastewater Treatment Plants (WWTPS) through voluntary sampling by facilities and surveys conducted by MDE. Over 100 facilities have had their influent, effluent, and biosolids sampled for PFAS.	2020 -	In Progress	5.1
MDE	Municipal WWTPs	Municipal WWTPs with elevated PFAS levels in their effluent and biosolids are required to conduct additional monitoring and submit a comprehensive PFAS source tracking and minimization plan. Currently, 14 National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) municipal WWTP permits include these requirements. If applicable, coordination with the industrial pretreatment program will be required to address industrial facilities discharging PFAS to the sanitary sewer system.	2021 -	In Progress	5.1
MDE	Municipal WWTPs	Connect municipal WWTPs with Federal and State funding that require financial assistance to address PFAS contamination in their effluent and biosolids.	2024 -	Not Started	5.1
MDE/ MDH	Biosolids	Conduct PFAS monitoring of all WWTPs that have their biosolids used for land application (Class B facilities). There are currently 35 facilities in Maryland.	2023	Completed	5.2
MDE	Biosolids	Implement a hold on the issuance of new sewage sludge utilization permits until a policy decision is made on what levels of PFAS are acceptable for land application.	2023 - 2024	Policy changes In Progress	5.2

MDE	Biosolids	Require all out-of-state sewage sludge utilization permittees to submit PFAS data from their biosolids.	re all out-of-state sewage sludge utilization permittees to the sewage sludge s		5.2
MDE	Biosolids	Conduct a comprehensive review of all biosolids data and determine how to proceed with land application permits.	2023 - 2024	In Progress	5.2
MDE/ MDH	Biosolids	Consider conducting PFAS monitoring of municipal WWTPs that have their biosolids used in commercial fertilizer and composting operations (Class A facilities) if future research demonstrates these sources pose a risk to public health and the environment.	2024 -	Not Started	5.2
MDE/ MDH	Spray Irrigation Facilities	Conduct PFAS monitoring of all WWTPs that discharge their effluent through spray irrigation. There are currently 46 active facilities in Maryland.	2023	Completed	5.3
MDE/ MDH	Spray Irrigation Facilities	Conduct a comprehensive review of all effluent data from spray irrigation facilities and select a facility with elevated levels of PFAS for a pilot study to assess the impacts of PFAS in soil and groundwater.	2023 - 2024	In Progress	5.3
MDE	Landfills	Include PFAS monitoring requirements in Refuse Disposal Permits for leachate, surface water and groundwater for active facilities, and for closed facilities still required to perform monitoring. If future monitoring reveals PFAS contamination at levels of concern, existing regulations can be used to require investigation and remediation.	2024	Not Started	5.4
MDE	Septics	Consider developing a pilot study and action plan to characterize	2024	Not Started	5.5

		PFAS levels in septic systems throughout the State from residential, commercial, and industrial sites.			
MDE	Industrial Facilities	Implement voluntary survey for industrial facilities regulated under the general permit for industrial stormwater to identify sources of PFAS in their activities. Survey indicated that 14 % of facilities that responded had sources of PFAS on-site.	2021	Completed	5.6
MDE	Industrial Facilities	Implement a requirement in the new General Permit for Industrial Stormwater (issued February 2023) that all industrial facilities identify potential sources of PFAS that could be exposed to stormwater and address these sources in their Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plans (SWPPPs).	2023 - 2024	In Progress	5.6
MDE	Industrial Facilities	Incorporate new permit requirements for industrial dischargers (surface, groundwater or stormwater) with reasonable potential to violate water quality for PFAS. Each permit is being evaluated upon renewal and specific requirements will be determined on a case-by-case basis.	2021 - 2027	In Progress	5.6
MDE	Industrial Facilities	Provide oversight to counties and municipalities with delegated authority over pretreatment permits for industrial facilities. Monitoring may be required at these facilities discharging to the sanitary sewer system when there is reasonable potential for these facilities to be the cause of elevated PFAS levels at WWTPs. As the approval authority, MDE will also provide guidance to the delegated authorities as necessary to ensure all appropriate standards and/or limitations are enforced.	2024 -	Not Started	5.6
MDE	Pesticides	MDE is considering actions to address PFAS in the general permit for pesticide application which will be up for renewal in 2025. MDE	2025	Not Started	5.7

		also plans to review the findings of the pesticide study to potentially inform actions in the general permit.			
MDE/ MDH	Source Identification	Develop and implement a framework to address environmental impacts of PFAS using a two-prong adaptive strategy to track down sources of ongoing and historic PFAS releases: 1) Investigations of potential PFAS sources in areas of known drinking and surface water impacts, focusing on potential public health risks to Maryland residents, and 2) Investigations of known or suspected PFAS use and storage areas to identify and mitigate historic and ongoing releases of PFAS to waters of the state.	2023 -	In Progress	6.1
MDE	Federal Facilities/ National Priority List (NPL) Sites	Work with the U.S. Department of Defense (DoD) and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) to assess, remediate and monitor DoD sites and private National Priority List (NPL) sites in Maryland where PFAS are present. DoD provides funding to MDE to oversee assessment, remediation, and monitoring of military installations.	2018 -	In Progress	6.2
MDH	Analytical Services	Bring on and/or develop new PFAS testing methods as needed to provide laboratory services to MDE and other State agencies to analyze any needed samples for PFAS in support of monitoring surveys and investigations to characterize PFAS levels and to identify, control, and remediate sources of PFAS contamination impacting the environment and public health within the State of Maryland.	2020 -	In Progress	9.1

4.0 Minimizing Environmental Exposure to PFAS Chemicals

4.1 Drinking Water

Background

Throughout the nation, Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) have been detected in drinking water, groundwater, surface water, soils, and other environmental media. Since the 1940s, PFAS have been present in a variety of industrial and commercial applications and products because of their ability to resist heat, oil, and water.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and U.S. Centers for Disease Control (CDC) and Prevention Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDR) continue to investigate the human health impacts of chronic exposure to PFAS. According to ATSDR, studies have suggested that chronic exposure to two PFAS, PFOA and PFOS, may be linked to: increased cholesterol levels, increased risk of high blood pressure or pre-eclampsia in pregnant women, changes in liver enzymes, decreased vaccine response, and small decreases in infant birth weights. Additionally, the EPA has classified PFOA and PFOS as having potential carcinogenic effects in humans.

Maryland Department of the Environment's (MDE) earliest efforts to assess PFAS in drinking water were primarily fueled by federal initiatives, specifically the testing required by EPA under the Third Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule (UCMR 3). That effort in 2012-2015 identified only one Public Water System (PWS) in Maryland with quantifiable levels of PFAS above the 2012/2015 PFOA+PFOS limits of detection of 20-40 ppt. Due to increasing understanding of human health risks, public concern surrounding this group of compounds, improved analytical methods and lower limits of detection, MDE initiated its multi-phased PWS Study in 2020. The study phases are described in the sections below.

In March 2023, the EPA published proposed enforceable limits in drinking water for PFOA and PFOS at 4 parts per trillion (ppt) each. In addition, EPA published a proposed Hazard Index for four PFAS (PFNA, PFHxS, PFBS, and HFPO-DA (GenX)). This Hazard Index is based on the following Health-Based Water Concentrations: 9 ppt for PFHxS, 10 ppt for PFNA, 10 ppt for HFPO-DA (GenX), and 2,000 ppt for PFBS.

Throughout this process, MDE has worked closely with other state and federal agencies, particularly the Maryland Department of Health (MDH) and its Laboratories Administration, to evaluate and assess the contamination and health implications of PFAS in drinking water.

MDE's Water Supply Program (WSP) provided a Resource Investment Plan to EPA in May 2022. The staffing levels described in that plan will be sufficient to perform the work described in this report. As described in that plan, additional funding may be needed to support these positions.

Community Water Systems

In September 2020, MDE's WSP initiated its multi-phased PWS study for PFAS to better understand the occurrence of PFAS in state public drinking water sources. MDE determined that Community Water Systems (CWS) were at the highest risk of long-term exposure; therefore, the PWS study began by focusing on CWSs. CWSs are public water systems that supply water to the same population year-round. In Maryland, 89% of the state population, approximately 5.4 million individuals, is served by CWSs. During phases 1-3, every CWS that supplies its own water to its customers was sampled. A total of 437 CWSs were sampled. Phase 4 was used to evaluate and confirm the occurrence of PFAS in the drinking water of CWSs that had previous detections of PFOA and PFOS during Phases 1-3. MDE-WSP collaborated with MDE field services and the MDH to collect and analyze all drinking water samples during the four phases. A total of 126 CWS were sampled during Phase 4; 63 of those systems had levels that exceeded one or more proposed Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs). Approximately 165,000 individuals are served under these 63 systems, which is approximately 3% of the population served by CWSs. WSP worked with water systems with levels of PFAS above EPA's proposed regulations and recommended that these systems notify their customers, conduct additional sampling of affected sources, and develop a plan for reducing the PFAS levels in their drinking water. Reduction strategies recommended included:

- Taking impacted sources offline
- Connecting to a nearby system (regionalization)
- Developing alternative sources of drinking water
- Installing treatment to remove PFAS

WSP has been providing technical assistance to systems and connecting them with funding available through the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (Bipartisan Infrastructure Law), including the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund for Emerging Contaminants (DWSRF-EC) and the Emerging Contaminants in Small or Disadvantaged Communities (EC-SDC) Grant. During the funding process, the system's EJ score is taken into consideration; however it is MDE's goal to fund all PFAS related projects that are submitted.

In response to the EPA's March 2023 announcement of proposed regulations for six of the PFAS compounds, MDE required all systems sampled during 2022 to include PFAS sampling results in the system's Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) beginning in July 2023 to inform consumers of the status of their drinking water. This requirement will be continued in upcoming years.

Public Communication

More detailed information about individual Phase sampling can be found on our website in the <u>Phase 1-4 Reports</u>.

MDE-WSP is currently developing an interactive map showing all sample data collected during the PWS study, with the goal of it eventually being available for public viewing on our website.

MDE did, in some cases, identify PFAS results that prompted additional actions. For instance, in 2021 MDE identified a Frederick County non-transient, non-community system in which the levels of Perfluorohexanesultonic acid (PFHxS) exceeded the ATSDR minimum risk level (MRL), prompting MDH to issue a Health Advisory for this compound in drinking water.

Future Actions

EPA's regulations will require all CWS and NTNCs to monitor for PFAS, likely starting in late 2026 or early 2027. NTNCs are public water systems that regularly supply water to at least 25 of the same people at least six months per year. WSP's goal is to have all CWSs and NTNCs in the state compliant when the EPA's PFAS regulations go into effect. MDE-WSP continues to work with CWSs to ensure they are on track to meet this goal.

According to the EPA, under the proposed monitoring requirements, systems will initially be required to collect two or four samples over one year, depending on the system's population size and system type. The initial monitoring results will determine the ongoing compliance monitoring requirements. These proposed ongoing monitoring requirements include either quarterly monitoring for all sample locations or reduced monitoring (once or twice every three years) for sample locations where the results fall below one-third of the MCLs. Water systems with regulated PFAS above their proposed MCLs will be required to install treatment or take other actions to reduce regulated PFAS levels in the drinking water and meet MCLs.

Fifth Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule (UCMR)

Under UCMR5, all of Maryland's public water systems serving a population of 3,300 and over will be required to sample for 29 PFAS between January 2023 and December 2025. According to the EPA, the data collected will be used to make science-based decisions and help prioritize the protection of disadvantaged communities. The sample data collected will also provide Maryland's public water systems with more information to help improve their understanding of their system's water quality. This effort is being organized and led by EPA.

Non-Transient Non-Community Water Systems (schools, offices)

Phase 5 Monitoring

Phase 5 of MDE's PWS study will sample NTNCs in the state. Phase 5 is scheduled to begin in Summer 2023, with a goal of completion by late 2024. It will consist of sampling the over 400 NTNC systems in the state. Systems located in the fractured rock region of the state (systems with sources located west of I-95), will be prioritized for sampling. Samples from this phase are being analyzed by MDH Laboratories Administration using EPA Method 533. All previous phases were analyzed by MDH Laboratories Administration using EPA Method 537.1 (See Section 9 for additional information on these analytical methods.)

Once MDE receives sampling results, systems will be informed of their results and MDE, in consultation with MDH, will recommend certain actions, based on EPA's proposed regulations for the six PFAS compounds. These may include additional monitoring, public notifications, and the implementation of corrective actions.

MDE will provide technical assistance to help systems determine the best course of action for addressing PFAS contamination. MDE will also notify systems of available funding opportunities. For publicly-owned (non-federal) and non-profit water systems, funding for remediation is available for projects addressing PFAS through the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (Bipartisan Infrastructure Law).

MDNR Facility Drinking Water Monitoring

The Maryland Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) is currently monitoring water systems at their Fair Hill facility every six months due to a known PFAS contamination source. Samples are taken before and after treatment to ensure public health in the drinking water and also to aid in tracking the groundwater contamination plume. Samples are analyzed by MDH Laboratories Administration using EPA Method 533.

MDNR has begun testing every MDNR-owned water treatment plant in both raw and processed water to identify any potential PFAS contamination. MDNR has so far monitored around 80% of their water treatment plants.

MDNR is currently developing a project to test every drinking water well on MDNR-owned property throughout the State regardless of use. Monitoring will include a thorough water quality test potentially including all priority pollutants, standard water quality parameters, bacteria, PFAS, Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE), Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB), nutrients, and potentially viruses and other environmentally concerning or enhancement factors. This project is contingent upon funding, and is expected to start in early winter.

Transient Non-Community Water Systems (parks, places of worship)

A Transient Non-Community Water System (TNC) is a water system at places such as gas stations or campgrounds where people do not remain for long periods of time. Under EPA's proposed PFAS regulations, TNCs are not required to monitor for PFAS, since the MCLs for PFAS are based on chronic exposures. At this time, MDE does not have any plans to monitor TNC. There are over 2,000 TNCs in Maryland, and MDE has considered sampling at TNC wells in order to develop a higher-resolution understanding of the prevalence of PFAS concentrations in the state's surficial aquifers. These aquifers are shallow and unconfined, directly influenced by the water table, and susceptible to contamination from the surface. TNC wells tend to be shallower than CWS wells, and there is a potential for concentrations in these wells to be different from those found in CWSs or NTNCs. This data collection effort could also be supplemented with targeted sampling of water from private wells.

Private Wells

Private wells provide water to 10% of Maryland's population. Water quality in private wells is not regulated by the state or federal government to nearly the same degree as public water systems. Private wells require construction permits to drill and are initially sampled for certain pollutants in order to issue a certificate of compliance, but there is no required ongoing water quality monitoring and application of Safe Drinking Water Act standards. MDE will consider requiring PFAS testing in the Certificate of Potability (COP) for newly constructed private wells and apply proposed MCLs as thresholds to ensure drinking water is safe for consumption. Limited sampling of PFAS in private wells has been done by MDE in support of targeted investigations. MDE-WSP will continue to provide support for these investigations if requested by LMA. For example, in the vicinity of the WL Gore facilities at Cherry Hill and Fair Hill, near Elkton, MD, MDE has sampled water from over 100 private wells. Samples were collected by MDE Field Services and were analyzed by the MDH Laboratories Administration. Private well owners are notified of the results and encouraged to connect to public water, where possible, or to install treatment systems on their water.

Public Communication

MDE has developed a private well fact sheet with information and resources to assist private well owners with the next steps. This is available on MDE's website and is included in the information sent to homeowners whose wells have been tested. MDE has also worked with MDH and local health officials, who in most cases are responsible for the regulation of private wells under delegation from the Secretary of MDE, to provide information about PFAS to private well owners. MDE plans to create an interactive mapping application to relay PFAS drinking water data and to provide information about potential and known PFAS sources to the public.

4.2 Fish Consumption

Background

Some chemicals in surface waters and sediments tend to concentrate - or bioaccumulate - in fish and shellfish. The presence of chemicals in fish and shellfish and the associated potential health risks to those individuals who consume the fish are of concern, especially vulnerable communities or populations influenced by environmental justice inequities.

All 50 states, and some U.S. territories and tribes, issue advisories to protect people from the potential health risks of eating contaminated fish caught in local waters. EPA encourages states, territories, and tribes to also issue safe eating guidelines. These guidelines tell people which fish they can eat safely and encourage eating fish and shellfish as part of a healthy diet.

Since the 1980s, MDE has issued waterbody-specific and species-specific Fish Consumption Advisories (FCAs) for PCBs, mercury, and pesticides. MDE has collaborated with many other agencies and stakeholders such as the MDH, Maryland Department of Agriculture (MDA), and the University of Maryland to produce outreach materials promoting a healthy diet through the consumption of recreationally caught fish. In recent years, MDE has focused our outreach efforts on the consumption of invasive species and working with communities with EJ concerns. Page 14 of 61 In general, fish targeted for collection have included popular recreational fish. Eels, fallfish, and other species are collected when target species are not readily available. The types of fish sampled include important predatory game species (e.g., smallmouth bass and striped bass), common recreational panfish species (e.g., white perch, bluegill, and crappie) as well as bottom-dwelling, accumulator species with relatively high fat content (e.g., carp, catfish, and American eel). A secondary goal of the monitoring program is to assess temporal and geographic trends in fish tissue contamination by obtaining the same species during revisits to the sites. When routine monitoring indicates potential hazards to the public and environment, additional monitoring of the affected area may be conducted to verify the initial findings and identify the appropriate species and size classes associated with harmful contaminant levels.

Findings from such studies are the basis for the fish consumption advisories. Because the issuance of a fish advisory is fundamentally a risk management action, factors in addition to the technical risk assessment are often considered prior to issuing fish consumption advisories (e.g., weighing the risks associated with exposure to contaminants with the benefits of including fish as part of a healthy diet).

Current actions

Fish Tissue PFAS Monitoring (3-year survey)

Because a PFAS source was identified in the watershed (Joint Base Andrews), in 2020, MDE monitored and issued PFOS-based FCAs for certain species of fish in the Piscataway watershed in Prince George's County.

Since then, MDE has initiated a statewide monitoring strategy, including targeted monitoring for PFAS in specific water bodies that have been identified as having nearby potential sources of PFAS, to determine the concentrations of PFAS contaminants in fish tissue that may require FCAs. Areas frequented by subsistence anglers and fishers were also monitored. The targeted fish samples for PFAS remain the same as those from previous collections: game/predator, panfish, and bottomfeeders as well as species known to be consumed by recreational anglers were sampled including rockfish, crabs, and oysters.

Fish Consumption Advisory Thresholds

In contrast to carcinogenic hazards, non-cancer hazards assume that toxic effects only occur after exposure is greater than some threshold level that exceeds the body's natural defense mechanisms. The Reference Dose (RfD) is a rough estimate, allowing for some uncertainty, of the daily amount people, including sensitive groups, can be exposed to without significant risk of harmful effects over a lifetime. MDE is using the CDC RfDs to calculate advisory thresholds, as the EPA has not provided recommendations on what RfDs to apply. The upper advisory threshold limit of 8 meals/month is presented in the table below.

		Upper Advisory Threshold (ug/kg)			
Contaminant	RfD	General Population (76 kg)	Women Child-Bearing Age (67 kg)	Children (14.5 kg)	
PFOS	2.0E-06	2.4	2.1	1.2	
PFOA	3.0E-06	3.6	3.2	1.8	
PFBS	3.0E-04	360.0	317.4	183.2	
PFNA	3.0E-06	3.6	3.2	1.8	
PFHxS	2.0E-05	24.0	21.2	12.2	
GenX (HPFO-DA)	3.0E-06	3.6	3.2	1.8	

Table 1: Fish Consumption Advisory Thresholds

Piscataway Fish Consumption Advisories

MDE found that fish tissue PFOS concentrations in redbreast sunfish and yellow bullhead catfish in the non-tidal portion of Piscataway Creek exceeded PFOS MDE site-specific fish consumption screening criteria. Similarly, largemouth bass in the tidal headwaters of Piscataway Creek exhibited PFOS concentrations exceeding MDE's site-specific fish consumption screening criteria.

Table 2: Piscataway	Creek Fish Consumption Advisories
---------------------	-----------------------------------

Site Description	Species Common Name	General Population (76 kg)	Women Child-bearing Age (67 kg)	Children (14.5 kg)
Non-Tidal Piscataway Creek	Yellow Bullhead Catfish	No Limit	No Limit	7
Non-Tidal Piscataway Creek	Redbreast Sunfish	1	1	1
Tidal headwaters of Piscataway Creek	Largemouth Bass	3	3	2

Fish Consumption Advisories (2023 Release)

FCAs (meal recommendations) are calculated for several of the PFAS compounds, and only PFOS levels in certain fish from specific water bodies resulted in fish consumption advisories where MDE would recommend limiting consumption for certain population groups: general population, women, and children. Samples were analyzed for many of the various PFAS compounds including 5 of the 6 PFAS proposed by EPA for National Primary Drinking Water regulation: PFOA, PFOS, PFHxS, PFBS, and PFNA. The sixth proposed PFAS Drinking Water compound, GenX, was not included in the surface water and fish tissue monitoring conducted to date, as the commercial laboratories used did not analyze for that contaminant in the PFAS chemical suite at the time. GenX (and all 39 other PFAS for which standards are available) is now included in the PFAS chemical suite analyzed by our current lab (MDH Laboratories Administration) and will be analyzed in all samples moving forward, though it is unlikely to result in any advisories as it does not generally bioaccumulate in fish.

One compound, PFOS, was identified at greater concentrations and a higher frequency than other PFAS. There are no advisory recommendations for other PFAS at this time. Overall, PCBs and mercury continue to be the fish consumption risk drivers (i.e., the contaminant that results in the fewest recommended meals consumed per month) for most species and water bodies. Of the 457 total consumption advisories in Maryland, 73 are proposed PFOS fish consumption advisories, accounting for 16% of the total.

Fish Consumption Advisories	PFOS	PCBs/Hg
"Avoid"(>1 Meal every other Month)	5	28
"No limit" (>8 Meals/Month)	10	84
Range (1 - 8 Meals per Month)	58	272
Total	73	384

Table 3: Fish Consumption Advisories (2023)

From the fall of 2020 to the fall of 2022, there were a total of 150 PFAS fish composites collected in Maryland, resulting in 106 separate consumption advisories specifically for PFAS. Of those, 73 of the collection locations resulted in Fish Consumption Advisories with PFOS as the driver, and 33 remained unchanged based on the existing contaminant drivers. It is also important to note that of the 73 PFOS advisories, 40 of those are newly sampled areas (22 new areas) or newly caught fish species in existing areas (18 new fish species) with no data available for other potential chemical contaminants.

Crabs and oysters sample concentrations of PFAS were below consumption screening criteria, therefore, no advisories are warranted. However, surveillance will continue as needed. Striped Bass (Rockfish) were specifically targeted for collection and analysis for PFAS, of the eight separate locations where PFAS were collected, seven sites had a resulting consumption advisory based on PFAS. Of those seven sites, two of the sites have multiple PFOS advisories based on different sizes of Striped Bass. It should be noted that all seven of these sites with the resulting PFAS advisories had no previous advisory. In all locations where Striped Bass had previously been collected and analyzed for PCBs and Hg, these advisories remained the same, with the same drivers.

The total cost for this analysis was \$125,360, spread out over three labs (Alpha Analytical, GEL Laboratories, and the Maryland Department of Health Laboratory) in a three-year time frame. Funding was sourced from the annual fish consumption advisory program, Watershed Protection, Restoration and Planning Program, Land Management Program, and an EPA Multi Use grant. Over 95% of the fish, crabs, and shellfish were collected by the MDE Field Investigations and Environmental Response Program, and the remaining 5% (Striped Bass targeted effort) were collected by MDNR.

Public communications

There will be a new, PFAS-specific interactive advisory map on the MDE PFAS Landing Page. In addition, there will be a PFAS Collection Layer on the Fish Consumption Advisory map. This layer shows the locations, samples collected, date, media, and results for all PFAS sampling for the Fish Consumption Advisory Program. There is also a new ability to overlay the MDE Environmental Justice (EJ) layers on the Fish Consumption Advisory map.

<u>Fish Consumption Advisories for PFAS/PFOS Layer</u>: The Fish Consumption Advisory for PFAS/PFOS sublayer shows the consumption advisory specifically for PFAS/PFOS, the waterbody, the fish part, the species, and a species photo.

Both of these maps are in addition to the regular public communications information that MDE provides, including (but not limited to) static listings of most recent fish consumption advisories, brochures to local health departments (for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) programs), local signs with links back to MDE FCA's interactive maps and static listings placed by the county (working in conjunction with MDE) at water bodies of concern.

EJ considerations

Maryland's Recreational Fish Consumption Advisories are calculated with the most vulnerable populations in mind, also known as subsistence fishing communities. Subsistence fishing typically involves communities relying on local ecosystems for their food and livelihoods. These communities are directly dependent on the health and sustainability of the environment, making them vulnerable to any environmental degradation. Environmental justice is closely linked to the fair and just implementation of policies and regulations and should be considered when making decisions because it impacts subsistence fishing communities and the overall well-being of

these communities and the sustainable use of natural resources. When selecting locations to sample for PFAS contamination, MDE worked in conjunction with MDNR to select subsistence fishing spots. MDE also plans to overlay the EJ layer (a separate MDE Web Application) onto the Fish Consumption Advisory map, so that it may be selected to show up on the map.

Fish Tissue Impairment Listing (2020/2022 IR Listings for Piscataway)

The Piscataway Targeted PFAS study concluded that PFOS is present in the non-tidal and tidal waters of Piscataway Creek at concentrations below risk-based recreational use swimming screening criteria but exceeded fish tissue PFOS consumption site-specific screening criteria. The results and conclusions from this study assisted the Water and Science Administration in listing the Piscataway Creek (tidal and non-tidal waters) as impaired in Maryland's Combined 2020-2022 Integrated Report of Surface Water Quality for elevated levels of Perfluorooctane Sulfonate (PFOS) in fish tissue.

Future actions

Statewide Fish Consumption Advisory Monitoring Program (5-year cycle)

MDE plans to add PFOS to the list of chemicals (along with PCBs and mercury) sampled on a routine (5-year cycle core sites) basis. These new advisories, where applicable, will be updated annually. MDE will also revisit sites where fish that are more likely to bioaccumulate PFAS (e.g. bass, sunfish, etc.) were unable to be collected, and target sites where newly collected WWTP effluent data is demonstrating elevated concentrations.

Fish Tissue Impairment Listings (2024 IR)

MDE anticipates several new PFOS listings in fish tissue in the 2024 IR. MDE plans to develop an approach to address these listings through a TMDL alternative using source trackdown investigations to identify, control, or remediate sources of PFAS contamination responsible for impairing the listed waterbodies.

Public Communications

MDE has given and will continue to give presentations on the latest advisory updates to local health departments, at the national fish forum (EPA), and other stakeholder events.

MDNR Fish Nursery Monitoring

MDNR has also requested that MDE collect fish from the stocking ponds for put-and-take fish. This effort will cost approximately \$3,000 to sample these locations, plus lab testing costs (MDH charges \$200 per composite sample to test fish tissue for 40 different PFAS using EPA analytical Method 1633, which is the new state-of-the-art EPA method for testing non-drinking water samples and for use in permitting (see Section 9).

MDH/Local Health Department Actions

At this time, the Fish Consumption Advisory program is poised to release an updated fish consumption advisory with PFAS-driven advisories. This updated advisory will have a full press release and coordinate with a press release from MDNR. As with other fish advisories (PCBs, mercury), MDH and Local Health Departments have followed MDE's lead and collaborated with MDE to provide information to the public on consumption advisories.

All data collected regarding consumption advisories is analyzed for potential Environmental Justice aspects, and we will continue to do so in the future. Care will be taken to involve the local health departments when vulnerable communities are implicated in fish consumption advisories.

4.3 Product Bans for AFFF, food packaging, Rugs/Carpet, and Cosmetics

Background

Aqueous Film Forming Foams (AFFF)

The sale, use, manufacturing or distribution of PFAS-containing fire-fighting foam is banned after January 1, 2024, except for use at an airport, port, or refinery, until October 1, 2024, or at a terminal, until January 1, 2028. Any use of the foam requires collection and proper disposal of the foam and any runoff, with notification of MDE within 5 days.

After October 1, 2023, any fire-fighting protective equipment that is sold must include a notice that it contains PFAS and the reason it does. The notice must be retained by the seller and the purchaser for 3 years from the date of purchase.

Rugs/Carpet

On or after January 1, 2024, no rug or carpet containing intentionally added PFAS can be sold in Maryland, and the manufacturer selling such products here must develop a certificate of compliance attesting that the floor covering complies. The certificate must be provided to MDE within 30 days of a request.

Food Packaging

On or after January 1, 2024, food packaging components that are intended for direct food contact and are composed in substantial part of paper, paperboard, or other materials originally derived from plant fibers, and contain PFAS that were intentionally added, cannot be manufactured, sold, offered for sale or distributed in Maryland. MDE can request that manufacturers provide a certification of compliance, or grant an exemption under certain circumstances. MDH Office of Food Protection is monitoring national and state activities in this area and will collaborate with MDE regarding implementation of any additional proposed actions, to ensure the continued safety of food products manufactured, processed, or distributed in Maryland.

Cosmetics

Cosmetics in Maryland are subject to regulation under Health-General, Title 21, which authorizes the Department of Health to regulate cosmetics that are considered "adulterated." Currently, MDH does not have any specific programmatic activities related to cosmetics.

Current Actions/Future Actions

AFFF Take-back Program

MDE is actively negotiating with Maryland Environmental Service (MES) to arrange for the recovery, transportation, and disposal out-of-state of PFAS-containing fire-fighting foam concentrate from fire departments located in Maryland. MDE has been allocated \$500K to fund the take-back program. However, it is unclear if this will be sufficient due to the high demand for PFAS and other hazardous waste disposal capacity. Three positions have also been authorized for MDE's Solid Waste Program to manage PFAS activities including product bans and the hiring is currently underway.

Public Communications

MDE will be undertaking public notification of the statute's requirements starting in the fall of 2023 and will develop regulations as provided for in the George "Walter" Taylor Act. Public notification will include postings on the MDE website, and letters directed to manufacturers, vendors, distributors, and other potentially affected entities informing them of the requirements of the Act. MDE will collaborate with MDH regarding any additional required regulatory actions.

4.4 Air Emissions

Background

Little is known or definitive about levels in the atmosphere or the amount or concentration of PFAS emitted from individual facilities or categories of facilities. Air emissions generally only come into focus when a water supply or water body becomes contaminated with PFAS and a search is undertaken to determine the source of the contamination.

Despite the lack of tools to measure PFAS air emissions and ambient concentrations, a review of sources that have permits to emit air pollutants that may use raw materials containing PFAS-related compounds in their process lines revealed that Maryland does not have sources that emit significant amounts of PFAS into the air through a smokestack or roof vent. From MDE's knowledge of the types of operations at facilities in Maryland that have been issued permits to emit pollutants into the air and the materials used at those facilities, Maryland does not have any sources that manufacture PFAS, nor does Maryland currently have any known sources that directly use PFAS-containing raw materials to manufacture a product. Additionally, neither the two municipal waste incinerators nor the lone medical waste incinerator in Maryland have contracts with other commercial entities or the military to burn stockpiled materials containing PFAS. Permitted Hazardous Waste Incinerators burning large quantities of PFAS

materials as a means to eliminate stockpiles of PFAS-containing foams have been identified as a significant airborne source of contamination elsewhere within the United States.

There are more than 2,000 commercial and industrial facilities across Maryland that, based on products they manage, use, treat, store, or distribute, may have released or may currently be releasing PFAS into the air. No facility in Maryland is known, however, to be a significant source of PFAS air pollution. For example, approximately one-quarter of the facilities that may be potential PFAS air emission sources are believed to be facilities that only store or distribute PFAS-containing fire-fighting products, which are activities with either zero or insignificant levels of PFAS air emissions. Fire protection, fire equipment suppliers, and fire stations are examples of such facilities.

Other facilities, based on the nature of their operations, may have used PFAS-containing products or materials and emitted PFAS at some point in the past but no longer do so because they have ceased operations. Over 400 brownfield and formerly utilized defense sites fall within this grouping. Dozens of closed industrial operations, including incinerators, a tannery, paper box, and printing companies, a shoe manufacturing company, and a few electroplaters are also included in this category. Whether any PFAS were ever emitted from any of these facilities or to what degree is not able to be determined.

A further example is carpet manufacturing. Carpet manufacturing is generally known to be a potential source of PFAS air emissions, but there are no known conventional carpet manufacturing facilities in Maryland. Maryland's carpeting industry is limited to warehouse, cleaning, sales, and distribution facilities that provide carpet products and related services, such as applying stain repellents based on customer requests. The application of the stain repellent would likely cause PFAS to be emitted into the atmosphere as fugitive emissions, but not at levels that would require an air permit. Similarly, there are no conventional oil refineries in Maryland, but there are blending and storage operations and operations that process oil in some fashion to create a product, such as biodiesel. These facilities are not known to emit PFAS, as they involve processing products at ambient or low temperatures, which is not an environment that is conducive to emitting PFAS.

There are also a significant number of facilities, such as landfills, rubble fills, and wastewater treatment plants that may take in materials containing PFAS but are not known to be significant emitters of those same PFAS. Municipal waste incinerators also take in materials that may contain PFAS. Both of Maryland's municipal waste incinerators operate at high temperatures, which is helpful in destroying long-chained PFAS compounds, and are well-controlled for particulate matter, which helps capture short-chained PFAS compounds. There is very little emission-related information in the literature about PFAS from incinerators handling normal municipal waste. The incinerators that have principally been under the microscope are those that have incinerated large volumes of products containing PFAS, such as firefighting foam stockpiles and biosolids, and caused contamination in the surrounding areas. There are no facilities of this type located in Maryland.

Chromium electroplating operations are also potential sources of PFAS air emissions, due to the use of PFAS-containing fume suppressants over the plating tanks to control emissions of

chromium VI, a highly toxic air pollutant. Maryland had 9 chromium electroplaters, but only 3 remain. In 2015, the EPA banned PFAS-containing fume suppressants, at which time two Maryland electroplaters switched to Fumertal 21, others chose to cease (or earlier ceased) chrome electroplating, and still others were too small to warrant the use of a fume suppressant. Fume suppressants by their nature are designed to prevent air emissions, so any PFAS in the suppressants would not be expected to be released into the air in any significant quantities.

MDE Regulatory Authority

The lack of information on air quality owes to the fact that an ambient air quality standard does not exist and there currently is no approved ambient monitoring method available and in use in the United States. At the individual facility level, there is no regulatory requirement to measure or estimate PFAS emissions and it is only recently that the EPA has started to develop methods to test for PFAS from individual sources. Work has been done to modify existing PFAS testing methods to measure PFAS from sources, but for only a small number of PFAS compounds and on a very limited basis. As part of its 2020 update to its PFAS Action Plan, the EPA announced it is developing new methods to test for PFAS in air and emissions. Such testing is not part of mainstream technology at this time.

Although there are some concerns related to its toxicity, PFAS has not been included as a listed Hazardous Air Pollutant and no maximum achievable control technology requirement to reduce PFAS emissions has been set for sources.

Current/Future Actions

MDE is following what is being developed at the federal level to measure PFAS emissions from individual sources. As modified or new emission test methods are developed and approved for use, they will be put to use in Maryland as the need arises. MDH Laboratories Administration has an Air Quality Lab and is poised to bring on this testing method if needed. Whether to test and to what degree will be decided later and likely be based on several factors, such as the potential risk a source may pose, the proximity of a source to an identified contaminated area or water body, and how many sources are in the same source category.

MDE is also closely following what is happening in other states that have confirmed contamination at sites where the culprit is an air emission source in an effort to understand more about PFAS and its pathways into the air and to avoid similar incidents here.

As part of MDE's comprehensive plan for understanding, communicating, and managing PFAS risk, should a water body or water supply source contain PFAS contamination at a level that triggers the need for an investigation of the source of the PFAS, MDE would evaluate whether air emissions contribute or contributed to the contamination. If potential air sources are found, MDE would implement measures to gather records and test data, when feasible, to determine if further actions are required.

5.0 Minimizing Future Releases of PFAS Chemicals

5.1 Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plants

Background

Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plants (WWTPs) play a crucial role in managing and treating wastewater generated by residential, commercial, and industrial activities within a city or municipality. These plants are designed to remove contaminants, pollutants, and pathogens from the wastewater before it is discharged back into the environment through discharges into either surface water or groundwater. The capacity and efficiency of these plants vary depending on the size of the community they serve and the level of technology used in their treatment works.

Environmental Risk

The potential PFAS risk from wastewater discharge arises from the presence of these chemicals in the effluent released by WWTPs into the environment. There are several pathways through which PFAS can enter WWTP and, eventually, the environment:

<u>Industrial Discharge:</u> Industrial processes that use or produce PFAS-containing products can release these chemicals into wastewater. Industries involved in manufacturing, firefighting, electronics, and textiles are known to be potential sources of PFAS contamination.

<u>Domestic and Commercial Sources:</u> PFAS can also enter wastewater from residential and commercial sources. Consumer products like nonstick cookware, food packaging, stain-resistant fabrics, and firefighting foams can release PFAS into household wastewater.

<u>Stormwater Runoff</u>: PFAS from various sources on the land can enter stormwater runoff, which may eventually be combined with wastewater and directed to WWTPs. This occurrence is expected to increase as a result of climate change.

Once inside the WWTP, conventional treatment processes may not effectively remove PFAS, leading to their release into the environment through treated wastewater discharges or the disposal of sludge/biosolids generated during the treatment process. This poses a significant challenge for managing PFAS contamination and protecting water sources, highlighting the need for improved treatment technologies and regulatory measures to address this emerging environmental concern. There are several potential risks associated with their discharge:

<u>Environmental Contamination</u>: If not effectively treated, PFAS can be released into the environment through the WWTP's effluent. This can contaminate surface water bodies, groundwater, and soil near the discharge point, potentially affecting aquatic ecosystems and the surrounding wildlife.

<u>Bioaccumulation:</u> PFAS are known to bioaccumulate, meaning they can build up in the tissues of aquatic organisms over time. This can lead to higher concentrations of PFAS in the food chain, with potential impacts on aquatic life and the animals that consume them, including humans.

<u>Drinking Water Contamination</u>: In areas where surface waters are used as a source of drinking water, the discharge of PFAS from WWTPs can lead to the contamination of drinking water supplies. This can pose a risk to human health if people are exposed to elevated levels of PFAS through drinking water consumption.

<u>Human Exposure</u>: PFAS contamination in surface water and soil near the discharge points can also lead to human exposure through direct contact, ingestion of contaminated water or food, or inhalation of PFAS-containing particles.

MDE Regulatory Authority

The National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit program, established under the authority of the Clean Water Act (CWA), is a federal initiative responsible for regulating point sources of pollution that release pollutants into the waters of the United States. MDE is granted delegation by the EPA to issue NPDES permits, which govern the discharge from Maryland's WWTP in accordance with COMAR 26.08.04.07. As PFAS falls under the category of pollutants within the CWA, the NPDES permit program is utilized to effectively regulate PFAS discharges and mitigate their potential environmental impact. MDH Laboratories Administration is EPA-approved to run Method 1633 for quantifying 40 PFAS in wastewater for NPDES permitting.

Current actions

Since early 2020, MDE has been conducting outreach with the municipal utilities in the state to collaborate on PFAS data collection from the municipal WWTPs. To date, through either voluntary sampling or surveys conducted by MDE, samples from more than 100 municipal wastewater facilities in the state have been collected and analyzed.

Samples have been taken from the following components in the wastewater treatment work from facilities involved in the surveys:

<u>Influent from the collection system</u>: The process begins with the collection of wastewater from homes, businesses, and industries through a network of sewer pipes. This collected wastewater is known as "raw" or "influent" wastewater.

<u>Biosolids generated from the sludge treatment process</u>: The sludge collected during the primary and secondary treatment stages contains both organic and inorganic materials. This sludge needs further treatment to stabilize it and reduce its volume. Common sludge treatment methods include anaerobic digestion, aerobic digestion, and dewatering processes. The end product of these processes is biosolids.
<u>Effluent to be discharged into receiving stream or land:</u> The final treated wastewater, after undergoing the required treatment processes, is known as "effluent".

<u>Recycled Flow:</u> A portion of the flow in the later stage of the WWTP treatment work is recycled back to an earlier stage of the treatment process (such as headworks). This is typically done by diverting a fraction of the partially treated effluent or wastewater generated by processes such as sludge dewatering/filter backwashing and combining it with the influent wastewater.

WWTP Data Assessment Process

Data collected from all facilities are being meticulously gathered and subjected to statistical analysis to establish "tiered" level baselines (e.g. 75th percentile, median, and 25th percentile) for each of the 40 PFAS chemicals scrutinized in the survey and quantified byMDH Laboratories Administration. The sampling results reported for each facility will then be compared against these tier values. Facilities found to have PFAS chemicals exceeding the median tier level will be given priority for further monitoring and source tracking/minimization efforts. This prioritization approach aims to effectively address and manage facilities with higher PFAS concentrations, ensuring a proactive approach to safeguarding the environment from potential contamination risks.

Public Communications

The results for each facility participating in the survey will be accessible to the public on the Wastewater Pollution Prevention and Reclamation Program's (WPPRP) website, ensuring transparency and public awareness. Moreover, MDE will publish the tentative determination, along with PFAS-specific requirements, for proposed discharge permits in local newspapers to encourage public comments and requests for a public hearing. This proactive approach fosters public engagement and allows stakeholders to contribute their valuable input to the permitting process.

Future Actions

The survey results will inform future permits for facilities with effluent containing elevated PFAS levels (above the overall median level baseline). Such facilities will be mandated to conduct additional monitoring of their influent, effluent, and biosolids, and MDH Laboratories Administration is EPA-approved to run Method 1633 and can serve as a reference laboratory for this program to ensure accurate results. Furthermore, the facility will be required to submit a comprehensive PFAS source tracking and minimization plan. If applicable, coordination with the industrial pretreatment program delegated to the utility will be essential. This plan will outline the specific approaches to be undertaken by the facility whenever PFAS levels in the effluent exceed the defined action levels. Additional requirements will be incorporated through permit modifications once the EPA and the Department have finalized the ambient water quality standards and biosolid application restrictions for PFAS substances. By taking these proactive measures, the permitting process aims to effectively manage and mitigate the impact of PFAS contamination, ensuring the protection of water quality and public health.

As of now, utilizing preliminary survey data and risk assessments, MDE has successfully issued over 14 NPDES municipal discharge permits (with more on the way) including specific PFAS monitoring requirements (for influent, effluent, and biosolids), as well as the mandate to develop comprehensive PFAS source tracking and minimization plans (through the coordination between their pretreatment program and industrial users). Facilities will be required to monitor and track PFAS within their treatment works in the first year of the upcoming permit cycle. This proactive approach underscores MDE's commitment to effectively minimize PFAS contamination through municipal wastewater facilities and ensure the protection of water quality and public health. These requirements are also consistent with EPA's guidance memo published in December 2022:

EPA NPDES PFAS Guidance Memo

To identify potential "hotspots" in the state's waterways and communities whose livelihood may be dependent on them, MDE will compare and evaluate monitoring results collected from the WWTPs with data gathered from ambient water quality and fish tissue surveys. This comprehensive approach aims to proactively address PFAS contamination risks and ensure the well-being of both the environment and affected communities.

The MDE's preliminary Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW) PFAS survey conducted between 2022 and 2023 has yielded valuable insights for the NPDES municipal permit division. This information has identified facilities with elevated PFAS levels in their effluent/biosolids and subsequently impose additional permit requirements, including monitoring and source tracking.

Public Communications

During the discharge permit renewal process, the notice of tentative determination published for facilities identified with elevated PFAS risk will outline proposed PFAS-specific requirements to be implemented in the permit, ensuring comprehensive awareness among all stakeholders during the public participation process. Furthermore, MDE will provide guidance to utilities facing financial challenges on how to access support from the Clean Water and Drinking Water State Revolving Funds and the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law to cover the costs associated with mitigating the risks posed by PFAS.

Municipal Groundwater Permits

To identify the need to impose monitoring requirements in municipal groundwater, discharge permits will require a risk assessment study to evaluate facilities engaged in discharging practices that have the potential to contaminate groundwater quality, posing risks to public health, food safety, and other environmental impacts. This comprehensive approach to monitoring ensures a proactive stance in safeguarding the well-being of the public and protecting the environment from potential contamination threats.

5.2 Biosolids

Background

WWTPs receive sewage sludge from residential and commercial sources. The sewage sludge is screened, dewatered, treated, and tested to produce biosolids. Biosolids are sewage sludge that has met regulatory limits for pathogens and metals to be utilized for beneficial use such as land application as a fertilizer. MDE has 55 WWTP and 242 land application sewage sludge utilization permits that regulate biosolids. MDE issues various other sewage sludge utilization permits for sewage sludge transportation, marketing, composting, incineration, storage, distribution, energy generation, or incineration.

Environmental Risk

PFAS contained in biosolids applied to fields may leach into soils. PFAS may be taken up in wildlife and livestock, then in turn to human consumption. A 2017 case in Maine found high levels of PFAS in dairy cows and the drinking water possibly due to PFAS-contaminated sewage sludge that was applied on the farm. The farmer had 20 times higher than normal PFAS levels in his blood.

MDE Regulatory Authority

COMAR 26.04.06.06C authorizes MDE to require analyses for sewage sludge constituents other than those already identified in that regulation to adequately assess the quality of sewage sludge.

COMAR 26.04.06.74 authorizes MDE to suspend a permit. If MDE does not receive the requested PFAS data, MDE may and has suspended permits.

Current actions

WWTP Biosolids and Spray Irrigation Monitoring Survey

Eighty-one (81) municipal wastewater facilities (35 associated with Class B biosolids generation and 46 associated with spray irrigation practices) were included during the 2023 PFAS Intensive Survey performed by MDE. Samples were collected from these facilities' influent, effluent, and biosolids, and analyzed by MDH Laboratories Administration using EPA Method 1633 (see Section 9).

WWTP Data Assessment

Data collected from all facilities are being gathered and analyzed statistically to establish "tiered" levels (75th percentile, median level, 25th percentile) for each of the 40 PFAS chemicals analyzed in the survey. The sampling results reported for each facility will be compared against these tier values. Facilities with PFAS chemicals exceeding the median tier level will be prioritized for additional monitoring and source tracking/minimization.

Public Communications

On 2/28/23, MDE gave a regulatory update via its website concerning PFAS in biosolids. In this update, MDE announced that it was going to put on hold all new permit applications for land-applying sewage sludge. MDE will continue to process these permit applications until more data is collected. MDE also announced that it would be seeking PFAS data from all out-of-state permittees bringing biosolids into the state of Maryland.

Sewage Sludge Utilization (Permit Hold)

MDE has received some inquiries on when decisions will be made regarding the issuance of sewage sludge utilization permits that are currently on hold. MDE has been informing stakeholders that it expects the sampling of WWTP's biosolids to be complete by the end of the third quarter of the calendar year, and a decision is expected to be made by the end of 2023.

Sewage Sludge Utilization (Out-of-State Sources)

In March of 2023, MDE sent letters to 15 out-of-state sewage sludge utilization permittees requesting that PFAS sampling data from their biosolids be submitted to MDE by May 1, 2023. MDE received data from some of these facilities. In July 2023, MDE sent follow-up letters to 9 of these permittees that did not submit the requested PFAS sampling data. Three facilities did not submit data by the August 2023 deadline provided in the letter, resulting in suspension for two of the sewage sludge utilization permits and modification for the remaining permit.

Future Actions

The reason why MDE conducted the monitoring survey of biosolids is so that MDE can make a data-driven decision on the next steps. The regulatory decision-making for sewage sludge utilization permits will depend on a comprehensive review of all survey data and relevant information, including EPA's Risk Assessment for Biosolids. The more data MDE has available to review, the better data-driven decisions can be made. MDE is aware that EPA is considering developing limits for PFAS in biosolids.

As the next step, MDE may select facilities with elevated PFAS within their biosolids found in the current survey and the sites where these biosolids are currently or were historically land applied as the subjects for comprehensive risk assessment pilot studies including assessments on the impacts to the soil and groundwaters. MDH Laboratories Administration is EPA-approved to test for 40 PFAS in soils and groundwater using EPA Method 1633, and an MOU with the Land and Materials Administration (LMA) is already in place.

POTWs with industrial users that generate PFAS in their manufacturing process will be required in their upcoming NPDES permits to monitor its influent, effluent, and biosolids and perform source tracking/minimization through their Pretreatment Programs.

Currently, only biosolids from Class B facilities that are land applied for agricultural purposes have been characterized for PFAS. MDE will consider characterizing biosolids from Class A facilities that are used in commercial fertilizer and compost if future research demonstrates these sources pose a risk to human health and the environment. MDE and MDA may also consider investigations of PFAS levels in animal manure due to potential PFAS uptake in livestock and the use of manure for land application.

Public Communications

MDE's EJ Screening Tool provides a map of historic and active land application sites.

PFAS-specific requirements will be included in the tentative determination for each permit during the public participation process to ensure all stakeholders are well informed.

Financial Assistance for Utilities

The Department will also provide guidance to utilities with financial challenges to apply for assistance from the Clean Water and Drinking Water State Revolving Funds and the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law to pay for the cost to minimize the threat of emerging contaminants such as PFAS.

5.3 Industrial and Municipal Wastewater Spray Irrigation Facilities

Background

For municipal and industrial wastewater treatment facilities, spray irrigation is an effective option for managing wastewater disposal. The practice involves spraying treated wastewater over designated land areas to allow it to infiltrate the soil and be naturally purified. This process helps in water reclamation, reducing water pollution, and can be used for agricultural or non-agricultural purposes.

Environmental Risk

While wastewater spray irrigation facilities offer several benefits, they also come with potential risks and challenges. These risks mainly concern public health, groundwater contamination, and environmental issues:

<u>Public Health Risks:</u> If the wastewater treatment process is inadequate or ineffective, spraying untreated or poorly treated wastewater can lead to the contamination of crops, soil, and nearby water sources, posing health risks to the public if consumed or inhaled. The spray irrigation process can create aerosols that carry contaminants into the air. Inhalation of these aerosols may lead to health problems for nearby residents or workers.

<u>Groundwater Contamination:</u> If not adequately treated and managed by the wastewater facilities, pollution in the wastewater can infiltrate the groundwater and contaminate drinking water sources. These pollutants can also accumulate in the soil and be taken up by crops, posing risks to food safety.

<u>Environmental Impact</u>: If effluent discharge occurs near sensitive ecosystems or aquatic habitats, introducing excessive pollutants can alter the ecosystem and harm aquatic lives.

MDE Regulatory Authority

MDE plays a crucial role in overseeing and regulating spray irrigation facilities to safeguard public health, protect the environment, and ensure sustainable water management practices. MDE is responsible for regulating the disposal of treated municipal and industrial wastewater into the State's groundwater through permit issuance (COMAR 26.08.04). These discharge permits protect groundwater by ensuring compliance with operating and maintenance conditions, best management practices, and effluent and groundwater quality testing to safeguard public health and the environment.

To address the potential PFAS contamination in spray irrigation, the groundwater discharge permit will require the implementation of the best management practices that adhere to applicable regulatory guidelines. In addition, regular monitoring and testing of the effluent used for spray irrigation will be required to ensure compliance and protect public health and the environment.

Current Actions

WWTP Monitoring Survey

Forty-six (46) WWTPs authorized to spray irrigate their wastewater (industrial and municipal) are included during the 2023 PFAS Survey performed by MDE. Samples were collected from these facilities' influent, effluent, and biosolids, and analyzed for 40 different PFAS by MDH Laboratories Administration using EPA Method 1633.

WWTP Data Assessment

Data collected from all facilities are being gathered and analyzed statistically to establish "tiered" levels (75th percentile, median level, 25th percentile) for each of the 40 PFAS chemicals analyzed in the survey. The sampling results reported for each facility will be compared against these tier values. Facilities with PFAS chemicals exceeding the median tier level will be prioritized to perform follow-up monitoring, source tracking/minimization, and other site-specific evaluations.

Public Communications

Results for each facility involved in the survey will be made available to the public on the WPPRP website.

Future Actions

Based on the survey results, future permits for facilities with effluent containing elevated PFAS levels will be required to perform additional monitoring of its influent, effluent, and biosolids. Action levels for PFAS chemicals will be defined in the permit. The facility will also be required to submit a PFAS source tracking and minimization plan to specify approaches the facility will take whenever monitored effluent shows PFAS concentrations exceeding these action levels.

Moving forward, MDE will prioritize facilities with elevated PFAS levels in their effluents, as identified in the survey, along with the associated sites where these effluents are being sprayed. MDE will conduct pilot studies that encompass thorough assessments of impacts on both soil and groundwater. MDE is currently planning to select a facility with elevated levels of PFAS to conduct an investigation beginning in 2024.

The monitoring requirements will apply to any facility engaged in discharging practices that have the potential to contaminate groundwater, posing risks to public health, food safety, and other environmental impacts. This comprehensive approach to monitoring ensures a proactive stance in safeguarding the well-being of the public and protecting the environment from potential contamination threats.

Public Communications

PFAS-specific requirements will be included in the tentative determination for each permit during the public participation process to ensure all stakeholders are well informed.

Financial Assistance for Utilities

MDE will also provide guidance to utilities with financial challenges on how to apply for financial support from the Clean Water and Drinking Water State Revolving Funds and the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law to pay for the cost to minimize the threat of emerging contaminants such as PFAS.

5.4 Landfills

Background

Solid Waste Acceptance Facilities include intermediate and final disposal sites such as landfills, waste-to-energy facilities, incinerators, waste processing facilities, and waste transfer stations. A list of active facilities can be found here: <u>Permitted Solid Waste Facilities (maryland.gov)</u>.

Processing facilities and transfer stations are generally required to perform these activities inside a building, limiting the potential escape of PFAS into the environment. They may contribute small amounts of washwater to public sanitary sewers or onsite septic systems during floor and equipment cleaning activities. Waste-to-energy and incineration facilities also generally store waste indoors and if operated properly are likely to destroy a large percentage of any PFAS chemicals that are disposed of in the waste they accept.

Some classes of landfills, notably land-clearing debris landfills that only accept stumps, brush, and other natural wood, and "clean fills" that only accept soil, rocks, and clean masonry, asphalt, and concrete from excavation activities are also unlikely to be sources of PFAS in the environment. However, municipal waste, industrial waste, and construction and demolition debris landfills may accept some PFAS-containing wastes.

Environmental Risk

The principal risk posed by solid waste acceptance facilities is generally from pollution of surface and groundwaters. Precipitation falling on active landfills soaks into the waste, and leaches pollutants out of the waste, creating a liquid termed "leachate" which generally contains both organic and inorganic pollutants of diverse kinds. Under the influence of gravity, leachate migrates towards the bottom of the landfill. All active municipal, industrial, and rubble landfills in Maryland are required to be designed and constructed with liners and leachate collection systems that prevent the direct discharge of leachate to the groundwater, but these systems do not entirely mitigate the risk.

Although it is prohibited by statutes, regulations, and permit conditions, periods of higher-than-normal precipitation can cause leachate to break out of the sides of a landfill. If left uncontrolled, leachate can run off into the landfill's sediment controls, which ultimately discharge to local streams. Landfill operators are required to look for and repair leachate outbreaks, diverting the leachate into the site's leachate control and storage system. However, the leachate collected in these systems is transported to municipal or commercial WWTPs, which can treat most contaminants but are generally not entirely effective against PFAS chemicals.

Groundwater contamination from inactive landfills: municipal, industrial, and rubble landfills that have closed since 1987 have been required to be "capped" with low-permeability layers that greatly reduce the infiltration of precipitation, and thereby limit the contribution of contaminants to the underlying groundwater. However, waste has been disposed of in landfills since the State was occupied by human beings, so there are many landfills and middens that preceded the capping requirements. Some of these, which were active after the introduction of PFAS may be leaching PFAS into the local environment.

Although no humans are believed to be exposed to groundwater contaminated by landfill leachate in Maryland at this time, it is possible that unknown or old, unmonitored sites could be having such an impact. As noted above, the disposal of leachate at wastewater treatment plants may be causing a risk through surface water or fish downstream of WWTP discharge points.

MDE Regulatory Authority

MDE has ample authority to address discharges from permitted solid waste acceptance facilities through existing water pollution control and permitting statutes and regulations. New requirements can be added to permits at renewal, or through compliance actions if a discharge is detected through monitoring. The NPDES requirements for landfills include 1) industrial stormwater permits, for landfill activities that don't mix with leachate, 2) individual industrial permits for the treatment and discharge of leachate, and 3) pretreatment and diversion of leachate to be treated at municipal wastewater treatment plants.

Current Actions

MDE is in the process of adding PFAS monitoring requirements for leachate, surface water, and groundwater to the Refuse Disposal Facilities for the active facilities, and for closed facilities still required to perform monitoring. At this time, as PFAS have not previously been subject to analysis, we are not aware of any landfill-related PFAS releases. However, PFAS chemicals are not likely to migrate by themselves but will occur with the numerous other chemicals that are contained in landfill leachate, for which monitoring and remedial activities are performed. If future monitoring reveals PFAS contamination, existing regulations can be used to require investigation and remediation. Public notification is already part of this process. Landfill permittees will be required to perform an initial assessment, followed by ongoing monitoring if a problem is revealed.

Future Actions

If EPA issues regulations rendering PFAS-containing wastes to be hazardous waste over a specified concentration, MDE will adopt that requirement into Maryland's regulations governing Controlled Hazardous Substances (CHS). Maryland's Refuse Disposal Permits already prohibit the disposal of CHS of any type, so this prohibition would be effective immediately.

If any solid waste acceptance facility is found to be causing a release of PFAS or any other contaminant above established MCLs, compliance action will be taken. For landfills, permits

include requirements for monitoring, additional investigation, and remediation if a release is detected. These include public notification and public comment and participation in the selection of remedies.

5.5 Septic Systems

Background

A plethora of groundwater contaminants are known to be associated with the use of septic systems in Maryland. While certain chemical and bio-chemical compounds may be addressed in typical Onsite Sewage Disposal Systems (OSDS) treatment and natural renovation actions in the receiving environment, compounds such as PFAS/PFOS are not typically identified through standard evaluation parameters. MDE is considering developing pilot studies for the detection, quantification, and mobilization of these contaminants on a specific and targeted scale while capturing residential, commercial, and industrial applications of OSDS. Additionally, the overall density, OSDS type, and land-use history should be considered.

There are surface water contamination risks from disposal of septic sludge at SWA facilities (landfill discharges to WWTPs or directly to surface water), with potential impacts to aquatic life and human health from fish consumption and drinking water due to source water contamination (groundwater and surface water).

MDE, through the Onsite Systems Division within the Wastewater Pollution Prevention and Reclamation Program, delegates the authority for evaluation and permitting of OSDS. Safe and adequate OSDS is the responsibility of all stakeholders for the protection of public health and the environment. Parameters for OSDS permitting outside of those associated with Groundwater Discharge Permits have focused on satisfactory treatment of wastewater discharge for the protection of ground and surface water resources with respect to contaminants such as pathogens and contaminants associated with eutrophic impacts. Additionally, potability standards for individual drinking water wells typically associated with OSDS sites in Maryland do not include chemical compounds addressed in this Action Plan, including VOC/SVOCs.

Current/Future Actions

The Onsite Systems Division should work in concert with our internal and external partners to develop a pilot study and action plan that will capture data relevant to PFAS/PFOS. For the Onsite Systems Division, this would require the bolstering of the program with at minimum, one additional full-time employee solely dedicated to this task. MDE will explore potential Federal funding sources to assist.

5.6 Industrial Facilities (Wastewater and Stormwater)

Background

MDE regulatory authority to address PFAS contamination in industrial facility discharges is based on our NPDES program under the Clean Water Act. Industrial wastewater sources can

range from process wastewater at manufacturing facilities to cooling water originating from potable water sources to remediated groundwater and more. Additionally, industrial permits must regulate the discharge of stormwater from industrial activities identified in 40 CFR 122.26.

This authority currently allows MDE to address spills, storage, and products through best management practices, narrative controls, and monitoring. The framework for applicable water quality criteria and technology standards are also in development, which will allow MDE to apply effluent limitations as applicable.

At MDE, discharges from industrial sites are managed by three separate divisions within the WPPRP:

- Groundwater Discharge Permits Division (GDPD): writes and manages permits that regulate the discharge of industrial sources to groundwater;
- Industrial Stormwater Permits Division (ISPD): writes and manages permits which primarily focus on regulating stormwater associated with industrial and construction activities as well as pesticide discharges; and
- Industrial and General Permits Division (I&GPD): writes and manages permits which primarily focus on regulating surface water and pretreatment discharges of process wastewater sources from industrial facilities.

Within their scope of activity, each of the above divisions of the WPPRP proposes to identify and limit PFAS for discharges to surface or groundwater.

Specific industrial categories have been defined by the EPA Strategic Roadmap as having reasonable potential to discharge PFAS. As a result, these categories are initially the primary focus of the WPPRP efforts. Specifically, these industrial categories include:

- Organic chemicals, plastics & synthetic fibers (OCPSF),
- Metal finishing, electroplating, electric and electronic components,
- Landfills,
- Pulp, paper & paperboard,
- Leather tanning & finishing,
- Plastics molding & forming,
- Textile mills,
- Paint formulating, and
- Airports.

Additionally, the WPPRP recognizes other site characteristics that may increase the reasonable potential for PFAS presence in discharges. Specific examples include but are not limited to facilities that use firefighting foam (currently or previously), sites where spills of industrial products have occurred, and manufacturing facilities that discharge process wastewater and currently use or formerly used PFAS-containing raw materials.

It is important that WPPRP evaluates all discharges to surface or groundwater. The migration of groundwater contamination over time can impact aquifers used for drinking water. Many surface water bodies in the State are identified for use as a public drinking water supply. In addition to

the human health concern for drinking water, the Department must also consider human health criteria, which protect those consuming fish, oysters, or other aquatic life that exists in surface water bodies. For these reasons, source reduction, elimination, and pollution prevention are key.

Past/Current Actions

Voluntary Industrial Facility Survey

MDE distributed a voluntary survey to industrial sites that are regulated under the general permit for industrial stormwater. The survey results indicate that 14% of the facilities that responded had PFAS sources on-site. This relatively high percentage of "positive" reports supports the requirements in the upcoming Industrial Stormwater General Permit (20SW) for all sites to conduct PFAS source identification and planning in the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and the urgency to get this permit issued as soon as possible.

Based on the survey, MDE is interested in considering providing vehicle maintenance shops with guidance for the cleanup of residue from fire extinguishers, and alternatives for PFAS-containing products. PFAS has been commonly used in many household and commercial products for over 50 years. Waste from these products ultimately ends up going into a landfill. The leachate from these landfills is therefore likely to contain PFAS. Leachate has to be controlled and cannot be discharged without treatment. Of the 23 active municipal solid waste landfills, 22 discharge their leachate at a WWTP. Based on the survey, these data further support the Department's decision to investigate PFAS in WWTPs. MDH Laboratories Administration has the capability to test landfill leachates for 40 PFAS compounds using EPA Method 1633 and has already done so in a study with EPA.

General Permit for Industrial Stormwater

The 20SW Industrial Stormwater permit was issued and effective February 2023. The Permit requires operators to identify potential sources of PFAS that could be exposed to stormwater and address these sources in Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plans (SWPPPs). Each SWPPP is submitted with a Notice of Intent to obtain coverage and reviewed by MDE staff prior to issuing a permit registration. SWPPPs are supposed to be "living documents," in that each facility should update its plan anytime there is a change in operations or controls.

Individual Industrial Permits and Pretreatment Permits

MDE has begun considering permit requirements for industrial surface and groundwater dischargers to determine whether PFAS is present in industrial activities. Specifically, MDE is considering requirements to monitor raw and treated leachate for municipal landfills.

Public communications

The permit requires that all permits be prepared with a full fact sheet and evaluation of all pollutants with a reasonable potential to impact water quality.

Future Actions

Evaluation of Reasonable Potential

MDE has begun to incorporate new permit requirements for industrial dischargers (surface, groundwater, or stormwater), as recommended in EPA's NPDES Memo to States (<u>Addressing</u> <u>PFAS discharges in NPDES Permits</u>). MDE began evaluating permits for reasonable potential over the past 1-2 years and each permit is evaluated as it comes up for renewal. Thus, all permits are anticipated to be evaluated by no later than 2027.

For individual permits, permit monitoring requirements are being considered based on a case-by-case analysis of reasonable potential. Reasonable potential is evaluated based on a combination of factors including but not limited to existing effluent data, industrial category, and an assessment of raw materials/chemicals that may contribute to wastewater.

Facilities that have influent or effluent data showing elevated PFAS concentrations and facilities found to be very likely to have reasonable potential based on other factors will have routine effluent (and influent, if applicable) monitoring in their NPDES permits. The frequency of monitoring will be determined on a case-by-case basis depending on the level of concern.

Facilities determined to *possibly* have reasonable potential based on factors evaluation will have requirements to collect 1-4 samples for PFAS. The exact requirements will be based on a case-by-case analysis.

Facilities determined to not have reasonable potential for PFAS will be educated on potential concerns. Existing permit conditions require notification if a permittee becomes aware of any unregulated pollutants in their discharges. By educating all permittees about PFAS, they will be more equipped to provide the required notice if site activities change. Should unregulated pollutants be discovered, MDE examines the nature of the data and may address them through required best management practices or permit modification to establish new monitoring or limitations.

All decision-making regarding PFAS will be rationalized in the fact sheet associated with each individual permit.

For industrial stormwater, PFAS contamination will be addressed through pollution prevention (e.g., stormwater BMP implementation). Once limits have been universally implemented through regulation, MDE will include Technology-Based (TBELs) and Water Quality-Based (WQBELs) effluent limits.

Future Source of Permit Limitations

<u>EPA's Effluent Guidelines Program Plan 15:</u> The Clean Water Act requires EPA to biennially publish a plan establishing a schedule for reviews, revisions, and promulgation of guidelines not previously established for industrial categories. Plan 15, published in January 2023, is the most recent document meeting this purpose. It includes a continued focus on and evaluation of the extent of PFAS discharges and assessment for means to limit those discharges across multiple

industrial categories. MDE will monitor the outcomes of this plan and institute applicable technology standards as determined to be appropriate by the EPA.

<u>Water Quality Standards:</u> MDE will consider Federal water quality criteria (and future State criteria, if applicable) in its reasonable potential analysis to determine if effluent limitations are necessary to protect uses of receiving waters for each permit.

Each individual and general permit issued by MDE contains a standard condition that allows the permit to be reopened to address any new or changed standards.

Pretreatment

A majority of pretreatment permits for industrial facilities are managed by counties or municipalities, which have delegated pretreatment programs to serve as the control authority. MDE's Pretreatment Program, which lies within the I&GPD, provides oversight to local programs as the approval authority. MDE also issues pretreatment permits where there is no delegated program (there are currently 4 such permits across the State).

Based on the results of WWTP monitoring (as addressed in sections 2.1, 2.2, and 2.3 in this Plan), it may be necessary to track industrial sources to the WWTP using their pretreatment permit requirements. The expectation of MDE as the approval authority is for delegated local control authorities to implement monitoring where pretreatment permittees have reasonable potential to be the cause of elevated PFAS in monitoring at the WWTP. MDE will take this approach as applicable to the pretreatment permits it issues.

As the approval authority, MDE will also provide guidance to control authorities as necessary to ensure all appropriate standards and/or limitations are enforced.

EJ considerations

If elevated concentrations are detected and no responsible party is identified, MDE will use its regulatory tools to require that the party responsible for the PFAS pollution is also responsible for paying the cost to monitor and treat polluted water.

Drinking water and subsistence fish consumption are additional EJ concerns that are addressed through the limits established in the permits.

5.7 Pesticides

Background

Polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) are a group of manufactured chemicals that have been used in industry and consumer products since the 1940s because of their useful properties. These compounds are synthetic and have multiple fluorine atoms attached to an alkyl chain. There are thousands of different PFAS, some of which have been more widely used and studied than others. Perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS), for example, are two of the most widely used and studied chemicals in the PFAS group. PFOA and PFOS have been replaced in the United States with other PFAS in recent years. One common characteristic

of concern of PFAS is that many break down very slowly and can accumulate in humans, animals, plants, and the environment over time

(<u>https://www.epa.gov/pfas/our-current-understanding-human-health-and-environmental-risks-pfa</u>).

PFAS can be found in water, soil, air, and food, as well as in households or workplaces. Some examples are drinking water, soil, and water at or near waste sites, fluorinated containers, some pesticide formulations, fire extinguisher foam, biosolids, manufacturing sites that produce or use PFAS, food, food packaging, household products and dust, personal care products, automotive, aviation, aerospace, and defense industries, electronics, cosmetics, personal care products, medical articles, textiles, and leather. These sources have potential for contaminants to enter the environment, human and animal food chain, as well as humans. Due to their widespread production and use, as well as the ability to be transported and persist in the environment, surveys conducted by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) since 1999 have measured at least 12 PFAS in blood serum. Blood serum was obtained from participants, aged 12 years and older, who have taken part in the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES) published in 2018 (https://www.cdc.gov/nchs/nhanes/index.htm).

PFAS have been linked to adverse dyslipidemia, metabolic syndrome, impaired immune system responses, liver damage, cancer, neurodevelopmental issues, decreasing bone density, reducing antibody response to vaccines, declines in birth weight, reproductive health issues, and certain cancers. No studies have been identified that specifically address health impacts of PFAS in pesticides. No studies have been identified that provided exposure models or epidemiologic data that assess the degree to which PFAS in pesticides contribute to human exposure or health effects.

MDA Regulatory Authority

According to the Agricultural Article, Title 5 Pesticide and Pest Control, Subtitle 1 Maryland Pesticide Registration and Labeling Law, § 5-100 defines an adulterated pesticide as (c) A pesticide is "adulterated" if (1) its strength or purity falls below the professed standard or quality expressed on the labeling under which it is sold, (2) any substance has been substituted wholly or partially for the article, or (3) any valuable constituent of the article has been wholly or partially abstracted. In order for a stop sale to be issued against an adulterated pesticide, it would have to be analyzed in the program's laboratory. MDA could then issue a stop sale against that lot number of the product.

MDA will consider a pesticide product adulterated if PFAS is found in the formulation itself. The product would have to be analyzed prior to issuing a stop sale for the product. MDA also can review the CSF's for the particular EPA Number to determine if PFAS compounds are listed as inert ingredients, and are currently allowed by the EPA.

EPA Initiatives on PFAS in Pesticides

Currently, the Analytical Chemistry Branch (ACB), Analytical Chemistry Laboratory (ACL), Biological and Economic Analysis Division (BEAD), Office of Pesticide Programs (OPP), and Office of Chemical Safety and Pollution Prevention (OCSPP) of the USEPA have developed and internally validated two methods for certain types of pesticide formulations and for fluoridated containers that are used in many mosquito control products, as well as analyzed samples provided by Maryland Department of Agriculture and Dr. Steven Lasee from Texas Tech University.

In December 2021, the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection and Public Employees for Environmental Responsibility (PEER) published results of PFAS analysis of several mosquito control products used in the state to control mosquito populations. This analysis found the total PFAS concentration in the range of non-detects – 2,500 ppb. The methods used were based upon Liquid Chromatography Mass Spectrometry/Mass Spectrometry (LC-MS/MS) technologies, and one of the methods used was not internally validated.

The ACB analyzed samples taken from mosquito control products used on the Eastern Shore by MDA's Mosquito Control Program, Permenone 30-30 and PermeSease 30-30. Three samples were also analyzed from the manufacturer of Permenone 30-30. The samples obtained from the manufacturer were a retained sample from a lot produced 9 days after the lot purchased by Mosquito Control, and three samples taken from different points along a recent Permenone 30-30 production line and from storage. Twenty-eight PFAS compounds were analyzed by the oily matrix method using LC-MS/MS and Liquid Chromatography-High resolution Accurate Mass Spectrometry (LC-HRAMS) as a confirmation analysis. The oily matrix method is described in further detail below. The ACB found none of the targeted analytes in the samples from the Department nor in any product received from the manufacturer.

The ACB published a report dated March 04, 2021, on rinsing studies on selected fluorinated and non-fluorinated HDPE containers and a limited number of mosquito control products. There were seven fluorinated jugs/drums and two non-fluorinated jugs. The method for the rinsates was developed to determine the PFAS concentration that could be rinsed from the inside and the outside of the containers. The method is straightforward and easy to perform. The unused non-fluorinated jugs (exterior = 0.79 ng total PFAS, interior = 0.17 ng total PFAS) have substantially less total PFAS than the unused fluorinated jugs and drums (21 – 345 ng total PFAS. The used 2.5-gallon jug had 15.2 ng total PFAS rinsed from the outside, and 8.6 ng total PFAS rinsed from the inside. The fluorinated drums have the highest PFAS content. This would indicate that the PFAS in pesticide formulations is actually being leached from the container. The USEPA has contacted pesticide manufacturers of mosquito control products, and they have switched from fluorinated containers to stainless steel containers or non-fluorinated containers.

An oily matrix method report was published by the USEPA on September 28, 2021, for the validation of twenty-eight PFAS compounds. The method was validated using a clean oily matrix formulation containing no active ingredient. The oily matrix analyzed can include oil, petroleum distillates, or mineral oils that are used in pesticide formulations. The method limit of detection is

0.025 µg/kg (ppb or 25 ppt) for most of the analytes. Briefly, the method takes the oily sample and passes it through a Solid Phase Extraction (SPE) cartridge. After loading the SPE cartridge, the matrix is washed off the cartridge with a mixture of solvents, leaving the PFAS compounds behind on the cartridge. The PFAS compounds are eluted off the SPE cartridge by another mixture of solvents, concentrated down to a known volume, and analyzed by LC-MS/MS using the instrument parameters described in EPA Method 537.1. Isotopically labeled standards were added prior to sample processing to assess signal enhancement and suppression. There are interferences that can be expected that will lead to false positive identification and elevate quantitation levels. Recoveries varied throughout the study and do not appear to be concentration dependent.

On May 18, 2023, the USEPA published a memorandum for ACB Project B23-05b, which involved the analysis of 10 pesticide products that were analyzed using a dilute and shoot method reported in "Targeted Analysis and Total Oxidizable Precursor Assay of Several Insecticides for PFAS" by Lasee, et.al., in Journal of Hazardous Materials Letters, 2022, 3, 100067. This article reported PFAS concentrations in the 10 products ranging from non-detects to 19.2 mg/kg (ppm) PFOS in the products. The samples were analyzed by two methods: 1) the method developed by the study author, and 2) the surfactant and oil method. Twenty-six PFAS analytes were screened in the EPA study and the Lasee method. There were three compounds added to the EPA study that were not included in the Lasee study.

The main difference between the two methods is the sample preparation step. Lasee's method is a simple dilution method with a solvent/water mixture and using a single instrument for analysis. The ACB's method involves a more intense extraction and clean up procedure to isolate the PFAS compounds from the sample matrix before instrumental analysis, reducing matrix interferences that give more accurate results and detection limits. Both methods use isotopically labeled standards and surrogates to monitor the performance of the method and to accurately quantitate the compounds of interest. The ACB method used two different instruments to analyze the compounds: LC-MS/MS and LC/HRAMS. The HRAMS instrument is more sensitive and has higher selectivity than the MS/MS instrument. The results of the study showed no PFAS compounds, including PFOS, were detected above the method detection limits by either instrument.

Current Actions

MDA reported the findings of a Pesticide PFAS Testing Study to the General Assembly on November 1, 2023 as required under SB-0158. Considering the lack of reliable results when measuring PFAS in pesticide formulations, MDA is not currently pursuing any actions at this time. MDA would have to set up an analytical laboratory group capable of analyzing PFAS compounds in pesticide formulation. This would involve renovation of a storage room, purchasing of equipment, and the hiring of Full Time Employees (FTE's). This is needed in order to ascertain what products to stop selling. Any actions by MDA would have to be based on accurate results.

The Pesticide PFAS Testing Study provided the following recommendations. The first would be to follow EPA's lead on the formulation issue and the other would be to analyze formulations that

are registered with MDA's State Chemist Section, in order to acquire baseline data. Following EPA's lead would fit into the agency's PFAS Roadmap but would take time. The second recommendation may be the most expedient. The analysis of pesticide formulations would provide the data needed to make well-informed decisions based upon good science. This route would necessitate the establishment of a PFAS testing program within the State Chemist Section. The section has over 30 years' experience dealing with pesticide formulations, whether analyzing for the active ingredients, or contaminants in the formulations itself. The section has over 30 years' experience in the analysis of contaminants in environmental samples, including water, ground water, sediment, soil, vegetation, and animal tissue.

Future Actions

The main issue that remains is analysis and monitoring of pesticides. There are only two PFAS detection methods that have been validated for only two categories of insecticides. Interferences from the chemical properties of insecticides can cause false positive results for PFAS compounds. Improved methods need to be developed and validated to eliminate the interference. Partnering with academic partners who can seek Federal funding to complete the basic science needed to implement new methods is the best way to expand opportunities to test pesticides.

MDE General Permit for Pesticide Application

Certain applications of pesticides, when applied in the floodplain or directly to waters of this state, require NPDES permit authorization. This is achieved through the state's General Permit for discharges from the application of pesticides. The permit expires in 2025 and must be renewed. MDE is considering actions to address PFAS in the general permit and plans to review the findings of MDA's pesticide study to determine the appropriate course of action.

6.0 Identifying, Assessing, and Cleaning up Historical Releases of PFAS Chemicals

6.1 Source Identification

Source Identification Framework

MDE's Land Restoration Program (LRP) has developed a framework to address the environmental impacts of PFAS. The LRP envisions a two-prong adaptive strategy to track down sources of ongoing and historic PFAS releases: 1) Investigations of potential PFAS sources in areas of known drinking and surface water impacts, focusing on potential public health risks to Maryland residents, and 2) Investigations of known or suspected PFAS use and storage areas to identify and mitigate historic and ongoing releases of PFAS to waters of the state.

The first priority is to identify and investigate potential PFAS sources in areas of known drinking and surface water impacts. 70% of LRP's PFAS source identification and mitigation effort will focus on a list of public water supply wells that have documented PFAS contamination. This Page 43 of 61

effort will address immediate, known impacts on the health of Maryland residents, with a focus on overburdened and/or underserved communities. In addition, water bodies where elevated surface water concentrations of PFAS have been identified may undergo investigation, to identify, quantify, and reduce risks associated with fish consumption and to further investigate contamination leading to drinking water sources. The specific tasks to be included in this portion of LRP's work are as follows:

- Prioritize source investigations in the vicinity of PFAS-contaminated water supply wells for investigation and mitigation using the Water and Science Administration's (WSA) 2022/2023 well sampling data based on human health impact potential.
- II. The prioritization process will use the following decision-making criteria:
 - 1) Severity of the PFAS concentrations,
 - 2) Size and EJScreen score of the population served by the impacted drinking water source,
 - 3) Availability of an alternative drinking water supply to the affected community
 - 4) Guidance from and collaboration with WSA
- III. Prioritize surface water bodies for investigation using available fish tissue and surface water quality data. The prioritization process will use the following decision-making criteria:
 - Analysis of PFAS concentration in fish or shellfish tissue and surface water in consultation with WSA staff. MDH Laboratories Administration has the capability to test fish, crabs, and shellfish for 40 PFAS compounds using EPA Method 1633,
 - 2) Size of the population impacted by fish contamination (WSA and MDNR collaboration),
 - 3) Known groundwater or surface water discharges to impacted water bodies (WSA and LMA programs).

The second priority is to conduct a statewide PFAS source area investigation. The remaining 30% of LRP's effort will be PFAS source area investigations targeting known or suspected PFAS users throughout the State. The magnitude of potential contamination can vary significantly by type of industry, hydrogeology, and concentration of industrial facilities. The LRP will prioritize sites for investigation according to their potential to have impacted target populations. The specific tasks to be included in this portion of LRP's work are as follows:

I. The investigation process will include the identification of sites with known current or historical PFAS releases and expand outward as new information about potential PFAS sources becomes available through continued research. Site identification will start with a review of Maryland industries and site types that fit the generally accepted profile of common PFAS use and release locations. Such locations include, but are not limited to:

- 1) Airports (military installations have begun this process as required by Congress in the National Defense Authorization Act))
- 2) WWTPs
- 3) Landfills
- 4) Biosolid Land Application Sites
- 5) Fire Departments and Fire Training Areas
- Industries, including but not limited to: polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) manufacturers and users; metal finishers; electroplaters; paper & paperboard manufacturers; tanneries; dry cleaners.
- II. Additional Methods for Source Identification
 - 1) Source information and monitoring data provided by other MDE programs (landfills, wastewater treatment plants, biosolid application sites).
 - 2) Reviews of technical literature to identify the latest information on identifying potential PFAS sources and Industries.
 - MDH Laboratories Administration has procured a state-of-the-art high-resolution mass spectrometer and has entered into a 2-year collaboration with EPA to develop a 'PFAS forensics' tool for source investigations (see Section 6).
- III. Conduct targeted environmental sampling at suspected PFAS source areas identified during Step I in order of priority as determined by their potential to impact human health. The initial target sites will be selected to represent a variety of industries, geologic settings, and population centers. Sites identified by other MDE programs, administrations, and/or other state agencies for investigation will also be considered in the site selection process.

Funding for PFAS source identification and mitigation

LRP receives limited funding for the collection and laboratory testing of environmental media samples from sites. Sites determined to be contaminated above risk-based standards and where no financially viable responsible person exists to remediate the property are identified. These sites undergo additional investigation and subsequent remediation and are eligible for PAYGO or taxable bond funding.

The LRP has an approved pre-remedial cooperative agreement with the EPA Site Assessment program to include a PFAS source identification initiative that began July 1, 2023. This allows for the initial assessment of new sites to be funded by EPA's Site Assessment program and MDE funding. LRP has access to small amounts of additional funding from an EPA State Response grant to support this broader set of state-wide investigations. Site Investigations to systematically investigate major classes of potential sources of PFAS using these grant funds could include the following, with emphasis on communities with EJ concerns.

LRP will also investigate other potential sources of funding, information, or resources, including, but not limited to, academic researchers.

Future Needs

MDE does not currently have a funding source for sampling of groundwater, surface water, soil, and sediment for potential source identification and remediation. The number of potential sources, strength of the carbon-fluorine bond, and fate and transport of PFAS compounds make it a much more complicated process to delineate and remediate PFAS contamination. PFAS can be found in firefighting foam, wastewater treatment effluent, landfill leachate, commercial products, personal care products, industrial processes, manufacturing, and more.

All military installations and Formerly Used Defense Sites are required under the National Defense Authorization Act to perform PFAS preliminary assessments and site investigations by the end of 2023. Once data is validated, the Federal Assessment and Remediation Division (FARD) in LRP will have a significantly increased workload in staff time to review reports and plans.

The mandate to identify, assess, and clean up past releases and minimize future releases of PFAS will also significantly increase the workload of the State Assessment and Remediation (SAR) division in LRP. Potential sources of PFAS releases could include any vehicle fire along any road or runway in the state that was extinguished using aqueous film-forming foam (AFFF) since the 1960s, for instance. There is currently no funding source for non-Department of Defense investigations of PFAS in Maryland. SAR staff have seen large increases in Voluntary Cleanup Program (VCP) applications and Controlled Hazardous Substances Enforcement Program oversight of contaminated properties without the influence of PFAS. While the SAR division is currently investigating potential sources of PFAS until EPA finalizes Maximum Contaminant Limits (MCLs) and designates certain PFAS as hazardous substances.

Coordination is ongoing between LRP and other Land and Materials Administration programs (Solid Waste, Biosolids) and the WSA to better address and prioritize PFAS assessments and related actions.

Disposal of PFAS contaminated media issues

PFAS is not currently a designated hazardous substance, but the comment period on EPA's proposed rule has ended and EPA is currently reviewing over 150,000 comments received on the hazardous substance designation. EPA is predicting the promulgation of the final rule by Winter 2023/2024. However, this is subject to change. In addition, PFAS-containing material cannot be incinerated or landfilled in Maryland. That means that it must be shipped out of state. Entities will have to determine facilities that will accept it.

State Agency Coordination

MDE hosts monthly multi-agency meetings with various MDE programs, MDH, MDNR, and MDA to share information on actions being taken by the agencies to address PFAS.

MDE initiated an internal multi-administration (LMA and WSA), multi-program monthly coordination meeting. Clear communication between LMA and WSA is imperative for the effective and rapid response to concerns regarding PFAS when brought to the agency by the public.

Within LMA and WSA, additional quarterly meetings have been established to share data and information between the Land Restoration Program responsible for source identification and drinking water programs responsible for community water systems.

LRP is also coordinating with adjacent state departments of environmental protection to share lessons learned, source data, and information that may cross state boundaries.

Further coordination with County Health Departments is needed. MDH and MDE regularly coordinate on environmental health issues through presentations to the MDH-Health Officials Roundtable. MDE and MDH will continue to coordinate closely on the development of PFAS policy, communications, and responses.

LMA and WSA are working to define levels of PFAS compounds that "trigger" the need for a source investigation. The parties are developing levels below which there is no need for a source investigation, but rather MDE will connect public water systems with DWSRF funding, provide technical assistance to install treatment systems, and provide recommendations on Point of Use (POU) treatment systems for private well owners. MDE is currently planning a project to investigate the effectiveness of PFAS removal in POU treatment systems.

6.2 Federal Facilities & National Priority List (NPL) Sites

Background

MDE works with the U.S. Department of Defense (DoD) and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency to assess, remediate, and monitor DoD sites and private National Priority List (NPL or Superfund) sites in Maryland where PFAS are present. Through the Defense-State Memorandum of Agreement (DSMOA), DoD provides funding to MDE to oversee the assessment, remediation, and monitoring of military installations to expedite the cleanup of hazardous waste to comply with federal and state laws. EPA is a partner in this process and also provides funding for non-DoD NPL sites through Cooperative Agreement grants to MDE.

DoD monitored military facilities throughout the country and in 2018 released a report on its investigation of PFAS at military bases. This report identified four sites in Maryland with PFAS contamination in groundwater. Those sites are the former Fort Meade Tipton Airfield; Naval Research Lab, Chesapeake Beach Detachment; the former Navy Bayhead Annex in Annapolis; and the former Naval Research Laboratory in White Oak.

Since that time, PFAS compounds have been identified at four additional military installations in Maryland. Those sites are Aberdeen Proving Ground, Naval Air Station Patuxent River, Joint Base Andrews, and the former Brandywine Defense Reutilization and Marketing Office. Preliminary Assessments/Site Inspections (PA/SIs) are being conducted at the rest of the military facilities in Maryland including Fort Detrick, Forest Glen Annex, and Naval Air Station Patuxent River's Webster Field Annex. These PA/SI's are required by Congress under the National Defense Authorization Act (NDAA) to be completed on all DoD facilities by December 2023.

Initial efforts were focused on determining whether any off-site properties are affected by PFAS. Three domestic wells at the Chesapeake Bay Detachment site had detections but they were far below the EPA's Health Advisory level at that time. As additional testing proceeds, there may be other DoD installations in Maryland where PFAS compounds are found in the groundwater.

Military Installations

Below is a summary of the actions at each of the bases in Maryland as of July 2023:

Navy Facilities

Naval Research Laboratory, Chesapeake Bay Detachment, Chesapeake Beach

The Navy Research and Development (R&D) community has conducted testing of aqueous film-forming foam (AFFF) products for the U.S. Navy from 1968 to the present. The base drinking water supply well, approximately 500 feet deep, was sampled for PFOA and PFOS in September 2016 and neither of those compounds were detected.

The Navy conducted a Site Investigation (SI) in 2017 that included the installation and sampling of deep and shallow groundwater monitoring wells on the base and near base boundaries to determine the likelihood of off-site migration and impact on private drinking water wells. Sample analysis included three compounds: PFOS, PFOA, and PFBS. The SI confirmed the point of release to be the fire-testing pad area. A large associated plume of contamination in the shallow aquifer extends over much of the facility, with the highest concentration at the fire-testing pad (234,000 parts per trillion (ppt) of PFOS).

As a result of this detection of PFAS in the shallow groundwater aquifer, the Navy began notifying the public in areas potentially impacted by groundwater contaminants. Although a 150-foot-thick clay formation separates the shallow aquifer from the deeper aquifer tapped by area private drinking water wells, the Navy nevertheless planned off-site private well sampling to ensure no site contaminants were affecting private drinking water wells. Sampling of approximately 80 private wells off-base took place in July of 2018 for 14 PFAS compounds, mainly to the northeast and southeast of the site, based on known groundwater flow direction. Although there were detections at three locations, none approached the EPA's PFAS Health Advisory (at the time) of 70 parts per trillion, being just above detection limits. A public meeting occurred prior to and after the sampling, first to inform the public and obtain permission for sampling, and then to explain sampling results and further planned activities on-site.

The Navy is conducting an Expanded Site Investigation of the Fire Training Area (Site 10), with additional soil, groundwater, and surface water sampling. Preliminary results show significant PFAS in the streams exiting the facility to the northeast and the southeast as well as significant PFAS in the discharge from the Wastewater Treatment Plant. Additional sampling is ongoing and interim measures are being designed to treat the surface water leaving the Northern Pond and the Wastewater Treatment Plant discharge. A 60% design for the interim measures is expected in August 2023.

Bay Head Road Annex, Annapolis

AFFF was used for fire training on a concrete burn pad at this former facility used by the Navy R&D community. The PFAS Remedial Investigation (RI) was finalized in May 2020. PFOS/PFOA contamination of surface/subsurface soil, surficial aquifer groundwater, and sediment/surface water downgradient of the former installation has been documented. There is no drinking water exposure to area residents, who are served by municipal water. A supplemental RI investigation was done to better characterize the vertical extent of the groundwater plume and its interaction with the Little Magothy River where the plume discharges into pore water and surface water.

Former Naval Research Laboratory, White Oak

AFFF was used at a few locations at the site, including Site 7 and Site 5, at burn pits. A Preliminary Assessment was completed in January 2021 and additional sampling is in process. The results of additional sampling will be presented in a Site Investigation, which is expected in late 2023.

Former Naval Training Center Bainbridge, Port Deposit

A Preliminary Assessment (PA) was completed in February 2021. The results of the PA and the PFAS sampling done during the Five-Year Review process at the Fire Training Pit during the summer of 2020 indicates that there is no significant PFAS at the former installation.

Naval Support Activity Annapolis (NSAA)

The Preliminary Assessment/Site Investigation was done in 2023. Very minor concentrations of some PFAS have been detected and several sites at the North Severn property will be going to Remedial Action. Currently, a Preliminary Assessment is completed for the Naval Academy property and one site will be going to a Remedial Investigation.

David Taylor Research Center, Annapolis

This site is a former R&D facility adjacent to NSAA's Sites 1 and 2. Groundwater sampling was done, and very low concentrations of PFAS were detected in some wells.

David Taylor Research Center, Carderock

A Preliminary Assessment was completed in 2023 and there was little evidence found of PFAS usage at the facility. It is unclear when further investigations will be conducted.

NSF Indian Head, Indian Head

A PA was recently completed. Five sites - three on the main facility and two on the Stump Neck Annex - have the potential to be contaminated with PFAS. The fieldwork for the Site Inspection is ongoing.

NAS Patuxent River, St Mary's County

The PFAS Site Investigation work plan was approved by LRP in June 2020. Sampling of groundwater and soil at sites where previous releases of AFFF were documented began in early July 2020. The Preliminary Assessment identified 19 sites where AFFF releases were either documented or likely. Per the Site Investigation work plan, soil and groundwater samples will be collected from these 19 sites. Six in-use potable drinking water wells at the base were sampled for PFAS constituents between December 2014 and June 2015 and the results were non-detected for PFAS constituents. The potable wells were resampled in 2020 and were still non-detected. Remedial Investigations are continuing to characterize the fate and extent of PFAS from the 19 sites across the installation.

NAS Patuxent River, Webster Annex, St Mary's County

The PFAS Site Investigation Work Plan was approved by LRP in June 2020. Sampling of groundwater and soil at two sites where previous releases of AFFF were documented were conducted in the summer and fall of 2020. The two sites identified in the PA where AFFF was used were the AFFF Crash Truck Maintenance Test Area and Fire Station 3. MDE received the first draft of the Site Investigation in March 2021. Two in-use potable drinking water wells at the base were sampled for PFAS constituents in October 2016 and the results were non-detect. These wells were resampled in 2021 and are still non-detected. The Remedial Investigation has begun which will include more groundwater and surface water sampling, including pore water sampling in the St Mary's River where groundwater is exiting to the surface water.

Solomons Island Recreation Center, Calvert County

A PA identified an AFFF foam spill in a grassed drainage swale at the facility. No cleanup was done after the spill, so an SI is presently being accomplished including soil and groundwater sampling.

Naval Support Facility Thurmont

A Preliminary Assessment was recently conducted. Two sites were identified as potential or confirmed PFAS release areas. A site assessment is underway which includes additional monitoring wells in the potential PFAS areas as well as soil, sediment, and surface water sampling. Due to the proximity of the sites to multiple private drinking water sources and federal and state park drinking water supplies an off-base drinking water sampling program was

conducted in March of 2023. At this point, none of these samples show significant PFAS contamination.

Army Facilities

Aberdeen Proving Ground, Aberdeen and Edgewood

A Preliminary Assessment and Site Inspection was completed in June 2023. Fifty-seven sites around the facility have been identified as sites where AFFF foam or other PFAS was used, or releases occurred. In addition, several biosolid disposal areas on the base were sampled. Of these sites, 35 sites showed significant PFAS contamination while another five showed lesser concentrations of PFAS in either groundwater, soil, sediment, or surface waters. At this point 36 of these sites, including several biosolid sites, are being included in a Remedial Investigation planned to begin in late 2023. The Harford County Perryman Well Field has been impacted by a groundwater plume emanating from a fire training pit at the Western Boundary Study Area of the Aberdeen Area above the EPA Health Advisory level. The water is treated with granulated activated carbon filtration and is tested monthly to ensure that there is no breakthrough in the carbon treatment. The Perryman well water is blended post-treatment with surface water from (primarily) the Loch Raven Reservoir and occasionally from the Susquehanna River before delivery to the public. It is expected that the SI Report will be completed in the winter of 2023 and a RI scoping will begin soon thereafter.

Forest Glen Annex, Silver Spring

A Preliminary Assessment was conducted. There is one confirmed usage of PFAS at the facility, at the fire station. By interview, it was shown that the PFAS was only stored and never used.

Fort Detrick, Frederick

The PFAS PA/SI was completed in the spring of 2022. Several sites were identified as having PFAS contamination and additional Remedial Investigation is planned. Groundwater near the landfill was sampled for PFAS in advance of the Preliminary Assessment/Site Investigation sampling to aid in the design of the treatment system for the pump and treat pilot study. This study is being done to determine the ability to remediate the Trichloroethylene (TCE) groundwater plume at Area B. During this sampling, levels of less than 20 parts per trillion of PFAS were detected in groundwater near the landfills in Area B.

Fort Meade BRAC (former and closed sections of the base). Odenton

The groundwater near Tipton Airfield was sampled in 2016. The highest detection near Tipton Airfield was 89,000 parts per trillion PFOS. Work in 2018 indicated that the PFAS was not migrating off-site, and not impacting water supplies for buildings on the Patuxent Wildlife Refuge. Additional PFAS sampling was conducted in 2020, and samples were all at or below the levels found in 2016. An RI for Tipton Airfield Is presently underway in 2023.

Fort Meade (the present base) Odenton

A Preliminary Assessment/Site Inspection has been completed. MDE expects that there will be additional sampling performed at areas associated with past and current fire department buildings and training areas. The base drinking water supply wells were tested in January 2021 and were non-detect for PFAS.

Army Research Laboratory, Adelphia

A Preliminary Assessment/Site Inspection was recently completed. It is expected that there will be sampling at several sites by late 2023.

Air Force Facilities

Maryland Air National Guard, Martin State Airport, Middle River

A Preliminary Assessment/Site Investigation was completed in 2019. The Preliminary Assessment identified 13 locations where releases of AFFF might have occurred, including fire training areas, former and current fire stations, hangars, hazardous waste storage facilities, fire fighting equipment testing areas, and stormwater outfalls with potential connectivity to areas of known or possible releases. Eleven of the 13 locations were recommended for further sampling. Eleven temporary wells were put in and nine of them showed concentrations above the EPA Health Advisory Level with concentrations for PFOS ranging from 71.2 to 13700 ppt. Concentrations of PFOA ranged from 92.9 to 1660 ppt. Concentrations of PFOA and PFOS combined ranged from 78.49 to 14500 ppt. MDE will conduct additional investigations when funding becomes available.

Joint Base Andrews, Camp Springs

The 2015 PA identified 10 AFFF areas requiring additional investigation. During the 2018 Site Investigation process, the number of sites was adjusted to nine, most of which are hangars and fire-training areas. The Site Investigation tested surface soil (up to 17,000,000 ppt PFOS; up to 150,000 ppt PFOA), subsurface soil (up to 21,000 ppt PFOS; up to 5,900 ppt PFOA), groundwater (up to 38,400 ppt PFOS/PFOA), surface water (up to 8,510 ppt PFOS/PFOA) and sediment (up to 27,000 ppt PFOS; up to 610 ppt PFOA) for PFBS, PFOA, and PFOS. Surface water sampling and fish tissue sampling by MDE during 2021 in Piscataway Creek (which begins in the southeastern corner of Joint Base, Andrews) showed significant PFAS contamination and led to a fish consumption advisory. Presently an RI is underway as well as an interim measure to treat the stormwater system that discharges into Piscataway Creek.

Brandywine Defense Reutilization and Marketing Office (DRMO), Brandywine

A Preliminary Assessment/Site Investigation was conducted in connection with the Joint Base Andrews effort. PFAS was found at one site due to improper storage of AFFF. The small groundwater plume will be investigated when resources become available.

U.S. Coast Guard Facilities

Coast Guard Yard, Curtis Bay, Baltimore City

Several sites have been identified at the facility during recent preliminary sampling as well as a recent spill in the summer of 2022. The PA/SIs are ongoing.

Private NPL Sites

Spectron, Inc Cecil County

Between 1961 and 1988, solvent recycling facilities conducted chemical product recycling and reclamation operations, including processing a wide range of industrial solvents on-site in an open lagoon. This site accepted liquid waste from neighboring chemical companies. The 2020 sampling of several monitoring wells in the source area and along the plume axis showed a maximum PFAS concentration in groundwater of 22.2 ppt. Further investigation is planned.

Bush Valley Landfill, Harford County

This unrestricted industrial landfill might have received PFAS waste. Well sampling for PFAS was conducted in the fall of 2022 and detected up to 260 ppt in a perimeter well. Additional sampling of both groundwater and surface water is planned in the fall of 2023.

Funding

Funding for Federal Assessment and Remediation for DoD sites is covered by the Defense and State Memorandum of Agreement (DSMOA) Cooperative Agreement. Costs for assessment and remediation of the private NPL sites are partially funded by cooperative agreements through the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency with a smaller percentage from the State budget. LRP and EPA work together on the listing of additional Superfund sites and attempt to recover costs from responsible parties. Due to the potential for PFAS compounds to remain present in various media for extended periods of time, identifying Responsible Parties may be difficult. In those cases, additional Federal funding may be necessary if sites are designated as State-lead sites.

7.0 Assessing Environmental Justice and Health Equity Concerns

7.1 Summary of EJ-Related Actions

Specific EJ-related actions have been defined within each section under Objectives 1, 2, and 3 when applicable. The following section provides a summary of these actions.

• MDE will provide technical assistance to community water systems in certain overburdened and underserved communities and connect them with existing resources

to address PFAS contamination in their drinking water. MDE's drinking water infrastructure funding process considers the system's EJ score.

- When selecting locations to sample for PFAS contamination in fish tissue, MDE worked in conjunction with MDNR to select subsistence fishing spots.
- MDE plans to map EJ communities with the Fish Consumption Advisory map.
- All data regarding consumption advisories is analyzed for potential EJ aspects, and will continue to be analyzed in the future. Care will be taken to involve the local health departments when vulnerable communities are implicated in fish consumption advisories.
- MDE's EJ Screening Tool provides a map of historic and active biosolids land application sites which will inform MDE to prioritize investigations in disadvantaged areas.
- EJ is considered in the source identification prioritization process, which uses the following decision-making criteria:
 - 1. Severity of the PFAS concentrations,
 - 2. Size and EJScreen score of the population served by impacted drinking water source,
 - 3. Availability of an alternative drinking water supply to the affected community
 - 4. Guidance from and collaboration with WSA
- Additional funding for PFAS source identification and mitigation is available to LRP from an EPA State Response grant. These grant funds may support investigations with an emphasis on impacts to communities with EJ concerns.

8.0 Education and Communication on PFAS Risks

8.1 Summary of Public Education/Communication Related Actions

Specific education and communication related actions have been defined within each section under Objectives 1, 2, and 3 when applicable. The following section provides a summary of these actions.

MDE maintains a <u>PFAS landing page</u> that offers information on potential routes of exposure and sources of contamination, and the Department's ongoing efforts to better understand and address those. The landing page also contains attachments of previous study results and informational materials for Maryland residents on PFAS risks, guidance on how to proceed when a source of contamination has been identified, among others. Some of the content on the landing page include:

• Summary reports with the results of each phase of the multi-phase public water system studies on the <u>MDE Water Supply Program's website</u>.

- Educational materials on <u>interpreting PFAS test results</u> and a <u>list</u> of National Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program accredited laboratories for drinking water monitoring.
- A <u>private wells fact sheet</u> to advise residents on risks, well testing, and what steps to take when results show PFAS compounds above EPA's proposed regulatory limits. MDE and MDH will maintain ongoing collaboration with local health officials to provide PFAS information to private well owners.
- The Fish Tissue tab <u>links</u> to the existing fish consumption advisory for PFOS and the study that led to such advisory. Statewide fish tissue sampling has led to additional fish consumption advisories that will be also linked to the landing page when published and available to the public.

By Spring 2024, MDE plans to expand the PFAS landing page with the following:

- An interactive map that displays all sampling data collected as part of the PWS study.
- A PFAS-specific interactive advisory map and an additional PFAS collection layer in the existing <u>Fish Consumption Advisory map</u> showing locations, samples collected, date, media, and results of the fish tissue PFAS monitoring.
- Wastewater Treatment Plant sampling results will be available on WPPRP's website.
- A PFAS Story Map, providing an overview of all PFAS related activities conducted by MDE.

Broader public communications and educational initiatives include:

- Providing regular public communications information that features static listings of the most recent fish consumption advisories, brochures to local health departments, and local signs with links back to MDE's interactive maps and static listings placed by the county (working in conjunction with MDE) at water bodies of concern.
- MDE will continue conducting presentations on the latest advisory updates to local health departments, at the National Fish Forum (EPA), and other stakeholder events. Presentations may also cover PFAS monitoring efforts and results on drinking water, fish tissue sampling, WWTP effluent, biosolids, spray irrigation, industrial facilities, and source trackdown investigations.
- By the end of 2023, MDE will begin undertaking public notification of the requirements of statutes regarding PFAS in Class B fire-fighting foam, rugs and carpets, food packaging, and cosmetics as provided for in the George "Walter" Taylor Act. This public notification includes postings on MDE's website, and letters to manufacturers, vendors, distributors, and other potentially affected entities informing them of the requirements.
- MDE will publish tentative determinations, along with PFAS-specific requirements, for proposed WWTPs discharge permits in local newspapers to encourage public comments and requests for a public hearing.
- During the WWTP discharge permit renewal process, the notice of tentative determination published for facilities identified with elevated PFAS risk will outline proposed PFAS-specific requirements to be implemented in the permit, to ensure comprehensive awareness among all stakeholders during the public participation process. MDE will offer guidance to utilities facing financial challenges in accessing

support from the Clean Water and Drinking Water State Revolving Funds and the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law to cover the costs associated with mitigating PFAS-related risks.

- Public notification and public comment and participation in the selection of remedies will be one of the permit requirements when a solid waste facility is found to be causing the release of PFAS above established MCLs.
- All Industrial Facilities permittees will be educated about PFAS so they are better equipped to detect and notify MDE if they become aware of any unregulated pollutants in their discharge.

9.0 Analytical and Field Services

While this section does not specifically address elements within the action plan, the analytical services provided by MDH and field services provided by MDE are crucial for MDE and other State agencies in order to conduct monitoring surveys and investigations which directly support actions to control and remediate sources of PFAS contamination impacting the environment and human health within Maryland. Without the support of MDH and MDE's Field Services, state agencies would be required to contract academic and private laboratories outside of Maryland for field and analytical support at significantly greater expense to the State.

9.1 MDH Laboratories Administration

Drinking Water

In February 2020, MDE asked MDH Laboratories Administration to bring on PFAS testing for drinking water to support a fast-paced, data-driven assessment of the PFAS problem in Maryland. Undeterred by the pandemic and frozen budgets, MDH Laboratories Administration was able to repurpose an old instrument and optimize EPA Method 537.1 to quantify 18 different PFAS at 1-2 parts-per-trillion sensitivity in drinking water. Through competitive external grants, MDH Laboratories Administration was subsequently able to procure automated extractors and further validate surface and groundwater testing (for source investigation). As a result, a single temporarily redirected scientist (voluntarily working overtime) was able to test >70% of Marylanders' drinking water in just 4 months (phase 1). With the increased demand for water testing, in 2021 MDH approved reassigning/reclassifying a scientist position to be dedicated for PFAS testing. In 2022, MDH Laboratories Administration brought on EPA Method 533 for drinking water and became the only laboratory in Maryland approved by the EPA for the Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule 5 (UCMR5) program.

Multi-matrix testing

As the multi-agency collaboration progressed, it became clear that Maryland needed not only a competent routine testing laboratory but also a laboratory that could develop new methods to adapt to MDE's and MDNR's changing needs at rigorous EPA standards. A top priority was the ability to quantify PFAS in seafood (fish, crabs, oysters) and other challenging samples including wastewater and biosolids. These programs have significant environmental justice and climate change implications. MDH Laboratories Administration promoted a staff member to become its only dedicated Developmental Scientist, and in 2022, MDH Laboratories Administration became

one of only two public health labs in the nation to be part of an EPA/DoD multi-laboratory validation study for the state-of-the-art EPA Method 1633 that is able to quantify 40 different PFAS in 'any' non-drinking water samples including wastewaters, soils, sediments, landfill leachates, biosolids, and fish, chicken, and clam tissue. According to EPA, this is the largest multi-laboratory it has ever conducted, and required hundreds of overtime hours to be (voluntarily) worked by the Lab's sole Developmental Scientist.

With Method 1633 accredited in April 2022, MDH Laboratories Administration turned to the Association of Public Health Laboratories (APHL) to recruit (from Alaska) a fully funded Fellow to assist in the testing temporarily (August 2022-August 2023). Finally, automation of Method 1633 has not yet been achieved. Due to its widely recognized expertise, MDH Laboratories Administration was selected to partner with a leading international company to develop a much-sought automated extractor for Method 1633. This work is ongoing, and is expected to offer additional testing capacity for WWTP monitoring.

PFAS Forensics

While EPA publicly documents the existence of 12,034 types of PFAS, current methods are able to detect only 40. Through competitive grants from APHL/CDC, MDH Laboratories Administration became the only public health lab in the nation to secure high-resolution mass spectrometry instrumentation for environmental testing. This instrument has the ability to detect 'all' PFAS (and indeed all chemicals). This cutting-edge capability resulted in MDH Laboratories Administration being selected as one of only two labs to partner with EPA's Office of Research and Development through a 2-year collaborative grant to develop 'PFAS forensics'. This state-of-the-art capability is already being used by MDH Laboratories Administration to investigate a recent industrial discharge in Maryland by W.L. Gore.

Future Actions

The only true way to understand environmental exposures is to conduct biomonitoring of populations for chemicals (usually in blood). CDC has performed this function for PFAS nationally, and awards competitive grants to state labs in 5-year cycles. CDC has reached out to MDH Laboratories Administration to encourage it to apply for the next cycle of grants (early 2024). Since 2009, 17 states have received grants to join this program. MDH Laboratories Administration will require assistance from Leadership to secure the required approvals to bring this program to Maryland in 2024, which will serve as a major environmental justice initiative.

Challenges

Due to its vital importance to the State, MDH Laboratories Administration developed PFAS testing. MDH Laboratories Administration was able to repurpose older instruments (that are ~8 years old now). However, given their age and extensive use to support large-scale PFAS testing of thousands of samples for 3 continuous years, these repurposed instruments are now experiencing falling sensitivities and frequent breakdowns. MDH Laboratories Administration needs to replace both of its two aging instruments with new models. While funds for these instruments may be available through the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (\$1,353,756), MDH Laboratories

<u>Value</u>

MDE firmly believes that the analytical services provided by MDH Laboratories Administration are crucial for MDE and other State agencies to conduct monitoring surveys and investigations that directly support actions to control and remediate sources of PFAS contamination in the environment thus reducing impacts on human health and aquatic life in Maryland. Without the support of MDH Laboratories Administration, state agencies would be forced to contract out-of-state/for-profit private and/or academic laboratories for analytical support at significantly greater expense and with inherent delays.

9.2 MDE Field Services

Drinking Water Monitoring Section

Background

The Field Investigations and Environmental Response Program (FIERP) Drinking Water Monitoring Section (DWM) works under the direction of the Water Supply Program to conduct Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) monitoring of public water systems statewide. Monitoring includes the collection of SDWA requirements as well as special collections in response to complaints or suspected contamination. DWM also routinely participates in additional monitoring as needed such as Groundwater Under Direct Influence (GWUDI), UCMR, and PFAS. Our section currently includes just 3 full-time employees (including the section head and a recently converted contractual position) and depends heavily on other staff within shared/overlapping responsibilities within the FIERP based on regions where staff reside to maximize our efficiency. Sixteen FIERP staff (including the 3 dedicated DWM section staff) are part of DWM efforts (recently down from 17 due to a retirement).

Current Actions

DWM began monitoring for PFAS in Community Water Systems in the fall of 2020. DWM has completed 4 phases of collections, totaling approximately 1369 samples (including blanks, Phase 1 153, Phase 2 181, Phase 3 812, Phase 4 223). We also collected 50 samples from private wells near WL Gore in Cecil County in March 2023. The addition of PFAS collections has pushed our capabilities to near maximum capacity. Factors contributing to the strain of PFAS monitoring within FIERP, in addition to the volume of samples collected, include 1) additional processing of bottles needed to reduce potential contamination, 2) collections often involve raw water collection or confirmation of sources, and 3) the timing and prioritization of collections specified. Preservatives must be added to PFAS bottles using a scale under ultra-clean conditions due to the ubiquitous nature of PFAS compounds. Other sample types, for example, enable samplers to add preservatives individually under much less extreme conditions. We routinely collect at the Point of Entry to Distribution (POE) of Water Treatment Plants (WTP) during 'normal' operation (which could involve combinations of various source waters). WTP

operators and DWM staff are familiar with these locations, and we typically simply record sources in operation at the time of collection. However, collection of each source water or collection of POE containing specific source waters requires much more time and effort. Timing and prioritization specificity are perhaps the most straining factors. For example, PFAS phases have typically started at points in the year when samplers have already visited WTPs to collect other compliance samples, thus requiring additional visits. The specific order of collection sequence required intensive scheduling, coordination, and tracking to align with staff availability due to their primary work responsibilities.

Future Actions

We anticipate first-time PFAS collections from all non-community public water systems as well as continued assistance to counties to better understand aquifers supplying Maryland residents served by private wells. Additional local investigations involving specific contamination sites are also likely. We also anticipate PFAS becoming a routine compliance sample in both community and non-community public water systems. Our DWM section will continue to do our best to accommodate these needs. However, we also foresee increases in PFAS monitoring and other emerging contaminant requirements throughout FIERP (e.g., shellfish monitoring, TMDL, Intensive Surveys, etc). Such increases could decrease the availability of FIERP-shared drinking water samplers, thus threatening the completion of any time-sensitive assignments. Some ways to help ensure our capabilities meet future demands include, 1) purchasing PFAS bottles that already contain preservatives, 2) limiting/standardizing PFAS collections to POE in public water systems and distribution in private wells (e.g., outside tap or kitchen sink), and 3) allowing adequate time and flexibility for DWM staff to conduct desired collections with maximum efficiency.

Bioregulatory Monitoring and Response Division

Background

The Field Investigations and Environmental Response Program's (FIERP) Bioregulatory Monitoring and Response Division works under the direction of Federal Clean Water Act directives to conduct Fish Tissue Monitoring in fishable waters throughout the State. The foundation of this monitoring is a list of 60 stations that have been monitored since the 1970s for contaminants, generally on a five-year rotation. The State's need for background PFAS data from fish tissue was addressed beginning in the fall of 2020. By the fall of 2022, most of the Core fish tissue monitoring stations had been sampled for fish tissue, and at least one surface water sample was taken. The exceptions were that no impoundments were sampled (10 stations). In addition to the Core stations, several other stations were sampled because of their proximity to potential sources of PFAS. Three additional stations were added to assess blue crabs. Sampling for other routine contaminants (PCBs and mercury) was suspended during the push to get this PFAS data. Our Division currently includes 4 permanent and 1 contractual full-time employees. Two of these five employees have the knowledge and experience to sample fish (the former Division Chief retired in April 2023).

Current Actions

FIERP is currently in the process of providing consumption advisory guidance based on the PFAS concentrations found in the samples collected in the last three years.

Future Actions

When the fish tissue and surface water data are fully analyzed, additional sampling will be conducted to fill data gaps, address new potential sources, and further refine the knowledge from areas where higher concentrations were found. In addition, routine statewide fish tissue monitoring of core stations on a five-year cycle will resume in Fall 2023. Samples will be analyzed for PCBs, mercury, and PFAS to support fish consumption advisories. Filling an existing vacancy (Natural Resources Planner V) in this section will be necessary to meet additional fish tissue and surface water sampling demands so that we do not need to request assistance from other Divisions within the FIERP or other cooperating agencies.

MOS SB0956 Water Pollution Control -- PFAS Feb 202

Uploaded by: Kurt Schwarz Position: FAV
MARYLAND ORNITHOLOGICAL SOCIETY



February 20, 2024

Committee: Education, Energy, and the Environment

<u>Testimony on: SB0956 Environment – Water Pollution Control – Protecting State</u> <u>Waters from PFAS Pollution (Protecting State Waters from PFAS Pollution Act)</u>

Position: Support SB0956

The Maryland Ornithological Society MOS strongly supports SB0956, and urges the Committee to issue a favorable report. This bill would establish limits on the discharge of PFAS chemicals by significant industrial users into Maryland waters. MOS supports efforts to reduce the amount PFAS being discharged into our environment., and support the Protecting State Waters from PFAS Pollution Act. Our reasons are as follows:

- PFAS chemicals due to strong fluorine-carbon bonds persist in the environment for years;
- Many such as PFOA and PFOS bioaccumulate in the tissues of wildlife, sometimes to toxic levels;
- PFAS has been found in eggs, blood, and livers of birds, with concentrations being especially pronounced in industrial areas of North America, Europe, and east Asia;¹
- PFAS has been shown to reduce hatching success in Double-crested Cormorants in North America² and Little Ringed Plovers in Asia³;
- Wetland-associated insectivorous birds may be particularly at risk of impaired reproduction due to exposure to PFOS and possibly other forms of PFAS;⁴

¹ Bonisoli-Alquati, Andrea, PFAS concentrations in birds.

https://www.bonisolialquatilab.com/pfas-concentrations-in-birds.html

https://www.sfei.org/sites/default/files/biblio_files/PFAS%20Synthesis%20and% 20Strategy.pdf

https://cfpub.epa.gov/si/si_public_record_report.cfm?dirEntryId=357491&Lab= CCTE

² Sedlak, Meg, et al, Per and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFASs) in San Francisco Bay: Synthesis and Strategy, June 2018,

³ Yoo, Hoon, et al Perfluoroalkyl acids in the egg yolk of birds from Lake Shihwa, Korea. August 2008, <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/18754515/</u>

⁴ Etterson, Matt, et al, Food Web Exposure and Consequent Effects of PFAS on Birds. Strategic Environmental Research and Development Program & Environmental Security Technology Certification Program and DoD Operational EnergySERDP-ESTCP-OE-Innovation Symposium, Arlington, VA, November 29 -December 02, 2022.

- PFAS has even been found in the blood of Snow Buntings above the Arctic Circle in the Svalbard archipelago⁵, as well as in Northern Cardinals in Hawaii⁶;
- Health harms are potentially most concerning for populations of endangered and threatened species exposed to PFAS and other toxic pollutants. Restricting discharge of PFAS presents an opportunity to protect wildlife from chemical pollution and advance species conservation.⁷

As can be seen above, PFAS is ubiquitous, persistent, and injurious to the health of humans and wildlife, to include birds. North America has lost almost 30% of its birds since 1970.⁸ It would behoove us to limit the continued deposition of PFAS on the landscape, in our waters, and food. We urge the Committee to issue a favorable report.

Sincerely,

Kurt R. Schwarz Conservation Chair Emeritus Maryland Ornithological Society <u>www.mdbirds.org</u>

https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/30710759/

⁵ Warner, Nicolas, et al, Snow Buntings (Plectrophenax nivealis) as bioindicators for exposure difference in legacy and emerging persistent organic pollutants from the Arctic terrestrial environment on Svalvard, February 2019, <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/30833262/</u>

⁶ Russell, Marie C. et al, Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances in two different populations of northern cardinals, May 2019, https://pubmed.nchi.plm.nih.gov/30710759/

⁷ Andrews, David Q. et al, Discussion: Has the human population become a sentinel for the adverse effects of PFAS contamination on wildlife health and endangered species?, Science of The Total Environment, Volume 901, 25 November 2023, https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0048969723045643?via %3Dihub

⁸ Rosenberg, Kenneth V. et al, Decline of the North American avifauna, Science, VOL 366, NO. 6451, 19 September 2019,

https://www.science.org/doi/10.1126/science.aaw1313?adobe_mc=MCORGID%3D242B6 472541199F70A4C98A6%2540AdobeOrg%7CTS%3D1707754028

SB0956-FAV-DTMG-2-20024.pdf Uploaded by: Olivia Bartlett Position: FAV



Olivia Bartlett, DoTheMostGood

COMMITTEE: Education, Energy, and the Environment

TESTIMONY ON: SB0956: Environment - Water Pollution Control - Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution (Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act)

POSITION: FAVORABLE

HEARING DATE: February 20, 2024

BILL CONTACT: Senator Katie Fry Hester

DoTheMostGood (DTMG) is a progressive grass-roots organization with members in all districts in Montgomery County as well as in several nearby districts. DTMG supports legislation that keeps all residents healthy and safe in a clean environment. Therefore, DTMG strongly supports SB0956 to to restrict discharge of highly toxic PFAS compounds from large industries into our waterways and into wastewater treatment plants. This important legislation will help ensure polluting industries bear responsibility for preventing PFAS contamination in our waterways and drinking water, preventing Maryland taxpayers and families from paying the costs with our health and pocketbooks.

Per-and polyfluoroalkyl substances, commonly known as PFAS, are used in a wide variety of consumer products, from personal care products and non-stick pans to car seats and carpets. They are also used by industries to make things greaseproof and water resistant. According to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), there is no safe level of PFAS in drinking water. Accordingly, the EPA has proposed a maximum contamination limit of 4 ppt for several PFAS, which is a big step forward from the previous advisory of 70 ppt.

Exposure to even low levels of PFAS is linked to a range of health problems, including:

- Kidney damage, leading to chronic kidney disease or kidney cancer,
- Reduced antibody responses to vaccinations in both children and adults, and
- Increased risk of gestational diabetes, preeclampsia, low birth weight, and childhood obesity

According to Maryland's PFAS Action Plan, 14% of Maryland industries that responded to a survey reported having PFAS sources on-site. In some cases, manufacturers and users of these chemicals are dumping them directly into our rivers, lakes, and streams. Other companies might be "indirectly" discharging PFAS by sending it to treatment plants. This toxic pollution threatens not only our drinking water but also fish and wildlife.

Many drinking water sources in Maryland are already contaminated with PFAS, and it's important for the health of all Marylanders to limit further pollution. The Maryland Department of the Environment (MDE) found PFAS in 75% of the drinking water it has tested. MDE also issued fish consumption advisories for PFAS from some Maryland waterways. Independent testing has also found alarming levels of PFAS in Maryland's water and seafood. Newer types of PFAS are no safer for human health and the environment than older PFAS, such as PFOA and PFOS, and may travel more easily

through water, resulting in widespread exposure, and thus may pose more risks to human and environmental health.

The best way to address PFAS contamination is to prevent the contamination in the first place. Until the use of PFAS can be phased out, we should do everything we can to keep industries from sending more PFAS-contaminated discharges to our water treatment plants and into our ecosystem. Moreover, existing pollution control technology can capture roughly 99 percent of PFAS in wastewater. Safeguarding against PFAS chemicals as a class is the best way to protect human health. Trying to regulate one chemical at a time will only leave us in an endless game of whack-a-mole.

In 2022, the General Assembly passed the George "Walter" Taylor Act, with broad bi-partisan support, to restrict the use of PFAS in food packaging, rugs and carpets, and firefighting foam in Maryland. It is now time to restrict discharge of toxic PFAS chemicals into Maryland's water.

SB0956 is the right bill to do that, SB0956

• Does not ban PFAS in industrial processes.

• Aligns with State authority under the Clean Water Act to restrict the discharge of toxic chemicals, including PFAS.

• Ensures large industries that knowingly use PFAS use modern filters to stop their discharge into waterways, stormwater, and to wastewater treatment plants.

• Sets a discharge limit of 4ppt for PFAS, which aligns with EPA recommendations.

Therefore, for all these reasons, DoTheMostGood strongly recommends a **FAVORABLE** report on SB0956.

Respectfully submitted,

Olivia Bartlett DoTheMostGood oliviabartlett@verizon.net 240-751-5599

SB956_IndivisibleHoCo_FAV_Peter Alexander.pdf Uploaded by: Peter Alexander

Position: FAV



SB956

Environment – Water Pollution Control – Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution (Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act) Testimony before the Education, Energy, and the Environment Hearing February 20, 2024 Position: Favorable

Dear Chair Feldman and Vice-Chair Kagan, and members of the committee, my name is Peter Alexander, and I represent the 700+ members of Indivisible Howard County. Indivisible Howard County is an active member of the Maryland Legislative Coalition (with 30,000+ members). We are providing written testimony today **in support of SB956.** We appreciate the leadership of Senator Hester for sponsoring this legislation.

Per-and polyfluoroalkyl substances, commonly known as PFAS and "forever chemicals", are a large class of more than 10,000 structurally-related compounds that are used in a variety of consumer products including everything from personal care products and non-stick pans to car seats and carpets. They are also used by industries to make things greaseproof and water resistant.

PFAS is everywhere – in our environment, our food and water, and in our bodies. The Maryland Department of the Environment (MDE) found PFAS in 75% of drinking water it has tested. MDE has also issued food advisories for PFAS contamination from some Maryland waterways. PFAS contamination is a huge problem because these chemicals have been associated with human disease, including chronic kidney disease or kidney cancer, reduced antibody responses to vaccinations in both children and adults, increased risk of gestational diabetes, preeclampsia, low birth weight and childhood obesity. The US EPA has proposed a maximum contamination limit of 4 ppt for several PFAS types but has stated that there is no safe level of PFAS in drinking water.

SB956 aligns with State authority under the Clean Water Act to restrict the discharge of toxic chemicals, including PFAS. It ensures large industries that knowingly use PFAS use modern filters to stop their discharge into waterways, stormwater, and to wastewater treatment plants, and sets a discharge limit of 4ppt for PFAS. It DOES NOT ban PFAS in industrial processes.

EPA allows states to restrict PFAS discharges under the Clean Water Act, and existing pollution control technology can capture roughly 99 percent of PFAS in wastewater. Safeguarding against PFAS chemicals as a class is the best way to protect human health. Let's enact SB956.

Thank you for your consideration of this important legislation.

We respectfully urge a favorable report.

Peter Alexander, PhD District 9A Woodbine, MD 21797

Testimony in support of SB0956.pdf Uploaded by: Richard KAP Kaplowitz Position: FAV

SB0956 RichardKaplowitz FAV

2/20/2024

Richard Keith Kaplowitz Frederick, MD 21703

<u>TESTIMONY ON SB#/0956 - POSITION: FAVORABLE</u> Environment - Water Pollution Control - Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution (Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act)

TO: Chair Feldman, Vice Chair Kagan, and members of the Education, Energy, and the Environment Committee

FROM: Richard Keith Kaplowitz

My name is Richard Keith Kaplowitz. I am a resident of District 3. I am submitting this testimony in favor of SB#/0956, Environment - Water Pollution Control - Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution (Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act)

This bill is both a health and an environmental measure that seeks to keep PFAS chemicals (Per and Polyfluorinated Substances) out of the environment as much as possible. The CDC defines these chemicals as a group of chemicals used to make fluoropolymer coatings and products that resist heat, oil, stains, grease, and water. Fluoropolymer coatings can be in a variety of products. These include clothing, furniture, adhesives, food packaging, heat-resistant non-stick cooking surfaces, and the insulation of electrical wire. Many PFAS, including perfluorooctane sulfonic acid (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA), are a concern because they:

- do not break down in the environment,
- can move through soils and contaminate drinking water sources,
- build up (bioaccumulate) in fish and wildlife. ¹

The CDC further explains the dangers of PFAS chemicals. ² This is a bill to force a reduction by industrial users of PFAS discharges into bodies of water. The proper storage and disposal of PFAS chemicals must be mandated with penalties for improper protection being applied. The risks of PFAS are known, Maryland must take the lead in containing them and the damages that they are causing.

I respectfully urge this committee to return an favorable report on SB#/0956

¹<u>https://www.cdc.gov/biomonitoring/PFAS_FactSheet.html</u>

² <u>https://www.cdc.gov/niosh/topics/pfas/default.html</u>

Gore-Tex maker polluted some Marylanders' drinking Uploaded by: Emily Scarr

Position: FWA

NEWS > **ENVIRONMENT**

SUBSCRIBER ONLY

Gore-Tex maker polluted some Marylanders' drinking water with 'forever chemicals,' officials say. The question is how many.



Cecil County resident Norma Calabro stands outside her well house at her home, which is near W.L. Gore's Cherry Hill location. She is one of the plaintiffs in a class-action lawsuit focusing on PFAS contamination. (Jerry Jackson/Staff)



By **CHRISTINE CONDON** | chcondon@baltsun.com PUBLISHED: February 15, 2024 at 11:08 a.m. | UPDATED: February 15, 2024 at 12:24 p.m.

The maker of the renowned Gore-Tex waterproofing for outdoor gear polluted groundwater near two of its plants in Northeastern Maryland with a hazardous "forever chemical," according to the Maryland Department of the Environment.

State investigations at the manufacturing sites in the Elkton area of Cecil County indicate W.L. Gore & Associates released a harmful type of the long-lasting PFAS pollutants, formally known as per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances, at some point in its decades-long past, said Tyler Abbott, director of MDE's land and materials administration. The locations are the company's Cherry Hill and Fair Hill facilities.

Some of the homes closest to the sites, residences that mostly relied on wells, saw elevated levels of PFAS in their drinking water as a result, MDE says. Revelations that PFAS chemicals are astoundingly persistent in the environment, and that some pose a threat to human health, have thrust Gore, whose products are beloved by outdoors enthusiasts, into the center of a vexing environmental problem, <u>compelled it to reimagine its namesake brand</u> and left it facing lawsuits from a former employee and neighbors.

Meanwhile, MDE is trying to determine the "radius" of pollution that could be attributed to the two Elkton-area sites, Abbott said.

"The sample results that we are seeing would indicate that Gore is responsible for some — if not all — of the pollution," Abbott said. "It's just delineating that line."

Gore "continues to work voluntarily and proactively with the Maryland Department of the Environment to fully understand the situation, while providing support to our community throughout the process," company spokeswoman Deena O'Brien said in a statement.

The Newark, Delaware-based company relied on varieties of PFAS that are heat-, water- and oil-resistant to make waterproof membranes and coatings for raincoats, medical equipment and even space suits. Along the way, its Gore-Tex became a household name. But a harmful PFAS compound called PFOA was once contained within the raw materials it used. The manufacturers of dangerous PFAS compounds, including DuPont and 3M Co., have agreed to multimillion-dollar settlements in the U.S. over environmental contamination and health impacts, which include cancer and damage to reproductive and immune systems.

Gore, which previously used the compounds but did not manufacture them — didn't face that sort of litigation until 2022. That's when a family from the Cherry Hill area sued in U.S. District Court in Baltimore. They alleged the nearby Gore plant contaminated their water supply with a harmful PFAS compound called PFOA. A class-action lawsuit followed in 2023, filed on behalf of anyone who lived, worked or went to school within a 3½-mile radius of that plant for at least six months.

Gore said in 2014 that it had stopped using the compound, but PFOA's enduring nature means it lingers in the environment.



Cecil County residents located near W.L. Gore's Cherry Hill location filed a classaction lawsuit last year. (Jerry Jackson/Staff)

After the cases were filed, Maryland regulators opened an investigation into Gore, and Abbott said the state now believes Gore contributed at least some PFOA to the environment.

Figuring out how that happened is complicated, he said. Gore employees handled materials containing harmful PFAS at the facilities dating back as far as the 1970s.

"We're not really sure. I'm not sure that Gore is either," Abbott said. "Just picture handling such a product and washing your hands in the sink. That leads to contamination. So it's trying to really figure out what might have got us here. Because small things like that do make a difference." The lawsuits allege unlined storage ponds at Gore's Cherry Hill site may have held PFAS-contaminated wastewater from the manufacturing process, and it could have leached into the community's groundwater. The suits also suggest that during the drying process for Gore's materials, harmful PFAS could have left the sites in vapor.

O'Brien said the company denies the lawsuits' claims, although she declined to comment on specific allegations because the litigation is ongoing. However, she also said the suits "fail to acknowledge key facts about Gore's proactive steps" to process PFAS responsibly.

Recently, Gore has paid to connect a handful of homes next to its Cherry Hill plant to a public water system, a company spokesperson said.

Other homes are farther from the necessary infrastructure. Gore has offered water treatment systems to 134 households within a mile of both of its plants, regardless of the pollution level detected at each home, O'Brien said.

Gore also hired a firm to conduct testing on its sites. In coordination with MDE, Gore is evaluating its other Elktonarea locations, according to the agency. In Cecil County, the company has 14 facilities and 2,900 workers, making it the largest private employer.

MDE, for its part, is "satisfied" by Gore's provisions of bottled water, treatment systems and public water hookups, said agency spokesman Jay Apperson. Abbott declined to comment on the state's next steps, but many "different legal avenues" are possible, he said.

The agency feels confident that the radius of Gore's pollution includes private wells sampled within a quarter mile of the Cherry Hill and Fair Hill sites, Apperson said.

The Baltimore Sun obtained laboratory testing commissioned by the law firm that filed the suits. It found homes closest to Gore's Cherry Hill plant had levels of harmful PFOA as high as 710 parts per trillion.

The federal Environmental Protection Agency <u>has said</u> the compound becomes dangerous in drinking water, given a lifetime of exposure, at 0.004 parts per trillion. But considering the limitations of testing and water treatment technology, <u>the</u> <u>agency has proposed</u> that the enforceable drinking water limit for this compound be 4 parts per trillion.

Though other PFAS compounds have been detected near the Gore sites, PFOA is the main contaminant of concern. That's because it consistently has the highest readings, Apperson said.

State testing of well water more than a quarter mile from the two Gore sites was less conclusive. PFOA levels were lower, though many were still above the EPA's proposed standard, and didn't show a clear pattern in relation to the Gore sites. On average, the levels were under 10 parts per trillion, with a maximum of about 55 parts per trillion.



The "forever chemical" PFOA was detected in concentrations over the Environmental Protection Agency's 4 parts per trillion limit in most of the more than 100 samples the state tested last year from private wells within a 2-mile radius of either W.L. Gore's Cherry Hill or Fair Hill plants. The Maryland Department of the Environment has not determined how much of that pollution could be attributed to the plants. | Sources: Maryland Department of the Environment, OpenStreetMap (Staff Graphic)

"The fate and transport of PFAS is not like other, more easily discernible contaminants," Apperson said in a statement. Because PFAS chemicals have been manufactured for such a long time, and linger so long in the environment, they can be found all over the globe at low levels, even far from a source, said Christopher Higgins, a Colorado School of Mines civil and environmental engineering professor who studies PFAS.

"If you were to collect a water sample on the surface of the planet, there's a good chance if you collected enough of the water, you could measure it pretty much anywhere," Higgins said.

There's also the chance that other local sources — such as household septic tanks — contribute to diffuse levels, Abbott said. That's because a significant portion of the population likely carries at least some PFAS in their bloodstreams. When those compounds leave the body, they can contaminate the waste that enters underground septic systems.

"Could that be something that creates background levels?" Abbott said. "There's a lot of things that we're talking about, just to get an idea of what is affecting us as a state."

As the state races to uncover the damage that PFAS have wrought, industrial sites like Gore's are just one focus. Military bases, firefighter training areas and airfields are also part of the picture.

Federal law compels testing on military sites, and PFAS levels in the thousands and millions parts per trillion have been found in bases in Maryland, mainly where firefighting foams containing PFAS were used. The scope of the state's review also includes wastewater treatment plants and landfills. In response to a recent survey by MDE, 14% of the state's industrial sites reported at least some PFAS on location.

'You just feel like you're helpless'

Robin Waddell and her husband moved into their Elkton-area home more than 50 years ago. They raised their children there. They built a life.

So they were stunned to learn their drinking water contained higher-than-acceptable levels of more than one PFAS compound — and that it could date back decades.

"You just feel like you're helpless," said Waddell, whose tap had levels of 15 parts per trillion of PFOA. "What can you do? We've already had this exposure for so many years ongoing. It's not like we just moved into this house."

Waddell said her family can't afford the kind of water treatment system that could address the PFAS contamination a reverse osmosis system or granular activated carbon filters. The Waddell family hasn't been contacted by Gore about treatment options. Their home is about 2 miles from Gore's Cherry Hill site — beyond the radius within which Gore is offering free systems.

Waddell said she can't avoid using well water that relies on a groundwater aquifer because her home can't be connected to a public water system. So far, four Cherry Hill households have been hooked up with Artesian Water, the water system serving the area, said Joseph DiNunzio, president of Artesian Water Maryland. The company is extending service to a fifth household, and is in discussion with six others.

"We can easily — and have — provided water service to people who have properties adjacent to our existing water lines," DiNunzio said. "It gets a little more complicated when the water main has to be extended for someone."

Artesian Water does not have infrastructure in the Fair Hill area, and doesn't have authorization to expand there, DiNunzio said.

Under Maryland law, a resident benefitting from a water main extension has to pay for it, he said. The provision was intended to prevent existing customers from being forced to fund a system's expansion, he added. Such costs can be staggering.

"We've had discussions with Gore, but we're not in a position to tell you what their intent is," DiNunzio said. "If they want that to happen, and want to participate in that, we have the water available."

Gore's O'Brien said the company evaluated connecting homes adjacent to Fair Hill to Artesian Water, but determined that water treatment systems would be "the most effective and timely alternative." About 10% of Maryland's population is served by wells. It's up to individual well owners to test for PFAS and figure out next steps. Maryland regulators recommend that owners of wells with levels higher than the EPA standard install treatment technology or switch to public water.

State officials are developing an online map showing well owners where testing for PFAS is recommended, based on known sources of contamination. Maryland regulators also are considering requiring PFAS testing before new wells can be brought online.



Cecil County resident Norma Calabro sits on the porch of her home located near W.L. Gore's Cherry Hill location. Calabro is one of the plaintiffs in a class-action lawsuit focusing on contamination discovered in their wells. (Jerry Jackson/Staff photo)

Norma Calabro, who lives in the Cherry Hill area more than a mile from Gore's plant, said she used to cherish the squat, brick springhouse nestled in the woods behind her backyard. She used to tell friends and family she had some of the purest drinking water in the world.

The news about Gore shook her faith.

Her well tested at 2 parts per trillion of PFOA, less than the EPA's proposed limit for drinking water, but more than the agency says is safe.

Calabro, 81, said she needs to learn more about whether to install a treatment system.

"If I went ahead and put in a system, I might find out later that it's not big enough, not strong enough ... and have to do it all over," Calabro said. "Whatever I have to do — I would expect would be reimbursed by Gore. But I don't know when."



Waddell thinks of her parents-in-law, who lived next door. Each developed a type of cancer. Calabro's husband died of bladder cancer. Both women wonder if PFAS contamination played a part. In this part of Maryland, near the Delaware headquarters of chemical companies such as Gore and DuPont Co., the community relies on them, Calabro said. Her father worked for Wilmington, Delaware-based DuPont. Her daughter works for The Chemours Co. of Wilmington, which was spun off from DuPont. Her nephew works at Gore.

"I worked for a big bank, which feeds off of these companies," she said. "We are so tied to these companies. We can't escape."

'Nothing would have changed'

It was a former Gore scientist named Stephen Sutton who started the environmental case against Gore in Cecil County.

After watching a 2018 documentary called "The Devil We Know," which focuses on PFAS contamination from a DuPont Teflon plant in West Virginia, Sutton thought back to his years with Gore, according to his lawsuit.

Sutton worked closely with PTFE, the material behind Teflon and Gore-Tex, starting in 1993 at Gore's Cherry Hill plant. Expanded into thin sheets, it became a waterproof lining for clothing. While PTFE is considered inert and its larger molecules aren't known to react with the human body, it was manufactured using PFOA, a smaller molecule that accumulates in the body and causes health problems.

The residents' suit argues Gore was aware of the potential harm well before it removed PFOA from its manufacturing in 2014. Sutton alleges in his suit that after he was hired at Gore and looked for a home in the area, Gore supervisors tried to dissuade him without explanation from buying close to the Cherry Hill plant. Sutton's family chose a home a bit over a mile from Gore.

The suit also alleges that Gore had employees undergo testing of their cholesterol levels, and transferred pregnant employees away from working with PTFE. High cholesterol levels, decreased birth weights and a pregnancy disorder called preeclampsia are associated with PFOA exposure. Gore told employees such as Sutton the materials they worked with were safe, according to the suit.

In 2000, Gore purchased the house of a former employee who lived directly across from the Cherry Hill plant after they died of cancer complications. It razed the building. Then in 2005, Gore bought a peach orchard adjacent to the plant. At the time, The Baltimore Sun reported the purchase stopped a planned housing development on the site. The orchard was ultimately razed, too, according to the lawsuit. The suit alleges that the purchases were efforts to disguise contamination.

Gore declined to comment on the specific allegations in the suit, citing the ongoing litigation.

Sutton and his wife, Elizabeth, each battled cancer. By the time they reached out to a team of environmental lawyers asking for help, they had moved to North Carolina. After their investigation, the lawyers were confident Gore contaminated the Suttons' well and the pollution could have contributed to their cancers, said Phil Federico, a partner at the Delaware firm.

The Suttons sued Gore in federal court in June 2022. Last February, the firm filed the class-action suit with similar allegations. Later that month, Maryland officials notified Gore that the state investigation into potential PFAS contamination was beginning.

Before the suits, MDE had started its effort to test key locations statewide for PFAS chemicals. An area several miles downstream of Gore's Cherry Hill site made the list. A state contractor in 2019 tested the Little Elk Creek, near the Triumph Industrial Park in Elkton and about 5 miles downstream from that plant, Apperson said. The results showed no PFAS in sediment, "very low" levels in the water, and "did not reveal any obvious relationship to the W.L. Gore site," Apperson said.

Initially, Maryland planned to test groundwater downstream of the Gore plant, too. But the state didn't get adequate participation from nearby property owners, Apperson wrote.

"We only received one response and that property was on the very fringe of the potential area of concern," Apperson wrote.

Starting last February, after Federico's law firm publicized its suit against Gore and held community meetings, MDE started receiving numerous requests and was able to complete its testing. While it's concerning that Maryland didn't catch the groundwater contamination earlier, Federico said, his bigger concern is that Gore did not report potential issues with PFAS contamination to the state agency.

"They have an obligation to report to a regulatory agency when they are generating a carcinogen, and they have an obligation to stop doing it and fix the problem," Federico said. "They can't turn a blind eye and do it for years — even decades. Which is what happened in this case."

Tab**291a** Feed

Heart Surgeon Begs Americans: "Stop Drinking This Milk Alternative"

Gundry MD | Sponsored

Watch Now

Learn More

Seniors on SS Are Now Entitled To These 24 "Kickbacks" In February (Tap For Full List)

YourPennySaver | Sponsored

Toddler's Hilarious Reaction To First Day Of Day Care Sends Internet Into A Frenzy - Blavity

Blavity.com | Sponsored

The US Government Is Providing Free Covid Test Kits Again This Winter (Claim Yours Now)

Free Covid Tests | Wise Wallet | Sponsored



Sasha Obama Ruffles Feathers For Carrying School Books In Telfar On USC Campus - Blavity

Blavity.com | Sponsored

2 Cards Charging 0% Interest Until 2025

CompareCredit | Sponsored

Target Shoppers Say This Drugstore Wrinkle Cream Is Actually Worth It

BrunchesNCrunches | Sponsored

Orthopedists Amazed: This Shoe Helps with Pain Like No Other

Barefoot Vitality | Sponsored

All-New 2024 Toyota Highlander For Seniors - Price Might Surprise

2024 Toyota Highlander | Sponsored

Atopic dermatitis is silent but deadly: new signs, new therapies

Healthversed | Sponsored

Travis Kelce Doesn't Care What Fans Say About His Car investing.com | Sponsored

Brand New Jeep Grand Cherokee For Seniors Is Pure Perfection - See The Prices

Jeep Grand Cherokee 2024 Prices | Sponsored

No 'social club' sentence for Marilyn Mosby | READER COMMENTARY

No 'social club' sentence for Marilyn Mosby

Click Here

Learn More

Click Here

The biggest loser of the AFC championship game? Taylor Swift, if that's how her boyfriend always acts. | GUEST COMMENTARY

Watching Taylor Swift's boyfriend, Travis Kelce, play in the AFC championship game against the Baltimore Ravens on Sunday, I ... Baltimore Sun

Ravens kicker Justin Tucker says Travis Kelce throwing his helmet pregame was 'just some gamesmanship'

The moment of Travis Kelce and Patrick Mahomes throwing Justin Tucker's helmet went viral, but Tucker said it was "just some Baltimore Sun

I'll No Longer Be Going to Casinos, Here's the Reason.

BuzzDaily Winners | Sponsored

The First Red Flag Of Metastatic Breast Cancer (Write This Down)

Metastatic Breast Cancer | Sponsored

Brand-New Subaru Outback 2024 Is Pure Perfection - Look At Prices

New 2024 Subaru Outback | Sponsored

The All New Mind Blowing Chevy Silverado Is Finally Here (Take a Look)

Chevy Silverados | Sponsored

Read More

Learn More

Click Here

Learn More

Do This To Stop Your Dog's Barking - Works For All Breeds

Barks No More | Sponsored

Learn More

Maryland weather: Snow expected Friday night into Saturday

Baltimore Sun

Larry Hogan says it's 'not necessary' to add abortion rights to state constitution, but says he would oppose national abortion ban

Baltimore Sun

All-New 2024 Buick Envision Is Utter Perfection - See Prices

Buick Envision 2024 | Sponsored

All-New Subaru Outback 2024 Is Sheer Perfection - See The Prices

2024 Subaru Outback | Sponsored

Click Here

Learn More

Click Here

Tired Of "Turkey Neck"? Plastic Surgeon Says To Do This Daily

Beverly Hills MD | Sponsored

SPONSORED CONTENT

This Is The Hardest History Quiz You'll Ever Take - Can You Get Even One Right? 2

By **TACO RELISH** – It's worth considering how well you remember what you learned in history class. It's worth considering how well you remember what you learned in history class. Could you pass an elementary school pop quiz right now?

2024 > February > 15

SB956_StopToxicPFAS_FAV_Emily Scarr_MDPIRG_EEE_spo Uploaded by: Emily Scarr

Position: FWA



SB956: Environment - Water Pollution Control - Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution (Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act) Education, Energy and the Environment February 20th, 2024 Emily Scarr, Maryland PIRG Director FAVORABLE

Maryland PIRG is a state based, small donor funded public interest advocacy organization with grassroots members across the state. We work to find common ground around common sense solutions that will help ensure a healthier, safer, more secure future.

The best way to address PFAS contamination and all that comes with it, is to prevent it in the first place. We need to phase out the use of PFAS, but for the time being, we should do everything we can to keep industries from sending PFAS contaminated water to our water treatment plants and into our ecosystem.

The <u>EPA has made clear</u> that states can restrict PFAS discharges under the Clean Water Act. Moreover, existing pollution control technology can capture roughly 99 percent of PFAS in wastewater. Safeguarding against PFAS chemicals as a class is the best way to protect human health. Trying to regulate one chemical at a time will only leave us in an endless game of whack-a-mole.

We support SB956, with sponsor amendments, to require the Maryland Department of Environment (MDE) to:

- 1. Identify and require testing and monitoring of discharge from some large industries that use PFAS;
- 2. Require MDE, Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTWs) and Significant Industrial Users (SIUs) to develop action levels and mitigation plans for addressing PFAS contamination; and,
- 3. Require MDE to develop standard max contaminant levels (MCL) for individual legacy PFAS and total PFAS.

This legislation will help identify and address potential sources of PFAS contamination in the state, putting pressure on industries to prevent PFAS contamination in our waterways and drinking water. This should help prevent Maryland taxpayers and families from paying for the costs of contamination with our health and pocketbooks.

Per-and polyfluoroalkyl substances, commonly known as PFAS, are used in a variety of consumer products including everything from personal care products and non-stick pans to car seats and carpets. They are also used by industries to make things greaseproof and water resistant.

According to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, there is <u>no safe level of some PFAS in drinking</u> <u>water</u>. Accordingly, the <u>EPA has proposed</u> a maximum contamination limit of 4 ppt for several PFAS which is a big step forward from the previous limit of 70 ppt. According to a 2020 report from leading PFAS experts PFAS should be <u>regulated as a class</u> in order to protect health. While we have precise testing for some PFAS, current available testing for total PFAS can only detect in the level of "parts per billion." This bill smartly directs MDE to use a dual approach of setting MCLs for both individual PFAS and an MCL for total PFAS to address both the risks of legacy PFAS and the risks of newer PFAS.

According to Maryland's <u>PFAS Action Plan</u> 14% of Maryland industries that responded to a survey reported having PFAS sources on-site. In some cases, manufacturers and users of these chemicals are discharging them directly into our rivers, lakes and streams. Other companies might be "indirectly" discharging PFAS by sending it to treatment plants. This toxic pollution threatens not only our drinking water but also fish and wildlife.

We recommend a favorable report on this bill, as amended by the sponsor.

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND AND FACTS

The threat of "forever chemicals"

Seemingly every week we are hearing about more communities who have been exposed to dangerous levels of PFAS in their drinking water.

The Maryland Department of the Environment (MDE) found PFAS in 75% of the drinking water it has tested.

We know of contamination in and around more than a dozen military sites in the state and MDE has also issued fish consumption advisories for PFAS in some Maryland waterways,

- Prince George's County has filed suit against chemical manufacturers 3M and DuPont.
- Baltimore City has filed suit against the makers of firefighting foams containing PFAS.
- And Attorney General Brown has sued <u>3M. Dupont</u>, and <u>Other Chemical Manufacturers</u> for PFAS Contamination of Maryland's Waters and Other Natural Resources

Independent testing has also found alarming levels of PFAS in water and seafood.

In 2021, Maryland PIRG Foundation released a report, *The Threat of "Forever Chemicals,"* which outlines known contamination in Maryland, impacts, and potential state actions.

In 2022, the General Assembly passed the <u>George "Walter" Taylor Act</u>, with broad bi-partisan support to restrict the use of PFAS in food packaging, rugs and carpets, and firefighting foam in Maryland.



Video Clip from Bloomberg News

PFAS are harmful to public health. Even low levels of exposure to PFAS are linked to a range of health damages, including:

- Harm to the kidneys, leading to chronic kidney disease or kidney cancer,¹
- Reduced antibody responses to vaccinations in both children and adults,² and
- Increased risk of gestational diabetes, preeclampsia, low birth weight and childhood obesity

Newer types of PFAS are no safer for human health and the environment than older PFAS, such as PFOA and PFOS.³

- New PFAS travel more easily through water, resulting in widespread exposure, and thus may pose more risks to human and environmental health.⁴
- The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has found that two newer PFAS chemicals create many of the same health impacts as older PFAS.⁵
- EPA determined the toxicity of the PFAS known as GenX is in the same range as PFOA, the legacy PFAS it replaced.⁶
- Hundreds of public health experts around the globe have expressed concern about the health impacts of continuing to produce and use all varieties of PFAS.⁷

Many drinking water sources in Maryland are contaminated with PFAS. In late 2019, the Maryland Department of the Environment (MDE) tested for contamination from legacy PFAS at water treatment plants that provide drinking water to 70% of Maryland's population.⁸

- Approximately 75% of the samples had quantifiable levels of PFOA and PFOS.⁹
- The two highest readings were from Westminster and Hampstead, both in Carroll County.¹⁰
- Testing by the U.S. Department of Defense has found PFAS in drinking water at or near a dozen military facilities in Maryland¹¹

¹ Kidney disease: Anoop Shankar, Jie Xiao, and Alan Ducatman, "<u>Perfluoroalkyl chemicals and chronic kidney disease in US adults.</u>" American Journal of Epidemiology, 174(8), DOI: 10.1093/aje/kwr171, 26 August 2011; <u>Kidney cancer: DCEG Staff, National Cancer Institute.</u> <u>Environmental Pollutant. PFOA. Associated with Increased Risk of Kidney Cancer</u>, 20 September 2020.

² Philippe Grandjean et al., "<u>Estimated exposures to perfluorinated compounds in infancy predict attenuated vaccine antibody concentrations at age 5-years</u>," Journal of Immunotoxicology, 14(1), DOI: 10.1080/1547691X.2017.1360968, 2017; Claire Looker et al., "<u>Influenza vaccine response in adults exposed to perfluorooctanoate and perfluorooctanesulfonate</u>," Toxicological Sciences, 128(1), DOI: 10.1093/toxsci/kft269, March 2014.

³ Anna Reade, Natural Resources Defense Council, <u>The Scientific Basis for Managing PFAS as a Chemical Class (blog)</u>. 30 June 2020.

⁴ Fan Li et al., "<u>Short-chain per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances in aquatic systems: occurrence, impacts and treatment</u>," Chemical Engineering Journal, 15 January 2020.

 ⁵ Anna Reade, Natural Resources Defense Council, <u>EPA Finds Replacements for Toxic "Teflon" Chemicals Toxic</u>, 15 November 2018.
⁶ Ibid.; U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, <u>Fact Sheet: Human Health Toxicity Assessment for GenX Chemicals</u>, October 2021.

⁷ Arlene Blum et al., "<u>The Madrid statement on poly- and perfluoroalkyl substances. (PFASs).</u>" Environmental Health Perspectives, 123(5), 1 May 2015, DOI.

⁸ Maryland Department of the Environment, <u>Understanding the Occurrence of Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) in Maryland's Public</u> <u>Drinking Water Sources</u>.

⁹ Ibid., p. 4.

¹⁰ Ibid., p. 4.

¹¹ Environmental Work Group, <u>PFAS Contamination Map</u>, 6 January 2021.

PFAS also contaminate groundwater and seafood in Maryland. PFAS contamination at military sites in Maryland often is traceable to the use of firefighting foam.¹² PFAS from firefighting foam have leached into shallow groundwater, potentially flowing from there into nearby rivers and streams.

- PFAS contamination has been found in groundwater at eight military facilities in six counties in Marvland.13
- Testing found nine different types of PFAS in striped bass, crabs and oysters from the Potomac River and St. Inigoes Creek in southern Maryland.¹⁴
- MDE has detected PFAS in three species of fish from Piscataway Creek, a tributary of the Potomac River in Prince George's County, and has warned people to limit their intake of particular species caught in the creek.15

How PFAS enter our bodies

- **CONTAMINATED WATER:** Drinking water contaminated with PFAS is one of the most common exposure routes.¹⁶
- WORKPLACE EXPOSURE: Workers who make products with PFAS and military personnel or firefighters who work with firefighting foam may be particularly at risk for exposure.¹⁷ For example, these individuals may inhale or swallow PFAS-contaminated dust.¹⁸ They may also absorb PFAS through their skin.¹⁹
- **CONSUMER PRODUCTS:** People can be exposed to PFAS through a variety of consumer products. PFAS migrate from consumer products, resulting in toxic exposure. As stain-resistant furniture and carpets and waterproof clothing break down, they produce dust that can be inhaled or swallowed.20
- **CONTAMINATED FOOD:** Food may be contaminated with PFAS if it is raised in contaminated soil, fertilized with contaminated sewage sludge, or irrigated with contaminated water.²¹ PFAS have been found in fish, shellfish, meat, eggs, milk, fruits and vegetables.²² Processing equipment and packaging that contain PFAS may also add PFAS to food.²³ One analysis of fast food packaging in the U.S. found that 46% of paper used to package food (for example, to wrap hamburgers) and 20% of paperboard (such as for french fry boxes) contained PFAS.²⁴
- **EXPOSURE IN UTERO OR THROUGH BREASTMILK:** Babies can be exposed to PFAS before they are born, if the mother has been exposed to PFAS. Infants may be exposed to PFAS through their mother's breast milk.²⁵ For example, a 2021 study found PFAS in all breastmilk samples collected from 50 nursing mothers in the U.S.²⁶

¹⁵ <u>Maryland Department of the Environment, Department of the Environment Issues First Fish Consumption Advisory for PFAS</u> (press release), 15 October 2021; Christine Condon, "<u>Maryland issues first fish consumption advisory because of PFAS</u>," Baltimore Sun, 17 October 2021.

¹² Naval Air Station Patuxent River Restoration Advisory Board, PFAS Update: Naval Air Station Patuxent River and Webster Outlying Field, 28 April 2021, p. 9.

¹³ Maryland Department of the Environment, <u>Public Health: Maryland and PFAS</u>...

¹⁴ Public Employees for Environmental Responsibility, More PFAS Found in Maryland Water and Seafood, 16 November 2020.

¹⁶ EarthJustice, <u>Breaking Down Toxic PFAS</u>, 9 October 2020.

¹⁷ Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry, Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) and Your Health, 24 June 2020. ¹⁸ Ibid.

¹⁹ Somrutai Poothong et al., "Multiple pathways of human exposure to poly- and perfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs): From external exposure to human blood," Environment International, January 2020, DOI.

²⁰ Sam Hall, Duke, Nicholas School of the Environment, PFAS Found in NC House Dust, 3 December 2020.

²¹ Soil, water: See note 21; sludge: Kevin Miller, "State investigating 'very startling' levels of PFAS chemicals on central Maine dairy farm," Press Herald, 29 July 2020.

²² Carol F. Kwiatkowski et al., "Scientific basis for managing PFAS as a chemical class," Environmental Science and Technology Letters, 7(8), DOI, 30 June 2020.

²³ Food and Drug Administration, Question and Answers on PFAS in Food, 26 August 2021; EPA, Basic Information on PFAS, 8 April 2021.

²⁴ Laura Schaider et al., "Fluorinated compounds in U.S. fast food packaging," Environmental Science & Technology Letters 4(3):105-111.

²⁵ Ulla B. Mogensen et al., "Breastfeeding as an exposure pathway for perfluorinated alkylates," Environmental Science and Technology, 49(17).

²⁶ Guomao Zheng et al., "Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) in breast milk: concerning trends for current-use PFAS," Environmental Science & Technology 55(11):7510-7520, 13 May 2021.
SB 956 MDE SWA.pdf Uploaded by: Les Knapp Position: FWA



The Maryland Department of the Environment Secretary Serena McIlwain

Senate Bill 956

Water Pollution Control – Protecting State Waters from PFAS Pollution (Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act)

Position: Support with Amendments **Committee:** Education, Energy, and the Environment **Date:** February 20, 2024 **From:** Jeremy D. Baker

The Maryland Department of the Environment (MDE) **SUPPORTS** SB 956 **WITH AMENDMENTS**. As introduced, SB 956 would require MDE to establish regulatory limits and impose requirements on significant industrial users (SIUs) to test wastewater discharge and eliminate the presence of total organic fluorine and per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) exceeding 4 parts per trillion (4ppt). Exceeding the 4ppt discharge limit for organic fluorine or PFAS would be a violation of a pretreatment permit (including both SIUs and municipal systems).

Bill Summary

SB 956 would require SIUs to be responsible for eliminating the presence of PFAS chemicals in process water and stormwater discharged to a publicly owned wastewater treatment facility. Additionally, the bill would require a SIU to eliminate products containing PFAS chemicals, replace equipment contaminated with PFAS chemicals, manage the storage of PFAS chemicals, and restrict the disposal of any removed PFAS chemicals.

Position Rationale

As drafted, SB 956 contradicts the elimination of PFAS by allowing a SIU to reuse PFAS chemicals in the industrial users operations. Each SIU would be required to measure levels of organic fluorine chemicals and report the results to MDE, but testing for total organic fluorine has a different objective than testing for specific PFAS compounds. Total organic fluorine is a broader category that encompasses various fluorinated organic substances, whereas PFAS chemical testing provides detailed information about specific PFAS compounds present.

Additionally, SB 956 attempts to address removal of PFAS in the wastewater stream from wastewater treatment facilities that accept wastewater from SIUs and place the responsibility for testing and removal on the SIU. Although this may reduce the PFAS concentration to a wastewater treatment facility, it would not necessarily eliminate any potential for PFAS contamination in facilities with direct discharge permits.

Furthermore, the bill would subject the wastewater facility to violations if the discharge exceeds 4 parts per trillion for PFAS or total organic fluorine, a condition that is not currently a component of any discharge permit. Senate Bill 956 imposes stringent regulations on total organic fluorine and PFAS without flexibility to consider scientific evidence relevant to setting such a limit.

Accordingly, MDE SUPPORTS SB 956 WITH AMENDMENTS.

Amendments

MDE has been engaged in extensive conversations with the bill's sponsor, and have reached an agreement on substantial amendments to the bill. A revised version of the bill would:

- Require MDE to work with Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTWs) and SIUs with pretreatment permits to identify the facilities that currently and intentionally use PFAS chemicals;
- After identifying SIUs who currently use PFAS, require MDE to develop monitoring and testing criteria;
- After developing monitoring and testing criteria, require MDE to work with POTWs, SIUs, and an environmental organization to develop action levels and mitigation plans for addressing PFAS contamination;
- After developing action levels and mitigation plans, require MDE to develop a standard maximum contaminant level for SIU discharge permits for individual PFAS that are known to be harmful, as well as total PFAS
- On or before December 1, 2024, require MDE to update MDE's PFAS Action Plan with the progress made on the requirements above.

With these amendments, the bill would allow MDE the time and deference to identify and address PFAS contamination in the State. Additionally, it would allow MDE, POTWs, and SIUs to work together to incorporate PFAS standards and mitigation measures into the permitting and enforcement process.

SB0956-EEE_MACo_SWA.pdf Uploaded by: Michael Sanderson

Position: FWA



Senate Bill 956

Environment - Water Pollution Control - Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution (Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act)

MACo Position: SUPPORT
WITH AMENDMENTS

To: Education, Energy, and the Environment Committee

Date: February 20, 2024

From: Dominic J. Butchko and Michael Sanderson

The Maryland Association of Counties (MACo) **SUPPORTS** SB 956 **WITH AMENDMENTS**. This bill requires "significant industrial users" of per-and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) to mitigate for contamination in their wastewater before it may enter any wastewater treatment infrastructure. Counties align with the broad intent of the bill, but request an amendment to prevent an unnecessary duplication of federal and state standards.

PFAS are a group of chemicals used to make products resistant to heat, oil, stains, grease, and water. They have been found in anything from clothing, furniture, adhesives, food packaging, heat-resistant non-stick cooking surfaces, insulation of electrical wire, and many more items. From a state and county government perspective, PFAS are troubling because they do not break down in the environment, can easily contaminate drinking water, and are starting to be associated with a slew of troubling health effects. One issue that is very clear is that PFAS mitigation will increasingly grow in necessity, especially at drinking water and wastewater treatment facilities.

Counties applaud the intent of SB 956 as it sensibly places a sizable share of the burden of PFAS mitigation with the significant industrial users who are introducing these substances into the environment. Without such requirements, county governments will almost solely be left as ultimately responsible for costs associated with necessary infrastructure upgrades, diverting resources from constituent services and programming benefitting our mutual constituents.

An analysis by the American Water Works Association found that PFAS mitigation in public water systems could cost taxpayers \$3.2 billion annually, with mitigation across various contributing industries variously also measured in the billions. What is clear is that, today, the actual costs to remedy PFAS remain uncertain, the impacts of PFAS on public health have yet to be fully understood, and no technology yet exists to accurately detect or remove PFAS to levels deemed safe.

The central policy concept of SB 956, however, fails when it is potentially applied to publicly owned facilities, especially municipal solid waste locations (landfills, rubblefills, and the like). If enacted, the proposed requirements could necessitate an additional roughly \$1 million in unplanned expenditures per landfill, abandoning the conceptual "polluter pays" framework in the legislation, as local

government solid waste facilities are not the generators of such materials, but merely the recipients after other actors generate or use the initial products. SB 956 is also duplicative of existing standards and authority under the Maryland Department of the Environment, who has the state-level oversight to govern various contaminants at municipal solid waste facilities operated by county or city governments. Locally run facilities should not be included under the reach of SB 956 alongside the industrial and commercial entities, who are the root source of these pollutants.

While aligned with the broad intent, counties request an amendment exempting local government facilities, to prevent duplication of already tightening federal and state standards for PFAS mitigation. For this reason, MACo urges the Committee to give SB 956 a **FAVORABLE WITH AMENDMENTS** report.

SB 956

Uploaded by: Drew Vetter Position: UNF



Maryland-Delaware Solid Waste Association



National Waste & Recycling AssociationsM Collect. Recycle. Innovate.

- TO: The Honorable Brian J. Feldman, Chair Members, Senate Education, Energy, and the Environment Committee The Honorable Katie Fry Hester
- FROM: PAndrew G. Vetter Pamela Metz Kasemeyer J. Steven Wise Danna L. Kauffman Andrew G. Vetter
- DATE: February 19, 2024
- RE: **OPPOSE** Senate Bill 956 Environment Water Pollution Control Protecting State Waters from PFAS Pollution (Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act)

The Maryland Delaware Solid Waste Association (MDSWA), a chapter of the National Waste and Recycling Association, is a trade association representing the private solid waste industry in the State of Maryland. Its membership includes hauling and collection companies, processing and recycling facilities, transfer stations, and disposal facilities. MDSWA and its members **oppose** Senate Bill 956.

Senate Bill 956 establishes a discharge limit for PFAS chemicals in any water discharged by a significant industrial user. The bill defines "significant industrial user" as a user that discharges an average of 25,000 gallons per day or more of processed wastewater to a wastewater treatment facility. The bill could also apply to any user that a publicly owned treatment works (POTW) designates as a significant industrial user on the basis that the user has a reasonable potential for adversely affecting the wastewater treatment plant's operations.

While MDSWA appreciates the intentions of the bill sponsors to protect our waterways from contamination, we have concerns about compliance with the bill and the lack of alternatives for landfilled waste. PFAS are commonly used in many different products we encounter in our daily lives, many of which get thrown away and ultimately end up in landfills. PFAS may then appear in landfill leachate because they filter out of the deposited waste materials as they naturally degrade. Landfill leachate is collected and treated to remove contaminants.

It is important to highlight that landfills are not producers of PFAS. Nor do landfills utilize or profit from PFAS chemicals. Landfills, which provide an essential public service, are "receivers" of these chemicals used by manufacturers and everyday consumers, and merely convey and/or manage the traces of PFAS coming into our systems daily. In order to address the true sources of these chemicals, it is

imperative to discontinue and phase out production and use (both domestic and foreign) at manufacturing facilities and find safer alternatives. As long as PFAS are elements of products used in our everyday lives, and background levels resulting from decades of manufacturing and use persist, these chemicals will continue to be found in "receiver" streams.

Given that landfills are seemingly impacted by this bill, and that they perform an essential public service and are only "receivers" of PFAS chemicals, we have concerns about the requirements and limits imposed by the legislation. The industry believes additional research should be done to determine whether the limits imposed by the bill are the right ones. A stringent state-level requirement on PFAS could have significant unintended impacts on public and private landfills. If such facilities are deemed unusable under the bill, they may need to install prohibitively expensive supplemental treatment systems. Additionally, policies that limit the landfill disposal of PFAS containing waste could force alternative means of disposal that are less protective of public health and the environment.

Further, the ability to designate a user as a significant industrial user on the "reasonable potential for adversely affecting the wastewater treatment plant's operations" is broad and can result in a wide range of discretion. We believe this authority should be more specifically described in the bill.

MDSWA urges a carefully considered approach on how to manage PFAS holistically. Targeting PFAS at a receiving source, such as a landfill, will not alter the reality that products containing PFAS will continue to enter the waste stream. MDSWA believes that the most significant action we can take today is removing these chemicals from the stream of commerce and continuing to pursue and remediate highly contaminated sites.

MDSWA would gladly participate in any ongoing discussions about how to most effectively remove PFAS from the waste stream and the resulting leachate. We believe such discussions are a prerequisite to any new restrictions, such as those imposed by the bill to account for all potential consequences.

For more information call:

Andrew G. Vetter Pamela Metz Kasemeyer J. Steven Wise Danna L. Kauffman 410-244-7000

SB 956_MDCC_Protecting State Waters From PFAS Poll Uploaded by: Hannah Allen

Position: UNF



LEGISLATIVE POSITION: Unfavorable Senate Bill 956 **Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act** Senate Education, Energy and the Environment Committee Tuesday, February 20, 2024

Dear Chairman Feldman and Members of the Committee:

Founded in 1968, the Maryland Chamber of Commerce is the leading voice for business in Maryland. We are a statewide coalition of more than 6,800 members and federated partners working to develop and promote strong public policy that ensures sustained economic growth and prosperity for Maryland businesses, employees, and families.

SB 956 would lower the discharge limit for PFAS to 4 parts per trillion (ppt) and would apply to any industrial user who is engaged in manufacturing, fabricating, assembling goods or as otherwise identified by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) or the Secretary. While we understand the importance of addressing PFAS contamination, we believe that if this bill passes as currently written, it will have significant adverse impacts on the business community.

The bill proposes standards well below those proposed by the EPA, creating a substantial technical and economic burden for businesses. While the EPA proposed drinking water standards of 4 ppt for only two PFAS – PFOA and PFOS, SB 956 encompasses all PFAS without considering their diverse properties or EPA's approach. We suggest differentiating the types of PFAS that would apply, specifically focusing on the legacy PFAS, PFOA and PFOS, identified by EPA.

We are also concerned that this legislation may unfairly target manufacturers without considering the complexity of PFAS contamination. It fails to account for the possibility of PFAS contamination that may be beyond a manufacturer's control, such as environmental background levels that may already exceed the proposed discharge limit. This could unfairly penalize manufacturing facilities for contamination that originates from sources outside of their operations, such as PFAS present in intake water.

Implementing such stringent standards for all PFAS in wastewater discharge would pose challenges to Maryland's industries and wastewater utilities. This blanket approach disregards the fact that industry is not the sole source of PFAS, complicating compliance efforts.

Lastly, we are aware amendments may be introduced by the sponsor, which could alleviate some of our concerns, but have not yet seen them.

For these reasons, the Chamber respectfully requests an <u>unfavorable report</u> on SB 956.

60 West Street, Suite 100, Annapolis 21401 | 410-269-0642

MDCHAMBER.ORG

SB0956-EEE-LOC.pdf Uploaded by: Nina Themelis Position: INFO



BRANDON M. SCOTT MAYOR

Office of Government Relations 88 State Circle Annapolis, Maryland 21401

February 20, 2024

SB0956

- **TO:** Members of the Senate Education, Energy, and the Environment Committee
- **FROM:** Nina Themelis, Director of Mayor's Office of Government Relations
- **RE:** Senate Bill 956 Environment Water Pollution Control Protecting State Waters from PFAS Pollution (Protecting State Waters From PFAS Pollution Act)

POSITION: Letter of Concern

Chair Feldman, Vice Chair Kagan, and Members of the Committee, please be advised that the Baltimore City Administration (BCA) wishes to **express concerns with SB 956 due to potential operational and fiscal implications** for the City of Baltimore. It has consistently been the city's stance that the financial burden associated with the containment and treatment of PFAS should be shouldered by the manufacturers that produce and profit from them.

The City of Baltimore has a pretreatment program that is overseen by the Maryland Department of the Environment (MDE) in accordance with the Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) national pretreatment program. This program requires industrial dischargers to the public sewer system to apply for a wastewater discharge permit. These permits prescribe limits for certain components of the used water that would be discharged to the public water system.

The bill's PFAS discharge limits will necessitate operational changes, both for industry and for the city, including evaluating current treatment operations, and potentially adopting new technologies for pretreatment facilities. SB 956's criteria could significantly expand the number of facilities classified as Significant Industrial Users (SIU), thereby increasing our agency's monitoring responsibilities. This expansion would require the city to conduct an increased number of inspections, as well as enforcement. Adapting to the bill's mandates would involve a detailed evaluation of current discharge practices and treatment equipment, potentially revealing the need for substantial upgrades or modifications to infrastructure.

The bill's immediate impact on the Quarantine Road Landfill's leachate discharge to the Patapsco Wastewater Treatment Plant may necessitate adopting pretreatment measures to address PFAS contaminants. This is particularly important in managing landfill leachate, the liquid runoff that accumulates in designated ponds to prevent it from seeping into local water systems. This legislation could potentially mandate additional comprehensive pretreatment prior to discharge to the public water system.

We respectfully ask the committee to consider these concerns when addressing the bill. While we recognize the challenges and costs associated with removing PFAS compounds from the environment, the City of Baltimore hopes to mitigate these costs by advocating for the recovery of costs, at a minimum, from the manufacturers and retailers of these products.

Annapolis – phone: 410.269.0207 • fax: 410.269.6785 Baltimore – phone: 410.396.3497 • fax: 410.396.5136 https://mogr.baltimorecity.gov/